

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

Copyright © 2001-2025 EMCO. All rights reserved.

Company web site: emcosoftware.com

Support e-mail: support@emcosoftware.com

Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction	4
Chapter 2: Getting Started	6
How the Program Works Local, Remote and Web Access to the Program Managing and Configuring Hosts Program Navigation	6 6 6 6
Monitoring Host State Monitoring Connection Quality How Alerts Work	6 6 6
Analyzing Hosts Statistics	6 6 6
Integration with Other Programs	6
Chapter 3: Program Interface Overview	51
The Document View	51 51 51 51 51 51 51
Chapter 4: Hosts Management	107
Defining Hosts and Groups Overriding Common Settings Using Custom Fields Integrating External Tools Importing and Exporting Hosts	107 107 107 107 107
Chapter 5: Monitoring Connectivity	122
Controlling Activity Analyzing Statistics Using Alerts Host State Monitoring Connection Quality Monitoring Notifications on Alerts and Events	122 122 122 122 122 122
Auto-start List	122
Chapter 6: Reporting	133
Preconfigured Reports Report Members Report Filter Report Outputs Importing and Exporting Preconfigured Reports	133 133 133 133 133 133
Chapter 7: Web Interface	148
Overview Page	148 148 148 148 148 148
Chapter 8: Using Placeholders	172
Notification E-mail Placeholders Custom Actions Definition Placeholders Report Name Template Placeholders Report Footer Placeholders External Tools Placeholders	172 172 172 172 172 172
Chapter 9: Events Logging	180
Reviewing Monitoring Events Exporting Monitoring Events Analyzing Log Exporting Log	180 180 180 180

Chapter 10: Program Preferences	
Monitoring Part	
Alerts and Events Part	
General Part	
Miscellaneous Part	
Chapter 11: Evaluation of the Program	
Evaluation Wizard	
Where can I get my License Code?	
How should I formulate the Extended License request?	
Chapter 12: Program Updates	
Live Update	236
Major Update	
Chapter 13: Ping Monitor Client-Server Concept	
Chapter 14: Access Control	
Chapter 15: Optimizing System Performance	
Chapter 16: Notification Center	
Chapter 17: Requirements	
Chapter 18: Edition Upgrade	
Chapter 19: How can I leave my Feedback?	
Chapter 20: About EMCO Software	
Chapter 21: Contact Information	

Chapter 1: Introduction

Welcome to EMCO Ping Monitor. You have chosen an easy-to-use software product that allows you to monitor host states and the connection quality of monitored hosts. The program is designed to alert you when there are issues with monitoring hosts, when hosts change their states or when monitoring values exceed thresholds. The program collects monitoring statistics, including different monitoring metrics, and can generate reports with detailed information on the performance of any monitored host. This manual provides you with detailed information on all of the program features.



Using Documentation

EMCO Ping Monitor was designed to be a tool with an intuitive user interface that can be used by people with different levels of technological knowledge. The program encompasses an initial configuration wizard that helps you to configure the program for the first start. In addition, every interface dialog provides you with hints and clear error messages. It should help you to use the program successfully without reading this manual. Anyway, it's recommended to review the Getting Started guide to familiarize yourself with the main features of the program.

To get detailed information on the program features, settings and user interface views, browse the manual content and choose the section you want to read.

Getting Help

If you face a problem, it makes sense to check the errors reported in the **Log** view. If the problem can be resolved by a user, the error in the log includes troubleshooting information, so you can follow the suggestions to resolve the problem. In other cases, you may contact the support team at *https://emcosoftware.com/support*.

To get help on the problem, you need to provide the support team with the problem details. For example, you can send the error notification you received and the steps you had performed before getting this error. Provide the support team with all the available information regarding the problem to speed up the problem reproduction and troubleshooting.

Chapter 2: Getting Started

EMCO Ping Monitor is software that monitors multiple hosts simultaneously. The program sends ICMP echo requests to hosts on a regular basis and analyzes echo replies to detect the state and the connection quality of the monitored hosts. Ping results are saved by the program and are analyzed to calculate metrics used to evaluate the quality of the connection between the monitoring server and the monitored host.



Ping Monitor is a tool that helps you to proactively identify problems in your network infrastructure and reduce downtime. Below you can find a list of typical scenarios of using Ping Monitor.

- **Host state monitoring**. You can use the program to continuously monitor the state of hosts (i.e. to detect if they are up or down) using ICMP pings and be notified when a host state changes. The program provides you with information on the current state of every host and the entire monitoring system by displaying the quantity of hosts in different states.
- **Connection quality monitoring**. In addition to monitoring the host states, the program can monitor the quality of the network connections using the metrics based on ICMP pings. When a host is up, its connection quality may vary; therefore, a continuous monitoring of the quality allows preventing potential problems. The program can send you notifications when the connection quality changes, so you can take required actions if needed.

- Host performance analysis. The program saves monitoring statistics, so you can access it anytime to see how the host performance metrics changed over time. You can estimate the host performance for any historical time range and generate reports with detailed statistics.
- **Integration with other systems**. It is possible to integrate the program with other systems. For example, the program can notify other systems when the host state or quality change. You can also export raw ping data to open them in other systems.

In the following chapters, you can learn how to use the program in the scenarios listed above and in other cases. Getting Started provides you with a general overview of the program features and practical advices on using the program. For detailed information, you can refer to other sections of the product documentation.

How the Program Works

The program is designed for simultaneous monitoring of multiple hosts. The number of monitored hosts depends on the program license. The Free edition allows monitoring of up to five hosts, and the Professional edition allows monitoring of up to 250 hosts. The Enterprise edition doesn't limit the number of hosts. The practical limit of monitored hosts depends on the used hardware. You can monitor 8,000+ hosts on modern hardware. The technical limit of the program is 32,000 hosts.

What is Ping Monitoring and How it Works

The program uses the ICMP protocol to monitor hosts over a network. Every host is monitored independently from other hosts to guarantee a high monitoring performance. The program sends ICMP echo requests to a monitored host and analyzes its echo replies. Echo requests, which are called pings, are sent on a regular basis at particular time intervals, so the program continuously interacts with the host and can detect the moment when it stops replying to ping requests.

When the program sends a ping echo request and gets a reply from the host, the ping is considered as passed, and the program saves its round-trip time. When there is no echo reply from the host, the ping is considered as failed. If pings fail, it means that there is no connection between the program (the Ping Monitor server that sends pings) and the monitored host.

What is the reason for ping failure? A ping can fail due to different reasons, for example, when the pinged host is turned off, when there is a network problem between the source and destination, or when there is a DNS problem and the host name cannot be resolved to the correct IP address. Usually, a ping fails when its round-trip time exceeds the configured timeout. It happens when the pinged host or the network infrastructure is overloaded and ping requests cannot be processed in time.

How the Host State is Detected

One of the main goals of Ping Monitor is helping you to detect problems with the monitored hosts automatically, so the program continuously monitors the hosts to detect their current state. The Up state means that the monitored host works and replies to ping requests. The Down state means that the monitored host is unreachable and it doesn't reply to ping requests.

How does the program detect the host states using pings? If pings pass successfully, it means that the host works, so it has the Up state. If pings fail, it means that the monitored host isn't reachable. A single failed ping usually doesn't indicate a problem, because pings can fail sometimes even for properly working hosts. However, if several pings fail in a row, it means that there is a problem and the host state should be changed to Down.

All the monitoring parameters used by the program are configurable and can be changed if required. Below you can see an example of a host monitoring sequence to understand how monitoring works and what parameters are used in the monitoring configuration.



The program continuously monitors a host by sending ping echo requests on a regular basis at a **Regular Pings Interval** (10 sec in the example). If a ping fails, the next ping request is sent after a **State Check Interval** (3 sec in the example). As you can see, the program uses different ping intervals when the host state is stable (either Up or Down) and when it is changing (from Up to Down or vice versa). Using different intervals allows you to tune monitoring according to your needs.

The program uses Up Check Attempts (1 ping in the example) and Down Check Attempts (3 pings in the example) to detect the state changes. For example, using the default settings the state changes from Up to Down when 3 pings fail in a row. Using the default settings, the host state changes from Down to Up when 1 ping has passed.

When a host goes Down, the program creates an alert to inform you about the problem. A list of active alerts is displayed in the program, so you can review the current problems. You can configure the program to send e-mail notifications, show balloons in Windows Tray, play sounds or execute custom actions on alerts or events, such as host state changes, etc.

Monitoring Sequence

Changing and Tuning the Monitoring Settings

You can change the used configuration on the **Monitor Settings** page of the program preferences **Pic 1**. These settings are used by all monitored hosts. Using a commercial edition of the program, you can override the common settings and specify individual settings for hosts and groups. To enter individual settings for a host/group, you need to open it for editing and switch to **Monitor Settings**.

Preferences		×
Preferences Image: Monitoring Monitoring Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation Latency Measurement Image: General Image: Miscellaneous	Normalization	 ★ A contion conducts monitoring of the connection status by sending pings to the intored host. Tune the monitoring behavior by configuring the outages conditions, itability checks and ping options. g options Specify a regular interval for sending ICMP echo requests to a host; this interval is used confirmed by the specified number of lost/delivered packets in a row. Regular Ping Interval (sec): 100 Configure the number of consecutively delivered packets for the host to become up, the number of lost packets in a row for the host to be treated as down and the interval between checks for stable state. Up Check Attempts: 100 The host will become Up as soon as any packet is delivered and will become bown in no less than 2 seconds after the first lost packet. Define the ping operation timeout, choose the size of the packet to be sent in an echo cage and time to live for the packet. Ping Timeout (ms): 1500 Packet Size (bytes): 32 × Time To tive (TT1): 128 0 Learn more about Ping Options
Destana Defaulte		Restore Defaults Apply

Pic 1. Monitor Settings

Monitoring settings allow you to change ping intervals and to check attempts used to detect Up/Down states. These settings were explained above. You can also change the ping packet size, the ping timeout and the TTL (time to live). Note that depending on the used edition of the program and the initial configuration set at the first start of the program, the default monitoring settings may vary, but you can change them anytime if required.

What settings should you use in different cases? There is no universal answer to this question, because the optimal settings depend on the case, but it makes sense to follow these recommendations:

- Don't use too large and too small intervals. Small intervals increase monitoring workload, which may matter if you monitor hundreds or thousands of hosts. For example, if you reduce the interval by 2 times, the program will send twice as many pings during the same interval. Large intervals make monitoring less responsive because it requires more time to detect state changes. For example, it makes no sense to ping a host once per hour because a host state may change many times during an hour and these changes will not be detected.
- Avoid false positive reports by increasing Up/Down check attempts. If you set check attempts to just one ping, the host state can be changed on every ping. If the connection is unstable, you will constantly notice state changes and will not be able to react appropriately. By increasing the number of check attempts, one reduces the number of potential false-positive state changes; but at the same time, too large a number of check attempts makes monitoring less responsive. For example, if **State Check Interval** is set to 10 seconds and you set **Down Check Attempts** to 1000 pings, an outage will be detected 10.000 sec later at the earliest, i.e. over 2 hours after the onset of problems.
- How to estimate the monitoring responsiveness, i.e. the time required for the monitoring system to detect a host state change? The program sends ping requests on a regular basis, so it immediately detects that pings start to fail, but it isn't reported as a host state change to avoid false positives until the number of failed pings detected in a row reaches the **Down Check Attempts** value. In this case, pings are sent with a **State Check Interval**. To evaluate the minimum time required to report the Down state after the first failed ping, you need to multiply **State Check Interval** by **Down Check Attempts**. To evaluate the minimum time required to report the first passed ping, you need to multiply **State Check Attempts**.

What settings should I use if I need to detect state changes no sooner than in 2 minutes after the problem onset (in other words, outages shorter than 2 minutes shouldn't be detected)?

In this case, first we need to decide how often the host should be pinged in the transitional state. If it should be pinged every five seconds (**State Check Interval** should be set accordingly), how many pings do we need to send to detect a state change? Let's calculate: 120 sec. (2 min.) / 5 sec. = 24, so we need 24 pings to detect a host change with this interval and can enter this number as **Up Check Attempts** and **Down Check Attempts**.

Note that the interval and the number of attempts are inversely related, so as one value is increased, the other one should be decreased if you wish to maintain the same monitoring responsiveness. In the above example, if we set **State Check Interval** to 3 sec., how many pings are required to detect a state change? This number can be calculated as 120 sec. (2 min.) / 3 sec. = 40, thus we need 40 pings to detect a host change with this interval and need to set **Up Check Attempts** and **Down Check Attempts** to 40 pings.

Local, Remote and Web Access to the Program

The program has a client/server architecture. The server works as a Windows service to monitor hosts, send notifications and generate reports. The client is a Windows application with a GUI that allows you to connect to the server and manage the monitored hosts, review statistics, change settings, etc. When installing the program, you can select to install the server, the client, or both. Thus, you can install the client and the server on the same PC or different PCs.

It is recommended to install the Ping Monitor server on a Windows server or another computer that is always on, so monitoring can run in the 24/7 mode. The Ping Monitor GUI client can be installed on the same or a different computer, since the program allows clients to connect to the server remotely over a LAN/WAN/VPN. You can install multiple clients that can connect to the same server and work concurrently. To be able to connect to the server remotely, you need to open ports 48030 and 48031 in the firewall on the computer where the server is installed.

When running the Ping Monitor client, you should specify if you would like to connect to a server installed locally or remotely **Pic 1**. If you wish to connect to a remote server, you should enter its host name or IP address.

The program supports different numbers of simultaneous client connections depending on the used license. The Free edition of the program supports only one connection, the Professional edition supports two connections, and the Enterprise edition doesn't limit the number of simultaneous connections.

The server requires user authentication, so when using the default settings, you need to specify a Windows account that is a member of the Administrators group on the computer where the server is installed. If your current Windows session satisfies this condition, you can enable the **Use Windows** session Credentials option and skip entering the username and password.

EMCO Ping Monitor Enterpri	se	×				
Connect to Server						
Enterprise server located on the local PC or on a remote one.						
○ The server is running on the local host						
The server is running on	a remote host					
Host Name / IP Address:	MERCURIUS	~				
User Name:	MERCURIUS\Alex					
Password:	Password:					
Use Windows session	Use Windows session credentials					
Learn more about connecting to local and remote servers						
Use this as default and do not ask again Connect Close						

Pic 1. The server connection dialog

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

The program allows you to configure who has access to the server. You can allow access for selected Windows users/groups and can assign different roles in the program to different users. For example, you can provide an administrative access with all permissions to a specific user group and a read-only access to all other users. You can learn more about using roles and permissions in the Access Control chapter.

The program uses secure communication between the client and the server, so all the data traffic is encrypted. By default, the program uses a self-signed SSL certificate, and you get a warning that the used certificate isn't trusted when you connect to the server. If you have a SSL certificate, it's recommended to specify it in the program preferences to validate the identity of the server when connecting to it remotely.

Monitoring Web Interface

In addition to the GUI client, you can also use the monitoring web interface that offers features similar to those available in the GUI client. The web interface allows you to review the state and quality of the monitored hosts, get detailed host statistics and start/stop monitoring of hosts and groups Pic 2. The current version of the program doesn't allow managing hosts and settings through the web, so you need to use the GUI client to add/delete hosts and to change the program settings.



Pic 3. Monitoring web interface

The program uses Microsoft IIS to deploy the monitoring web interface. During installation of Ping Monitor, the program installer automatically activates Microsoft IIS and deploys the monitoring web interface if you choose to install it. When installed with default parameters, a corresponding shortcut appears in the Windows Start menu, and you can use it to open the monitoring web interface in a browser.

Managing and Configuring Hosts

At the first start of the program, you have an option to specify hosts that will be monitored by the program. After you have entered hosts, you can find them in the **Hosts** view located on the left of the main screen of the program. Using this view, you can see all the hosts added to the program and check if they are currently being monitored. In the **Hosts** view, you can add/delete hosts and manage their settings, so you need to open this view to add all the hosts that you plan to monitor.

Adding New Hosts

There are multiple ways for adding hosts to the program. You can use one of the following approaches depending on your needs:

- Add a single host. To add a single host you need to select New > Host in the context menu or on the toolbar of the Hosts view. In the dialog that appears, you can add a host by name or IP address. The program supports hosts with dynamic IP addresses: in this case, you need to enter the host name and turn on the option This host uses a dynamic IP address, so the program will resolve the host name to an IP address at every ping.
- Add multiple hosts by an IP range. This option can be used when you need to add multiple hosts at once and all of them are within the same IP range. To use this option, select New > Host in the context menu or on the toolbar of the Hosts view. You should add the start and end addresses of the IP range, and all IPs from this range will be added into the program Pic 1. By default, these hosts are added as IP addresses, but suppose you need to add them as host names. The program can resolve IPs and add them as host names if the option Resolve address to host name is turned on. There is also another useful option: Do not add if not resolved. When this option is enabled, the program skips the IPs of which cannot be resolved to host names.

• **Import hosts from a file**. This option is helpful when you have a list of hosts to be added into the program, and it isn't convenient to add them one-by-one or as an IP range. To use this option, select **Import** in the context menu of the **Hosts** view and follow the instructions available in the Importing and Exporting Hosts chapter.

General	Enter the single network host address or the IP addresses range to monitor connection to. The single both address can be specified both as a both name and an IP address.
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Gateway Options Intervals Automation Alerts and Notifications Notification Time Recipients Custom Fields	 Add Single Host Address: This host uses a dynamic IP address Add Hosts Range Start IP: 192 , 168 , 10 , 50 End IP: 192 , 168 , 10 , 54 Resolve address to host name Do not add if not resolved Label: Group: Texas ♥ + Description:
	Start monitoring when added

Pic 1. Adding hosts

Note that the program automatically starts monitoring the added hosts because the **Start monitoring when added** option is enabled by default in the **Add Host** dialog. Disable this option if you don't need to monitor the added hosts immediately.

If you need to add a list of hosts into the program, the easiest way to do so is to import them. Create a text file with the .CSV extension and specify the host names or IPs in this file, where every line contains one host. Then select the **Import** option in the context menu of the **Hosts** view and follow the steps of the wizard that appears to import the created file.

Starting and Stopping Monitoring of the Hosts

When you add a host, the program starts monitoring it automatically. If you need to start or stop the hosts monitoring manually, you can do it in the **Hosts** view. To start or stop the monitoring, select the required host and choose the **Start Monitoring** or **Stop Monitoring** options in the context menu. The program also allows you to start/stop the monitoring of multiple hosts with a single click, for which you can select multiple hosts or groups and choose the corresponding context menu options. The monitoring state is preserved even if you restart the computer running Ping Monitor server. The server works as a Windows service, so it runs on when you start the computer and can continue monitoring automatically. By default, the program preserves the same monitoring state of the hosts, so monitoring continues for the hosts that were monitored before the restart. If required, you can change that and configure the program to start or stop monitoring hosts regardless of their previous state, and set the hosts that should be monitored after the program restart. You can find these advanced options on the **Automation** page of the program preferences.

Deleting Hosts

To delete a host, you need to select it in the **Hosts** view and choose the **Delete** option in the context menu. It is possible to delete one or multiple hosts at once. Note that when you delete a host, all its collected statistics is deleted as well, and it isn't possible to restore it.



If the host deletion option is disabled, it means that it isn't possible to delete the host because it is currently being monitored. You need to stop monitoring the host to be able to delete it.

Configuring Host Settings

An addition to the name or IP address, every host can have various settings that allow customizing its monitoring options, notifications, performance estimation and other aspects. You can configure these settings when you add a host, or change them later by editing the host. On the left of the host configuring dialog, you can find the navigator, and on the right, you can apply the required changes **Pic 2**.

Add Host	×
Specify Monitored Host Info Provide a host address to mo and override the monitoring	ormation Initor along with additional host information, indicate if the host uses a dynamic IP address, settings, if required.
General	Tune the monitoring behavior by configuring the intervals between echo requests, the ping packet options, and the number of lost/delivered packets in a row required to reach a stable
Monitor Settings	host state.
Connection Quality	Specify a regular interval for sending ICMP echo reguests to a bost: this interval is used
Performance	when the host is in a stable state. The state is considered stable as soon as it is confirmed by the specified number of lost/delivered packets in a row.
Gateway Options	Regular Ping Interval (sec): 10 🗘
Intervals	Configure the number of consecutively delivered packets for the host to become up, the
Automation	number of lost packets in a row for the host to be treated as down and the interval between checks for stable state.
Alerts and Notifications	Up Check Attempts: 2 0 Down Check Attempts: 3 0
Notification Time	State Check Interval (sec): 3
Recipients	The bost will become Up in no less than 3 seconds after the first delivered packet
Custom Fields	and will become Down in no less than 6 seconds after the first lost packet.
	Define the ping operation timeout, choose the size of the packet to be sent in an echo request and time to live for the packet.
	Ping Timeout (ms): 1500 🗘 Packet Size (bytes): 32 🗸
	Time To Live (TTL): 128
	Learn more about Ping Options
	Add Cancel

Pic 2. Host settings

The Professional and Enterprise editions of the program allow overriding the common settings used for all hosts and specifying individual settings for a selected host. For example, by default, all hosts use the monitoring settings specified on the **Monitor Settings** page of the program preferences, but you can override them for some hosts, and use custom ping intervals and check attempts.

By specifying individual settings for hosts and groups, you can specify different e-mail notification recipients for different hosts and groups, so the program will send e-mails to the relevant recipients only.

Organizing Hosts in Groups

To organize hosts in the program, you can create groups and add the hosts into these groups. Why do you need to add hosts into groups? There are a few examples to consider:

- Using a group, you can start and stop monitoring all hosts in a group with a single click. If you have several different types of hosts that should be monitored differently, you can create several groups and add your hosts to those groups, so you can start and stop monitoring those groups independently.
- You can override the default monitoring and notification settings for multiple hosts at once by specifying custom settings for a group.
- When creating a report, you can configure it to include statistics for all the hosts in a group. Then you can update the hosts in the group, and the report will be updated automatically to provide statistics for the actual list of hosts in the group.
- For a group, you can see the total number of hosts with different state and quality characteristics.

To add hosts into a group, you need to create the group in the **Hosts** view and specify the hosts to be added into it.

Avoiding False Positive Outages Detection Using the Gateway Option

Let's analyze a typical situation: suppose you monitor a remote host located in the Internet, and pings to that host start failing, so the program reports an outage. An outage means that there is no connection between the computer where the Ping Monitor server is installed and the monitored host. Usually, there are two possible reasons for this problem. The first reason: the monitored host is down, so it isn't available for you and for other users. The second reason: you have lost the Internet connection, so the host isn't available only to you, but it is available to other users. By using a gateway in the program, you can distinguish between these cases.

In the program preferences, you can specify the gateway IP address to check and confirm the ping results. So, how does a gateway work in monitoring? If a ping to the host passes, the gateway check is skipped; but if the ping fails, the program pings the specified gateway. If the gateway ping passes, it means the problem lies with the monitored host, and the host ping is considered as failed. After the configured number of **Down check attempts**, the host state changes to Down if all the pings have failed. However, if the gateway ping fails together with the host ping, it means this isn't a host failure and a host outage isn't reported.

You can configure a common gateway to be used for all the hosts on the **Gateway Options** page of the program preferences. If required, you can override the common settings and specify an individual gateway in the host settings.

What host can be used as a gateway? From the technical point of view, you can use any host with a static IP address, because the program allows using an IP address only as the gateway. It makes sense to specify an always-on host located on the route between the monitoring server and the monitored host. Note that you can specify multiple IPs as gateways, if required.

Program Navigation

The program allows you to work with the different types of data and perform the different operations. For example, you can manage hosts monitored by the program, review monitoring results, generate reports, etc. These operations can be performed in the different views described below.

Hosts Management

To start monitoring hosts you need to add them into the program. You can do it in the **Hosts** view that is displayed by default in the left side of the main screen.

The **Hosts** view allows adding and removing hosts to the program, exporting/importing hosts and configuring hosts settings. This view allows you to organize hosts into groups to create hosts hierarchy and for managing multiple hosts as a single entity.

In the **Hosts** view to can start and stop monitoring of the hosts and see hosts, which are monitored currently. Note that the view doesn't provide any information about host state, statistics or other results of monitoring. This information is provided by other views, described below. The **Hosts** view is used for managing hosts and activating their monitoring.

Working with the Monitoring Information

All hosts monitoring information collected by the program is represented in the document interface, displayed by default at the center of the main screen. A document contains all monitoring results and allows you to navigate through the monitoring data quickly and easily. When you open the program at the first time, you can see a default document, which displays the monitoring information for all hosts. If required, you can open additional documents to display monitoring results for selected hosts or to tune data representation within the document.

In the document you can navigate through the monitoring information using the navigation panel, located at the left side of the document **Pic 1**. By default the program shows **Overview**, that displays charts representing the current state of monitoring. You can click the buttons on the navigation panel to open the **Statistics Summary**, **Alerts Summary**, **State Summary** and **Quality Summary** pages.



Pic 1. Navigation panel

You can use the navigation panel to navigate through specific characteristics of the monitoring data. For example, the **Alerts Summary** page displays active alerts and alerts history, the **Statistics Summary** page displays states of hosts. The **Overview** page and the summary pages with statistics, alerts, state and quality, display information for all hosts on a single screen **Pic 2**.

¢	Statistics Summa	ary									î.	Statistics	Alerts	State Quality	
	Statistics for all Hosts														ł.
	0 626	2175	2985												ľ
1	🗙 🖻 📰 🛃 E	8 🖩 🗂 🍸										Period:	Last Month (8	/1/2022 - 8/31/2022) =	k
0	Host Name 🔺	Group	Activity Time	Uptime (%)	Outages	PL (%)	Perf	MOS	Avg (ms)	Dev (ms)	CV (%)	Min (ms)	Max (ms)		
- 6	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:47	62.02	1	38.03	Low	*****	182.91	62.10	33.95	88.38	2071.73	1	~
	h-05669.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
N	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:12	99.99	1	0.02	Low	*****	181.63	60.39	33.25	86.86	1519.92		
	h-05671.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05672.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05673.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05674.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:52	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	182.01	57.42	31.55	87.21	1489.15		
	h-05675.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:03	100.00	(0.16	Medium	*****	182.05	58.95	32.38	88.67	1780.31		
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:10	100.00	(0.02	Medium	*****	182.39	56.07	30.74	86.32	1464.15		
	h-05677.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05678.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	99.97	2	0.05	Medium	*****	181.80	58.27	32.05	85.77	1488.93		
	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	100.00	(0.03	Medium	*****	181.29	56.49	31.16	87.89	1500.82		
	h-05681.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:11	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	183.55	58.78	32.02	85.68	1660.19		
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	181.07	57.16	31.57	113.30	1828.05		
	h-05683.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05684.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05685.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:03	99.97	2	0.05	Medium	*****	181.59	58.72	32.34	89.25	1659.22		
	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:52	100.00	(0.02	Medium	*****	181.79	56.25	30.94	93.78	1415.22		
	h-05688.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****							
	h-05689.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:04	100.00	(0.02	Medium	*****	181.54	56.44	31.09	96.81	1498.91		
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:10	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	181.23	55.90	30.85	87.91	2072.42		
	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:14	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	181.79	56.87	31.28	86.50	1497.40		
	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:08	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	182.45	56.82	31.14	91.80	1660.56		
	h-05693.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:32	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	181.86	58.11	31.95	96.44	1403.13		
	h-05694.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	182.84	59.67	32.64	88.84	1475.65		
	h-05695.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:07	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	180.29	53.72	29.80	85.87	1492.03		
	h-05696.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:42	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	180.93	55.37	30.61	97.22	1462.65		
	h-05697.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	2	0.03	Medium	*****	181.15	57.67	31.84	88.38	1490.95		
	h-05698.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	182.33	57.27	31.41	88.63	2065.51		
	h-05699.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:32	99.98	1	0.07	Medium	*****	182.15	57.29	31.45	86.52	1495.87		Y

Pic 2. Statistics summary view for all hosts

If you need to see detailed information about a specific host, you can click it in on a summary page. It works as a drill-down from a list of hosts to a selected host. For example, if you click on a host in **Statistics Summary**, you will navigate to the **Statistics** page of the clicked host. It displays all statistics collected for the host **Pic 3**.



Pic 3. Host statistics

When you are on the host level, you can review all other information, available for the host. Use the navigation bar, located on the top right corner. It allows you to switch to **Statistics**, **Alerts**, **State** and **Quality** pages of the host. You can also use the **Up** button to navigate to the upper level **Pic 4**. On the left side of the navigation bar you can see a host name or a name of the current page, so you can always know your current location.



Pic 4. Navigation bar

You can use either the navigation panel or navigation bar to navigate through the hosts, but the navigation panel buttons allow you to open summary pages displaying information for all hosts with a single click. Using the navigation bar you can walk through hosts hierarchy and navigate through different pages of the host.

As mentioned above, the program allows you to work with multiple documents. For example, you can open documents with different hosts. To create a new document click on the **Document** button in the **New** group of the **Home** menu on Ribbon. In this case the program creates a new document with all hosts. To create a document with specific hosts select the hosts in the **Hosts** view, then right-click and choose **Show Overview In** and then **New Document**. You can change a list of hosts displayed in the view by enabling the **Link with Selection** option in the document and selecting hosts in the **Hosts** view.

Documents are displayed as tabs, so you can switch between them quickly. You can right-click a document tab to pin, rename or duplicate it. You can also undock a document by dragging its title and dropping to another location on the screen to reorganize visual layout of the program.

Managing Reports

You can configure and run reports using the **Reports** view. To open it, click the **Reports** tab, located by default at the left bottom corner of the main screen. The **Reports** view displays available reports, you can create a new report or run a report in this view.

Access Control, Log and Operations Management

You can configure users, which can use the program, in the **Access Control** view. In the **Log** view you can see logging events generated by the program. The **Operations** view displays a list of running operations. All these views are displayed in the corresponding tabs that are located at the bottom of the main screen.

Monitoring Host State

Ping Monitor is designed to continuously monitor host states and notify you when the host state changes. As explained in the How the Program Works chapter, the program uses ICMP pings to monitor hosts and detects the host states as Up or Down. The Up state means that the monitored host is reachable and it replies to ping requests. The Down state means that the host is unreachable and it doesn't reply to ping requests. There is also the Pending state, which is reported when the host state detection is in progress and the state isn't detected as Up or Down yet.

Using the Overview and State Summary Pages

When the monitoring is started, you can find the general state of the monitoring system on the **Overview** page **Pic 1**. The groups of circles on the chart correspond to the groups of numbers displayed on the right. The first group shows hosts monitoring activity, the number of hosts that are Active (i.e. currently monitored), Inactive (i.e. currently not monitored) and Paused. The second group shows the number of monitored hosts that are Up or Down now. The numbers located on the right of the view are clickable, so you can navigate to the hosts with the selected characteristics.



Pic 1. Hosts Summary

If you need to review the host states, you can open the **State Monitor** page by clicking the corresponding button on the navigation panel, located on the left side of the document. This page is designed for control rooms displays the state of all the hosts on a single screen and can use the sorting and filtering features to display the required hosts only. The **State Summary** page supports different modes of data representation.

Hosts can be displayed as tiles where the host state is indicated in different colors: green if the host is Up and red if the host is Down. You can change the size of the displayed tiles to fit all the entries into a single screen **Pic 2**.

•	State Summary Image: State Sta									
1	Monitoring all Hosts									
	📴 📲 Hosts 😂 Groups 👌 Group by Seventy 🔱 🏭 🕅 🏭 🚟 🎬 🈭									
•0	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	h-05674.emcosoftware.com h-05675.emcosoftware.com							
*	Group: North AmericalUnited States\Boardman IP Address: 100.21.126.246 Reverse Name: h-05668.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America\United States\Boardman IP Address: 34.211.109.156 Reverse Name: h-05670.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America\United States\Boardman IP Address: 35.155.182.164 Reverse Name: h-05674.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America/United States/Boardman IP Address: 35.161.116.23 Reverse Name: h-05675.emcosoftware.com						
	Down 08:00:56	Up 06:01:11	Up 08:01:10	Up 08:01:11						
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	h-05681.emcosoftware.com						
	Group: North America'United States'Boardman IP Address: 35.161.124.106 Reverse Name: h-05676.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America/United States/Boardman IP Address: 35.162.232.15 Reverse Name: h-05679.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America\United States\Boardman IP Address: 35.163.128.201 Reverse Name: h-05680.emcosoftware.com	Group: North AmericalUnited States/Boardman IP Address: 35.164.181.189 Reverse Name: h-05631.emcosoftware.com						
	Up 08:01:10	Up 08:01:11	Up 08:01:11	Up 08:01:10						
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	h-05689.emcosoftware.com						
	Group: North America/United States/Boardman IP Address: 35.164.250.120 Reverse Name: h-05682.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America/United States/Boardman IP Address: 44.225.2.78 Reverse Name: h-05666.emcosoftware.com	Group: North America/United States/Boardman IP Address: 44.228.126.126 Reverse Name: h-05667.emcosoftware.com	Group: North AmericalUnited States/Boardman IP Address: 50.112.125.251 Reverse Name: h-05689.emcosoftware.com						
	Up 08:01:11	Up 08:01:11	Up 08:01:11	Up 08:01:11						
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	h-05693.emcosoftware.com						
	Group: North America\United States\Boardman	Group: North America\United States\Boardman	Group: North America/United States/Boardman	Group: North America\United States\Boardman						

Pic 2. State Summary displaying hosts as tiles

If you select a small size for the tiles on **State Summary**, the host names aren't displayed so that a maximum number of entries could fit the screen. To see the name and other information, hover the mouse pointer over the box for the program to show the host data on the tooltip.

Alternatively it is possible to display hosts and their states as a table $\frac{\text{Pic } 3}{\text{Pic } 3}$.

¢	State Summary						↑ Statistics Alerts State	Quality
ıl.	Monitoring all Hosts 2698 85	0						11
1	📑 🗧 Hosts Grou	ips 👌 Group by Severity	計 84 周	* 🔳 🖽 🛤		7		0
	Name	Group	State	Duration	IP Address	Reverse Name		
	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Down	08:02:32	100.21.126.246	h-05668.emcosoftware.com		^
-	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	5 34.211.109.156	h-05670.emcosoftware.com		
2	h-05674.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.155.182.164	h-05674.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05675.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.161.116.23	h-05675.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.161.124.106	h-05676.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.162.232.15	h-05679.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	35.163.128.201	h-05680.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05681.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.164.181.189	h-05681.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	5 35.164.250.120	h-05682.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	5 44.225.2.78	h-05686.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	44.228.126.126	h-05687.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05689.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	50.112.125.251	h-05689.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.10.67.49	h-05690.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.11.37.152	h-05691.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	5 52.12.229.142	h-05692.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05693.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.13.195.78	h-05693.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05694.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	5 52.13.5.33	h-05694.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05695.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	52.218.160.87	h-05695.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05696.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.192.83	h-05696.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05697.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.193.75	h-05697.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05698.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.197.90	h-05698.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05699.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.200.147	h-05699.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05700.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.208.155	h-05700.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05701.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.209.227	h-05701.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05702.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.216.11	h-05702.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05703.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.216.242	h-05703.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05704.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.217.106	h-05704.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05705.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.221.250	h-05705.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05706.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.228.186	h-05706.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05707.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.229.186	h-05707.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05708.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.242.146	h-05708.emcosoftware.com		
	h-05709.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.244.11	h-05709.emcosoftware.com		~

Pic 3. The State Monitor view displaying hosts

To switch to the table presentation you need to click the **Table** button on the toolbar located above the displayed data.

Sorting, Grouping and Filtering Hosts

If you monitor hundreds or thousands of hosts, **State Summary** shows too many entries. How do you organize them? There are several options available, and you can find the corresponding controls on the toolbar of **State Summary**.

- **Sorting**. You can sort the displayed hosts by host name or by time. You may notice that for every host you can see the time when the current host state was detected. When sorting by time, on the top of the screen you can see the hosts states of which have recently been changed.
- **Grouping**. If you enable the **Group by Severity** option, the hosts in the Down state are displayed on the top of the screen.
- **Filtering**. Use **Filter Editor** to select the hosts that should be displayed. For example, you may choose to display only the hosts in the Down state.

Displaying Host Groups

You may notice that by default **State Summary** shows only hosts even if you organized hosts into groups. To see the groups, you may click on the **Groups** button available on the toolbar. As a result, only groups will be displayed, and you can see how many hosts in every group are Up, Down and Pending **Pic 4**. If you click on a group, **State Summary** shows all the hosts that belong to this group. You can also click on the numbers that represent the quantity of hosts in different states to drill-down to those hosts.

¢ 11. *	State Summary Monitoring all Hosts 2699 84 Pr Hosts Core	0 ups 🚯 Group by Severity	24 84 27 🔳 🏭	88 🚍 🍸		1	Statistics Ale	rts State Quality	
**	Akron Group: North America\Ur Pending	vited States	Aliquippa Group: North America\United States		Alpharetta Group: North America/Ur Pending	nited States	Altamonte Springs Group: North America\United States		
	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	3 Up	1 Down	
	Amarillo Group: North America\Ur	nited States	Ann Arbor Group: North America\Un	ited States	Argyle Group: North Americal/United States		Arlington Group: North America)United States		
	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	5 Up	0 Down	
	Arlington Heigh Group: North America),Ur Pendina	ts nited States	Ashburn Group: North America\Un	ited States	Asheville Group: North America/United States		Ashland Group: North America\United States		
	1 Up	0 Down	289 Up	3 Down	1 Up	0 Down	3 Up	0 Down	
	Atlanta Group: North America\Ur	nited States	Aurora Group: North America\Un	ited States	Austin Group: North America/United States		Bakersfield Group: North America\United States		

Pic 4. The State Monitor view displaying groups

The hosts that don't belong to any group are displayed in **State Summary** in the special virtual group called **Individual Hosts**.

Host State Details

The **State Summary** page displays state information for multiple hosts. If you need to see details for a specific host, you can click the host to drill-down. As a result you navigate to the host and can review a real-time pings chart, which shows the result of the latest pings. You can use it to see whether the latest pings have passed of failed. Besides, on the same chart you can see how the host state is changing depending on the ping results. On the host you can see also the statistics of the last 20 pings and host state intervals for the last hour **Pic 5**.



Pic 5. Host state details

To go back and see all the hosts again, click the **Up** button located on the navigation bar in the top right corner.

Best Practices in Host State Monitoring

You can organize hosts monitoring using different approaches and choose the right one depending on your needs. For example, you can rely on alerts and notifications, so when the monitored host goes Down or Up, you are notified about the state change. This approach requires that you configure notifications, and once this is done, you don't need to run the GUI client. All information required to troubleshoot the problem is delivered in notification messages. You can learn how to configure notifications in the Managing Notifications chapter.

If you plan to use the program in a control room to monitor hosts states, you may expand the **State Summary** page to the whole screen and monitor host state changes in real-time Pic 6. In this case, you may configure a filter to reduce the number of displayed hosts and show only the hosts that require your attention, for example the hosts that are Down.

State Summary	State Summary Alerts State Quality								
Monitoring all Hosts 2782 1	Aonitoring all Hosts								
📑 🖬 Hosts 🐑 Groups 🧹	Group by Severity 🔱 😫 🗩	III III III III II			0				
h-08327.emcosoftw	h-07955.emcosoftw	h-07941.emcosoftw	h-06668.emcosoftw	h-10215.emcosoftw	h-06912.emcosoftw				
00:11:01	00:00:46	00:01:30	00:02:25	00:05:59	00:06:28				
h-07108.emcosoftw	h-08099.emcosoftw	h-09736.emcosoftw	h-10591.emcosoftw	h-10537.emcosoftw	h-09741.emcosoftw				
00:07:01	00:07:11	00:07:25	00:08:14	00:09:13	00:12:01				
h-08791.emcosoftw	h-08103.emcosoftw	h-11069.emcosoftw	h-07107.emcosoftw	h-07895.emcosoftw	h-10364.emcosoftw				
00:13:07	00:14:28	00:19:11	00:20:28	00:29:37	00:29:52				
h-07515.emcosoftw	h-10891.emcosoftw	h-10907.emcosoftw	h-08468.emcosoftw	h-10584.emcosoftw	h-06931.emcosoftw				
00:30:44	00:30:49	00:30:55	00:31:49	00:38:22	00:38:27				
h-06857.emcosoftw	h-06914.emcosoftw	h-09432.emcosoftw	h-10885.emcosoftw	h-06876.emcosoftw	h-06230.emcosoftw				
00:40:30	00:41:18	00:42:00	00:43:26	00:45:03	00:46:14 💙				

Pic 6. State Monitor displayed in a control room

The user interface of the GUI client is customizable, so you may organize it as you need. You can undock the document with hosts statistics, drag it to a dedicated monitor, press F11 to hide the window title and occupy all the available space with it. Refer to the Main features of UI Elements chapter to learn how to reorganize UI elements.

Monitoring Connection Quality

The host state monitoring represented in the previous chapter is one of the main features of the program because it allows you to detect changes in the host state. It is very important to know when the monitored host goes Down, and when the host is Up, but it is also important to estimate its connection quality. Monitoring of the quality of the connection allows you to estimate its current, real-time characteristics and qualify it as Good, Warning, Bad or Critical. Connection quality monitoring allows you to quickly identify potential network problems and resolve them before they are escalated.

How Connection Quality is Detected

The program uses ping results to calculate the connection quality metrics of the monitored host. The connection quality is a real-time value detected at the current moment, so the program uses the latest ping results to calculate the quality metrics. By default, the program uses the packet loss and the latency to detect the connection quality, but it is possible to use the jitter metric as well. The quality metrics are configured on the **Connection Quality** page of the program preferences, where you can tune the settings used **Pic 1**.

Preferences	×
Monitoring	Connection Quality
Monitor Settings <u>Connection Quality</u> Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation Latency Measurement	Ping Monitor can calculate the connection quality for remote hosts based on the set of the latest ping replies. Here you can set up the connection quality parameters. Quality Monitor Specify the number of responses in a sample and the latency percentile to be used for checking the hosts connection quality. Sample Size (ping): 20 0 Estimate Quality Since (ping): 10 0 Latency Percentile (%): 50 v Define the conditions to be used for checking the real-time hosts connection quality
Alerts and Events	that is based on a set of the latest responses. The packet loss percentage in the sample is greater than the value () Warning (%): 5 () Bad (%): 20 ()
General V	The connection quality is Critical when the packet loss percentage is 100%.
Miscellaneous 🗸	Warning (ms): 100 Bad (ms): 200 C The packet delay jitter for the sample is greater than the value Warning (ms): 20 C Bad (ms): 30 C
	Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults	OK Cancel

Pic 1. Connection Quality settings

By default, to calculate the packet loss, latency and jitter for a host, the program uses the last 20 ping results. To detect the connection quality, the program uses both the packet loss and the latency. With the default settings, the quality is reported as Good if the packet loss is below 5% and the latency percentile (50%-ile) is below 100 ms. The Warning or Bad quality is reported if any of the metrics exceeds the specified thresholds. For example, the Warning quality is reported if the packet loss for the monitored host is 10%. The Critical quality is reported when the packet loss is 100%, it means that the host doesn't reply to pings, so there is no connection between the monitoring server and the monitored host.

By default, the common settings configured in the program preferences are used to detect the quality of all the hosts. It is possible to override the common settings and specify individual settings for hosts and groups.

Using Quality Summary to Track the Quality of Hosts and Groups

After the hosts have been monitored, you can see the quality statistics displayed in the **Overview** view, where you can see the number of hosts with a Good, Warning, Bad and Critical quality. By clicking on the displayed numbers, you can navigate to the hosts with the selected characteristics.

To see the quality values of all the hosts, you can switch to **Quality Summary** by clicking the corresponding button on the navigation panel.

By default hosts are displayed as tiles. This representation is designed for control rooms and can show the connection quality of all the hosts on a single screen. The connection quality is represented in different colors, and the key quality metrics are displayed for every host. This view allows you to identify, for example, the hosts with a Bad quality and see the metrics used to define the quality as Bad **Pic 2**.

¢	Quality Summary													
	Monitoring all Hosts 141 2536 84 0													
	💽 🔹 🔛 Hosts 🔛 Groups 🛛 🗄 Group by Severity	4 84 🗩 🔳 📰 📰 📰 🗮 🌱												
•0	h-08791.emcosoftware.com	h-09432.emcosoftware.com	h-07889.emcosoftware.com	h-06314.emcosoftware.com										
*	Group: North AmericalUnited States/Lincoln Packet Loss: 25% Latency: 144.5 ms	Group: North America\United States\Weatherford Packet Loss: 20% Latency: 156.8 ms	Group: North America\United States\Monticello Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 201.97 ms	Group: North America\United States\New York Packet Loss: 55% Latency: 111.79 ms										
	Bad < 1 sec	Warning 00:00:18	Bad 00:00:44	Bad 00:01:06										
	h-06447.emcosoftware.com	h-07061.emcosoftware.com	h-07888.emcosoftware.com	h-10829.emcosoftware.com										
	Group: North America\United States\Bowie Packet Loss: 10% Latency: 170.26 ms	Group: North America\United States\Dallas Packet Loss: 20% Latency: 152.69 ms	Group: North America\United States\Monticello Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 201.64 ms	Group: North America\United S\Newport News Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 151.16 ms										
	Warning 00:01:18	Warning 00:02:25	Bad 00:03:41	Warning 00:04:43										
	h-08364.emcosoftware.com	h-09114.emcosoftware.com	h-09116.emcosoftware.com	h-07025.emcosoftware.com										
	Group: North America/United States/St Louis Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 137,24 ms	Group: North America\United\Pompano Beach Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 144.38 ms	Group: North America/United\Pompano Beach Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 145.36 ms	Group: North America\United States\Dallas Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 152.62 ms										
	Warning 00:04:58	Warning 00:08:14	Warning 00:09:30	Warning 00:09:50										
	h-09115.emcosoftware.com	h-05812.emcosoftware.com	h-11129.emcosoftware.com	h-08648.emcosoftware.com										
	Group: North America\United\Pompano Beach	Group: North America\United States\Ashburn	Group: North America\United\San Luis Obispo	Group: North America\United States\Portland										

Pic 2. The Quality Summary displaying hosts as tiles

Alternatively you can display hosts and their quality as a table **Pic 3**. Click the **Table** button located on the toolbar above the displayed data to switch to the table presentation.

6	Quality Summar	у									
		*									
	Monitoring all Hosts										
	141 2536 84 0										
	- Hosts D Grou	uns de Group by Severity	AL 👥 🗔 🔍				. 👻				
adar .		Constant of second									
	rvame 🔺	Group	Quality	Duration A	PL (76)	Latency (ms)	Atter (ms)				
-0	h-11129.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:00:23	10.00	194.26					
	h-00/91.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	D-BO	00:01:01	35.00	100.00					
74	h-09432.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:01:19	15.00	156.76					
	h-0/589.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Bad	00:01:45	0.00	203.67					
	n-06514.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Bad	00:02:07	85.00	111.88					
	h-06447.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:02:19	5.00	169.84					
	h-0/061.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:03:26	0.00	152.09					
	h-07565.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Bad	00:04:42	0.00	202.48					
	h-10529.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:05:44	0.00	150.49					
	h-08364.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:05:59	0.00	137.22					
	n-09114.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:09:15	0.00	143.88					
	h-09116.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:10:31	0.00	144.37					
	h-07025.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:10:51	0.00	152.55					
	h-09115.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:10:52	0.00	140.79					
	h-05812.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:12:31	15.00	127.71					
	h-06648.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Bad	00:12:36	0.00	200.75					
	h-10553.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:13:23	0.00	188.32					
	h-06145.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:13:41	0.00	127.79					
	h-00931.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:13:50	0.00	170.78					
	h-0/951.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:15:55	0.00	109.42					
	h-0/944.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:14:03	0.00	169.57					
	h-06935.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:14:04	5.00	1/0.97					
	h-0/916.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:14:05	0.00	170.60					
	n-0/906.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:14:06	0.00	184.44					
	h-0/963.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:14:11	0.00	169.35					
	h-0/949.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:14:15	0.00	170.89					
	n-visez.emcosoftware.com	North America United Stat	warning	00:14:16	0.00	109.50					
	n-0/095.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:15:03	0.00	1/1.39					
	h-vois/.emcosoftware.com	North America United Stat	warning	00:15:23	0.00	143.55					
	n-voxco.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	warning	00:18:48	0.00	156.72					
	h-07217.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Critical	00:19:45	100.00						
	h-07431.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:22:44	0.00						

Pic 3. Quality Summary displayed as a table

The data visualization in **Quality Summary** is similar to the data visualization in **State Summary**, so you can use the same approaches to managing data. In particular, you can display hosts and groups in the view and use data sorting, grouping and filtering features, which are explained in the Monitoring Host State chapter.

In the **Quality Summary** page you can click a host to drill-down and see quality metrics for the host. The latest ping results used to calculate the quality metrics are displayed in a chart together with the latency percentile value. On the same screen, you can also see the packets distribution chart and the calculated metrics of the packet loss, latency and jitter.

•	h-11129.emc	osoftware.com								\uparrow	Statistics	Alerts	State	Quality
6	North America\Unite Country Code: US, Reg	ed States\San Luis Obispo pion/Code: California/CA												÷
2	Export Raw Data	۵												0
8	Warning ① Since: 9/22/2022 #	195	Packets (Latest 20)											
	Packet Loss: 10%	Latency: 0 194.	3 ms	192 -	194 .3 ms									
	Pad	cets Distribution (Latest 20		(su) 189 - (su) 186 - 183 - 180 - 177 -										
	0			Quality										
	190 19	2 194 195	198		-18	-16	-14	-12	-10	-8	-6	-4	-2	o
	Packet Loss: 10%	Latency: • 194.3 ms	Jitter: 0.16 ms			Qualit	Packets:	Latency Warning	50 Percentile	Lost 🗌 (cal 📗 Pendi	Unreachable ing 🔀 Unreacha	able		
	Recent Intervals	0												
	📴 Export • 📖													0
	Varning Warning Bad Warning Bad Warning Warning	Start 9/22/2022 8:31:42 AM 9/22/2022 8:31:41 AM 9/22/2022 8:19:32 AM 9/22/2022 8:19:32 AM 9/22/2022 8:19:03 AM 9/22/2022 8:14:05 AM	End 9/22/2022 &33:12 9/22/2022 &31:42 9/22/2022 &31:41 9/22/2022 &19:32 9/22/2022 &19:32	AM 00 AM 00 AM 00 AM 00 AM 00 AM 00	uration 1:01:30 1:00:01 1:12:09 1:02:29 1:02:58									^

Pic 4. Quality metrics of a host

By navigating to host details, you can see the ping results for the host in real-time and track the quality changes.

Best Practices of Connection Quality Monitoring

To monitor the connection quality, you can use the same approaches as explained in the Monitoring Host State chapter. If you plan to use the program in a control room, you can open **Quality Summary** for a visual tracking of quality changes. For example, you can configure a filter to display hosts with a Critical, Bad and Warning quality only, so if any host with those characteristics appears on the screen, you will be able to take the required actions to resolve the problem.

Another approach is based on using notifications sent by the program when the quality of the connection to a host changes. For example, you can create an alert that will send you notifications when connection quality reaches a specified value. In this case, you don't need to open the GUI client because the program will notify you about all problems itself. The notification messages contain detailed information about the host and its metrics.

By default, connection quality notifications are turned off in the program preferences, so you need to enable them. This topic is described in the Managing Notifications chapter.

How Alerts Work

Alerts help you to detect problems with monitored hosts quickly and easily. An alert is a real-time entity created by the program when a host's monitoring characteristics meet the configured problem detection criteria. The program detects and reports active alerts - current issues identified on monitored hosts - and notifies you through email, sound alerts, and Windows Tray balloons when alerts are started or resolved. The program also stores and displays the alerts history, providing an overview of previously detected issues to help you track monitoring events over time.

There are two preconfigured alert types: one for when a host is down and another for when the host's connection quality is unsatisfactory, classified as Bad or Critical. You can modify existing alert types or create new ones, if needed.

Alerts provide insight into the current status of the monitoring system. The **Overview** page, accessible from the vertical navigation panel on the main screen, displays alert information. The **Alerts** section shows the number of active alerts in the system.

You can view detailed alert information on the **Alerts Summary** page, accessible via the corresponding button on the navigation panel. The top view on this page lists active alerts, showing the affected hosts and the alerts currently detected on them. Below it, the **Alerts History** view displays alerts recorded within a selected time interval. These alerts have already been resolved, but you can review them to track previously reported problems **Pic 1**.

									-				
Monitori	ng alerts for all Hosts								4				
0	2 2	0											
🥖 Edit	📑 🖞 All 🕼 Active 🗘 Ackno	wledged 😵 📄 🗮	🚍 📰 🍞										
Severity 👻	Name	Host	1	Start	(Duration 👻	State	e React	ivation				
Major	Host Down	Headquarters (hg.emcosoftware	e.com)	2/1/2025 3:29:25 A	М	02:43:03	Activ	/e					
Major	Host Down	h-00528.emcosoftware.com	2	2/2/2025 11:25:33	PM	00:40:34	Activ	/e					
🚯 Major	Connection Quality: Unsatisfactory	tesla.com	2	2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	00:01:27	Activ	/e					
🗸 Minor	Big latency	windows.com	1	2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM	00:40:08 Active 00:40:08 Active		/e					
🗸 Minor	Big latency	microsoft.com	2	2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM			/e					
💎 Minor	Big latency	yahoo.com	2/2/2025 11:54:36 PM					/e					
💎 Minor	Big latency	tesla.com	2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	Activ	/e							
			,										
Alerts H	listory												
Alerts H	listory d: 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/202	25 6:17 AM) • 📑 Export • 🎈	8	= = • •	r								
Alerts H	listory 4: 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name	25 6:17 AM) • 📑 Export • 💡 Host Si	💡 📄 tart		End		∓ D	uration	Statu				
Alerts H	listory 4: 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name Big latency	25 6:17 AM) ¥ 📑 Export ¥ 💡 Host Si tesla.com 2.	tart	28:22 AM	End 2/1/2025 4:3	34:21 AM	▼ D	uration 00:05:59	Statu Reso				
Alerts H	listory 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name Big latency Big latency	Es 6:17 AM) • Export • Host Si tesla.com 2 tesla.com 2	tart /1/2025 4: /1/2025 4:	28:22 AM 13:25 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	34:21 AM 23:29 AM	₹ D	00:05:59 00:10:04	Statu Reso Reso				
Alerts H	listory 2: 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name Big latency Big latency Quality critical	25 6:17 AM) * Export * Host Si tesla.com 2 tesla.com 2 intel.com 2	tart /1/2025 4: /1/2025 4: /1/2025 3:-	28:22 AM 13:25 AM 47:00 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	34:21 AM 23:29 AM 12:05 AM	¥ D	00:05:59 00:10:04 00:25:05	Statu Reso Cano				
Alerts H Period Severity Minor Critical Major	listory 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name Big latency Big latency Quality critical Host Down	tesla.com 22 intel.com 22 i	tart /1/2025 4: /1/2025 4: /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:-	28:22 AM 13:25 AM 47:00 AM 42:05 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	34:21 AM 23:29 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM	₹ D	00:05:59 00:10:04 00:25:05 00:30:00	State Reso Cano Cano				
Alerts H Period Severity Minor Critical Major Critical	listory 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/20) Name Big latency Big latency Quality critical Host Down Quality critical	tesla.com 22 intel.com 22 nvidia.com 22 Nitesla.com 22 Ni	tart /1/2025 4: /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:-	28:22 AM 13:25 AM 47:00 AM 42:05 AM 47:00 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	84:21 AM 23:29 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:01 AM	₹ D	00:05:59 00:10:04 00:25:05 00:30:00 00:25:01	State Reso Cano Cano Cano Cano				
Alerts H Period Severity Minor Critical Major Critical Major	listory 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/202 Name Big latency Big latency Quality critical Host Down Quality critical Host Down	Itesia.com 22 intel.com 22 nvidia.com 22 nvidia.	tart (1/2025 4: /1/2025 4: /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:- /1/2025 3:-	28:22 AM 13:25 AM 47:00 AM 42:05 AM 47:00 AM 47:00 AM 41:59 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	84:21 AM 23:29 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:01 AM 12:01 AM	₹ D	uration 00:05:59 00:10:04 00:25:05 00:30:00 00:25:01 00:30:02	Statu Reso Cano Cano Cano Cano Cano				
Alerts H Period Severity Minor Critical Major Critical Major Critical	listory 24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/202 Name Big latency Big latency Quality critical Host Down Quality critical Host Down Quality critical	Es 6:17 AM) * Export * Host Si tesla.com 2 intel.com 2 intel.com 2 nvidia.com 2 nvidia.com 2 h-00023.emcosoftware.com 2	tart /1/2025 4: /1/2025 3: /1/2025 3: /1/2025 3: /1/2025 3: /1/2025 3: /1/2025 3:	28:22 AM 13:25 AM 47:00 AM 42:05 AM 47:00 AM 47:00 AM 41:59 AM 46:59 AM	End 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4: 2/1/2025 4:	84:21 AM 23:29 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:05 AM 12:01 AM 12:01 AM 12:01 AM	▼ D	00:05:59 00:10:04 00:25:05 00:30:00 00:25:01 00:30:02 00:24:13	Stati Reso Can Can Can Can Can				

Pic 1. Active alerts and the alerts history

The active alerts list, displayed at the top, shows the name of alert, host name for which this alert is reported, alert severity, duration of the alert and alert state. Each alert in the list represents an issue with a host, triggered when the host's monitoring parameters meet the criteria configured for the alert.

The **Alerts History** view, displayed at the bottom, shows past alerts within a selected time interval. The fields are similar to those in the active alerts table, with additional details such as the alert's end date and time, status, indicating whether it was resolved or canceled. The host name is clickable in both tables. Clicking a host name filters the page to display alerts for that specific host. You can return to viewing alerts for all hosts by clicking the **Up** button in the top navigation bar.

Alerts can be configured on the **Alerts and Notification** page of the preferences dialog. You can configure as many alerts as you need and each alert has its own condition. If this condition is satisfied, a problem is detected and an alert is reported by the program.

You can use simple or complex logical conditions for alerts. For example, one of the preconfigured alerts is reported when a host state is Down. You can create more complicated conditions and use any real-time characteristics detected for a host. For example, you can report an alert when packet loss or latency is over a specific value. You can combine criteria using logical operators to create complex conditions **Pic 2**.

Jostable co	nnection' - Edit Alert	
Set up a alert you	Alert specific condition to monitor certain characteristics of the host and u when their value indicates a problem.	Â
General	Advanced	
The name a understand	and condition you provide should be specific enough to allow you to e d the reason of the problem. The comment could be useful in complex (asily cases.
Name:	Unstable connection	
Comment:		
Condition:		
And Qua Pack	lity ≠ Good eet Loss > 10	
	1 miles	

Pic 2. Alert configuration

The program allows you to create multiple alerts, if you need to check different monitoring characteristics. In this case multiple alerts can be reported for the same host. Set different severity for alerts to be able to filter and sort alerts. You can navigate to a host level by clicking the host name on the Alerts Summary page. In this case you can see alerts reported for the selected hosts only.

Alerts can be used for indication of the problems. If there are alerts reported, it means that there are some problems with the hosts for which the alerts are reported. You can acknowledge alerts when you work on a problem. To acknowledge an alert right-click it and select Acknowledge and a time period during with an alert will be acknowledged. Acknowledged alerts are displayed with the corresponding status in the list, so you can review active and acknowledged alerts separately. If an acknowledgment period is passed, but the alert condition is still satisfied, the program will change the alert state to active.

The program can automatically notify you by e-mail, sound or System Tray balloons when an alert is started and ended if notifications are configured for the alert in the program preferences. You can learn how notifications work in the **Managing Notifications** chapter.

Analyzing Hosts Statistics

The program allows you to access the detailed monitoring statistics for any host. While the host state and the connection quality are real-time characteristics, the statistics allows you to analyze the host metrics and performance during any historical period.

When working with historical data, it's important to remember that the result depends on the selected period. In other words, statistics is always reported for a particular period. For example, the uptime metrics for yesterday and for the previous week will be different, so you need to select the required period first to work with statistical data.

Statistical data for all hosts collected by the program is available in the **Statistics Summary** page **Pic 1**. Click the corresponding button on the navigation panel to open **Statistics Summary**. First, you need to select the required period in the corresponding combo-box located on the view's toolbar.

6	Statistics Summa	ry								1	•	Statistics	Alerts	State Quality
	Statistics for all Hosts													#
	2 2492	203	814 											
1	🗙 🖻 🕄 🚼 E	8 🗐 🛅 🗂 🍸											Period: Y	esterday (9/30/2022) * 🔕
	Host Name 🔺	Group	Activity Time	Uptime (%)	Outages	PL (%)	Perf	MOS	Avg (ms)	Dev (ms)	CV (%)	Min (ms)	Max (ms)	
	h-00000.emcosoftware.com	Africa\South Africa	23:58:41	99.54	19	2.47	Low	*****	215.29	38.08	17.69	190.17	1434.93	^
-	h-00001.emcosoftware.com	Africa\South Africa\	23:58:46	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	195.45	38.65	19.78	135.63	1407.14	
N	h-00002.emcosoftware.com	Africa\South Africa\	23:58:35	99.99	2	1.28	Medium	*****	198.03	43.38	21.91	144.43	1286.43	
	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:31	0.00	2	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.13	40.08	22.89	139.54	1245.24	
	h-05674.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.00	Medium	*****	177.48	42.57	23.98	138.13	1244.59	
	h-05675.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	173.21	32.27	18.63	138.15	1435.08	
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:45	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	177.21	39.61	22.35	138.16	1185.38	
	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:51	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	174.15	29.99	17.22	125.97	939.28	
	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:41	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	174.59	34.88	19.98	153.13	1093.69	
	h-05681.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	175.94	30.22	17.17	154.06	1184.92	
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:41	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	174.79	34.88	19.96	153.35	1093.72	
	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.00	Medium	*****	174.90	35.32	20.19	154.83	1184.96	
	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:40	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.66	32.67	18.60	155.77	1072.14	
	h-05689.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	174.55	38.47	22.04	152.30	1181.85	
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.00	Medium	*****	175.71	35.37	20.13	152.27	1184.84	
	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:51	100.00	0	0.04	Medium	*****	175.59	34.10	19.42	125.96	1181.89	
	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.34	35.04	19.98	161.13	1435.12	
	h-05693.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:49	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	177.22	38.97	21.99	144.54	1244.32	
	h-05694.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.10	38.62	22.06	161.93	1181.92	
	h-05695.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.25	35.10	20.03	161.29	1435.15	
	h-05696.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.55	35.32	20.12	161.28	1071.02	
	h-05697.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:31	100.00	0	0.00	Medium	*****	175.51	38.14	21.73	161.07	1094.21	
	h-05698.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:31	100.00	0	0.00	Medium	*****	177.43	39.00	21.98	159.35	1094.24	
	h-05699.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:51	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	173.91	30.00	17.25	127.05	939.18	
	h-05700.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	174.94	34.68	19.82	160.15	1071.82	
	h-05701.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.13	34.91	19.94	161.24	1071.79	
	h-05702.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	176.52	39.00	22.10	162.22	1181.95	
	h-05703.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:31	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	174.55	33.98	19.47	157,49	1094.85	
	h-05704.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	175.95	36.87	20.95	163.04	1182.02	
	h-05705.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:41	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	174.88	37.45	21.41	161.08	1212.53	
	h-05706.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	23:58:50	100.00	0	0.01	Medium	*****	174.40	31.74	18.20	154.74	904.96	¥

Pic 1. Statistics for yesterday displayed for all hosts

The **Statistics Summary** page shows general data for all the hosts during a selected period, so that you can see what the uptime, the packet loss, the latency, the number of outages and other values are for every monitored host. The host statistics is displayed as a table, so you can sort and filter the displayed data, reorganize the displayed columns and use other standard features available for any grid view.
Reviewing Host Statistics

The **Statistics Summary** page shows data for all the hosts. To see the statistics for a particular host, you can click on its name to drill-down to the selected host **Pic 2**. The host statistics is displayed for a specific period selected in the header of the view.



Pic 2. Host statistics for yesterday

The host statistics shows how various metrics change over time. The program displays aggregated information on charts, so that you can track the latency, uptime, state and quality changes. The program reports the number of detected outages and the time intervals during which the host had different state and quality characteristics.

Estimating Historical Host Performance

The host state and quality are real-time characteristics that constantly change. For example, the host quality may change many times during a day, so if we need to estimate the host performance for the entire day, we cannot use quality. For estimating the host performance during a historical period, we can use other metrics such as the uptime percentage, packet loss percentage, average latency, latency deviation, latency coefficient of variation (CV) and mean opinion score (MOS) calculated for the entire period.

To estimate the host performance, the program calculates metrics for the selected period and compares the metrics with the defined thresholds. For example, using the default settings, the host performance is considered as High if the uptime exceeds 99%, Medium if it is over 95% or Low if it is below 95%. Other metrics have different thresholds, for example, the host performance is considered as High if the packet loss is below 5%, Medium if it's below 20% and Low if it exceeds 20%. The program analyzes the metrics and sets the performance rank for the host as the lowest rank of all the metrics. The overall host performance during the selected time interval is displayed in **Statistics**, and the metrics that are considered Medium and Low, are highlighted, so that you can easily understand what the actual performance rank set for the host is based on.

If required, you can tune the thresholds used to estimate the host performance on the **Performance** page of the program preferences. Those settings are applied to all the hosts, but it is possible to override the common settings and specify custom settings for a host or group **Pic 3**.

'h-00000.emcosoftware.com' - Ed	it Host X
Specify Monitored Host Info Provide a host address to mor and override the monitoring s	rmation itor along with additional host information, indicate if the host uses a dynamic IP address, ettings, if required.
General Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Gateway Options Intervals Automation Alerts and Notifications Notification Time Recipients Custom Fields	Specify the conditions to be used for calculating hosts' performance for specific time periods. Image parent configuration Change parent configuration Reset to parent The uptime percentage is below the value () Medium (%): 99 () Low (%): 95 () The performance is Faulty when the downtime percentage is 100%. The packet loss percentage is greater than the value () Medium (%): 5 () Low (%): 20 () The average latency value is greater than the value () Medium (%): 100 () Low (ms): 20 () The latency deviation is greater than the value () Medium (ms): 100 () Low (ms): 20 () The latency deviation is greater than the value () Medium (ms): 100 () Low (ms): 30 () Image: 10 () Low (%): 33 () Ignore latency of less than (ms): 10 () Medium: 4 () Low: 2 ()
	Save Cancel

Pic 3. Tuning performance thresholds for a host

Host performance can be considered as the aggregate of all the metrics during a specific period. For example, when analyzing a weekly host performance, you may look into the daily host performance and see how it changed over time. It allows you to find the days when the performance was Low and check the detailed statistics for those days to identify the reason of the problem.

Reviewing Ping Data on the Timeline

The program stores all collected ping data, which allows you to see the latency chart for any host and any period. To open the timeline, click the on the **Timeline** button located on the header of the **Statistics** view displaying a host. The **Timeline** view allows you to choose the time range to be displayed on the chart, using the range selector located at the bottom. At the top, you can see charts showing the ping latency and the host state and quality during the selected period **Pic 4**.



Pic 4. Timeline view

When reviewing data displayed in the **Statistics** view, you can click on values represented in the charts to open **Timeline** for a specific time range. For example, when reviewing statistics for a day, you can see data aggregated by hours in the **Latency & Uptime** and **State &**

Quality charts. You can click on any hour value displayed in the charts to see pings for that hour in the **Timeline** view.

In the **Timeline** view, you can see the results of every ping sent to the monitored host. To see the latency value, read the data displayed in the tooltip that appears when you hover the mouse pointer over the chart. It is possible to export the ping data displayed in the **Timeline** view by clicking on the **Export Raw Data** button. The ping results are exported as a CSV file that can be opened in external programs.

Practical Examples of Using Statistics

How to use statistics to find and analyze problems? For example, we need to analyze the network outages that happened yesterday to find problematic hosts. So how can we use the program in this case?

In this task, we need to analyze data in the historical period and work with statistics that is available in **Statistics Summary**. We need to analyze the data for yesterday, so we should select this period. As a result, we can see the statistics of all the hosts for yesterday displayed as a table. How can we find problematic hosts? There are multiple approaches to this, and we can use one depending on our needs.

For example, we can sort the displayed data by the **Perf** (i.e. performance) column, so the hosts with a Low performance are displayed at the top, and we can easily find problematic hosts. It is helpful, but it isn't sufficient, because hosts with a Low performance can have no outages (some hosts have a high latency, so they show a Low performance, but they work stably and with no outages). So how can we find hosts with outages?

To show the hosts with at least one outage that took place yesterday, we can use a filter. When we press the **Filter Editor** button on the toolbar, the editor appears and we can specify a filter condition **Pic 5**. After the filter is applied, the displayed data change and we can see only hosts with outages.

ilter Editor	×
Configure Filter Condition Provide the filter condition to be applied to the view. You can filter the column filter conditions by any column and group any way you want.	9
And Outages > 0	
Apply OK C	ancel

Pic 5. Configuring filter in Statistics

If you apply a filter, it is saved until you reset it. The current filter condition is displayed at the bottom of the grid. To reset the filter and display all the hosts, you need to click on the **Close** button located to the left of the filter.

After applying the filter, we can see all the problematic hosts and start to analyze them one by one. The hosts with the maximum number of outages should be analyzed first, so we can sort the displayed data by the **Outages** column and click on the host displayed at the top to open its statistics.

To analyze the host statistics, first we need to know when the outages happened. Therefore, we can scroll down to the **Intervals** table and switch it to display state intervals. It shows a list of host state intervals detected during yesterday, but we need to analyze the Down intervals only, so a corresponding filter should be applied. As a result, we can only see the Down intervals and their start and end time and duration. We can sort the displayed data by duration to display the longest outages at the top of the list **Pic 6**.

h-00000.en	ncosoftware.com						↑ Statistics Alerts State Q
Africa\South Afric Country Code: ZA	ta						
📸 Report As 🔹	💁 Export 🔹 🛞						Period: Yesterday (9/30/2022
Intervals							
📴 Export * 🥽	🛅 🗮 🔜 🖬	7					
Type	Start	End	Duration	*			
(-1) Up	9/30/2022 11:53:28 PM	10/1/2022 12:58:55 AM *	01:05:27				
(-1) Up	9/30/2022 10:06:50 AM	9/30/2022 10:53:34 AM	00:46:44				
(-1) Up	9/30/2022 1:16:35 AM	9/30/2022 1:43:16 AM	00:26:41				
(-1) Up	9/30/2022 2:52:39 AM	9/30/2022 3:17:10 AM	00:24:31				
(-1) Up	9/30/2022 9:25:42 PM	9/30/2022 9:44:41 PM	00:18:59				
(-1) Down	9/30/2022 4:46:26 PM	9/30/2022 4:48:05 PM	00:01:39				
(-1) Down	9/30/2022 12:16:30 PM	9/30/2022 12:17:49 PM	00:01:19				
(1-1) Up	9/30/2022 6:36:58 AM	9/30/2022 6:37:53 AM	00:00:55				
((-)) Up	9/30/2022 4:32:02 AM	9/30/2022 4:32:37 AM	00:00:35				
(-i) Down	9/30/2022 7:51:03 AM	9/30/2022 7:51:32 AM	00:00:29				
(H) Down	9/30/2022 1:43:16 AM	9/30/2022 1:43:35 AM	00:00:19				
(H) Down	9/30/2022 11:53:09 PM	9/30/2022 11:53:28 PM	00:00:19				
(I-I) Down	9/30/2022 4:31:43 AM	9/30/2022 4:32:02 AM	00:00:19				
Events							
Export •							
Title	Description				Time	Ŧ	
Host State	The state of the 'h- connection was res	00000.emcosoftware.com' hos tored after being down for 00	t was changed :00:19.	to 'Up'. The	9/30/2022 11:53:28 PM		
🛦 Host State	The state of the 'h- The connection wa time (IP status: 1101	00000.emcosoftware.com' hos s lost. Ping reply was not recei 10).	t was changed ved within the	to 'Down'. allotted	9/30/2022 11:53:09 PM		
Host State	The state of the 'h- connection was res	00000.emcosoftware.com' hos tored after being down for 00	t was changed :00:09.	to 'Up'. The	9/30/2022 9:44:50 PM		
🙏 Host State	The state of the 'h- The connection wa time (IP status: 1101	00000.emcosoftware.com' hos s lost. Ping reply was not recei 10].	t was changed ved within the	to 'Down'. allotted	9/30/2022 9:44:41 PM		
Host State	The state of the 'h-	00000.emcosoftware.com' hos	t was changed	to 'Up'. The	9/30/2022 9:25:42 PM		

Pic 6. List of the host outages that happened yesterday

To get detailed information on the host performance, we can review the **Latency & Uptime** chart to see how the host metrics changed during the day. Note that the latency chart shows the host performance as highlighted backgrounds, so if the host performance was Low during a particular time interval, you can see that it is highlighted with a red background on the chart. You can hover the mouse pointer over the chart to see the latency minimum, maximum, average and deviation displayed for every hour.

The latency, uptime, state and quality charts in **Statistics** show aggregate metrics. In particular, when we check the statistics for yesterday, the displayed data is aggregated by hours. It helps you to identify the hour when the problem happened and drill-down to see detailed information for this hour. For example, the **State & Quality** chart displays hourly quality values, so we can easily find the hour when the quality was Bad. It is possible to click on this chart value for the program to open **Timeline** for the selected hour, so that you can see all the ping results during that hour.

What is State, Quality, Performance and Statistics

In the previous chapters, you could learn how the program detects the host state, the connection quality, and the host performance and how to use different views of the program to assess the required characteristics. In this chapter, you can learn what features of the program you can use in different cases and how to interpret the reported data.

You can use Ping Monitor for the following tasks:

- **Track real-time changes**. Host state and connection quality monitoring deals with the current real-time status of the monitored host.
- **Analyze statistics for a historical period**. Host statistics and host performance deal with historical information for a specific time range.

Tracking the real-time status and detecting its changes are the main features of monitoring systems. Ping Monitor allows you to track the host state and the connection quality. At the same time, Ping Monitor can be used as an analytical tool that collects statistics and allows auditing collected data for any historical period.

To decide what feature of the program you should use, you need to understand first whether you have to work with real-time or historical data. The host state and quality indicate the real-time status of the monitored host, whereas host statistics and host performance operate with historical data for a specific time range.

Below you can find a brief explanation of the main concepts of the program.

State

The host state is a real-time characteristic of a host used to determine if the host is reachable or not. If the host is Up, it means that it works and replies to ping requests. If the host is Down, it means that the host doesn't reply to ping requests, so it is unreachable. The program monitors the states of all the hosts in real-time and displays the states on the **State Summary** page. The program can send you notifications when the host states change. Learn more about the host states in the Monitoring Host State chapter.

Quality

The connection quality is a real-time characteristic of the host used to estimate the quality of the connection between the monitoring server and the monitored host. When a host is Up, the connection quality allows you to assess how good the connection to the host is, using various real-time metrics. When the host is Up, the quality can be Good, Warning or Bad depending on its metrics. When the host is Down, the quality is Critical, which means the host is unreachable. The host quality is measured based on real-time metrics such as the packet loss percentage, latency percentile and jitter. The program detects real-time changes in the connection quality to send notifications and display the current status on the **Quality Summary** page. Learn more about the connection quality in the Monitoring Connection Quality chapter.

Which one do you need to track: the state or the quality? It depends on your goal. If you want to know whether a host is Up or Down, you should monitor the host state. In other cases, it makes sense to monitor the connection quality because that would give you more detailed information and enable you to resolve problems proactively before they are escalated

to the next level. For example, you can start resolving the problem when the quality becomes Warning, whereas the monitored host is still reachable.

Statistics

The host statistics is a set of collected ping results and aggregate data for a historical period. Having this information available, the program allows analyzing the host performance during any historical time interval. For example, you can analyze the host statistics during the last week, look into the daily performance of this host day by day and find time intervals during which problems occurred.

Performance

The host performance is a characteristic that allows you to assess how the host worked during the selected historical period. The host performance can be High, Medium, Low and Faulty. The host performance is evaluated using different statistical metrics calculated for the selected period. These metrics are the uptime percentage, packet loss percentage, average latency, latency deviation, CV (latency coefficient of variation) and MOS (mean opinion score). Learn more about the host statistics and performance in the Analyzing Host Statistics chapter.

What is the difference between the host quality and the host performance? The host quality is a real-time characteristic calculated using the current ping results. The host performance is a historical characteristic calculated for a selected historical period. Therefore, if you need to assess the real-time status of a host to understand how it works right now, you should use host quality. If you need to estimate the host characteristics for yesterday, for example, you should use the host performance.

Managing Notifications

When an alert is started or ended and when the host state or quality change, the program can notify you accordingly by sending e-mails, executing custom commands/scripts/executables, playing sounds and showing balloons in Windows Tray. You can configure notifications on the **Alerts and Notifications** and **Balloons and Sounds** pages of the program preferences **Pic 1**.

Preferences						×
Monitoring	^	Â	erts and Notifications			
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals		Ping even even Noti	Monitor can send notifications by e-mail and run cu ts. To receive those messages, configure the e-mail o ts to be notified about. fications Configuration Configure alerts and set up the server-side notifier monitored hosts.	stom actions options and o cations of ale	on certain define the a rts and ever	alerts and lerts and nts for the
Automation			📲 New 🕶 🥒 🗡 🔚 📟 🧱			0
Latency Measurement			Notification	Timeout	Iterations	Interval
Alerts and Events	~		▲ □ ② Domain Controller is Down ☑ ③ E-Mail Message ☑ ④ Heat is Down	0	1	10
Alerts and Notifications Balloons and Sounds Notification Mail Templates Notification Time			 A Stris Down E-Mail Message E-Mail Message Custom E-Mail Message Custom E-Mail Message E-Mail Message E-Mail Message Host's Connection Quality is Unsatis 	0 10 0	1 3 1	10 300 10
General	^		 □ ▲ E-Mail Message ▶ ✓ Ø On Down State 	0	1	10
Recipients Custom Fields Reports Storage Reports Customization Report Mail Templates			 ✓ Group messages to a single email within the i ☐ Group events by bost within the polification 	nterval (sec):	10	>
External Tools			Learn more about Notifications	micssaye		
Miscellaneous	^	~		Restore D	efaults	Apply
Restore Defaults					OK	Cancel

Pic 1. Alerts and Notifications page

There are two types of notifications: server and client notifications. Server notifications are implemented by sending e-mail messages and executing custom actions. The server sends such notifications regardless of the availability of connected GUI clients. Server notifications are managed on the **Alerts and Notifications** page of preferences. Client notifications are implemented by GUI clients; so sounds and Windows Tray notifications are initiated only when there are clients connected. Thus, sounds are played and Windows Tray balloons are displayed on the computers where GUI clients are running. Client notifications are managed on the **Balloons and Sounds** page of preferences.

It makes sense to enable Windows Tray notifications and sounds only if you monitor a small number of hosts, otherwise those notifications can be very annoying.

Notifications are triggered subject to different conditions:

- **On Alerts**. These notifications are sent when alerts are started and ended. By default e-mail message notification is enabled for the preconfigured alert that is created when a host goes Down.
- **On Events**. These notifications are sent when a host state or quality are changed. You can configure events on which notifications should be sent.

On the **Alerts and Notifications** page of preferences you can configure when notifications should be sent. To add a notification you need to select an alert and use the context submenu **New** to add an e-mail notification or a custom action. When an e-mail notification is added to an alert you can use checkbox to enable and disable assigned notification. You can also add notifications for specific events, such as On Up State, On Down State and On Critical, Bad, Warning and Good Quality. You can add these notifications from the New submenu of the context menu.

Each notification has configuration parameters. You can change the parameters by editing a notification using the context menu. The default list of recipients used for all notifications is configured on the **Recipients** page of preferences. You can override default preferences and set custom recipients for each notification. The default notification time parameters are configured on the **Notification Time** page of preferences. Notifications can be sent at the configured days of the week and period only. You can configure the program to repeat notifications and delay notifications if required. You can override these settings and specify custom settings for each notification by editing the notification **Pic 2**.

'E-Mail Message' - Edit E-Mail Message X
Configure E-Mail Message Set up the e-mail message notification to be sent when the alert occurs for a monitored host.
General Advanced
Override the acceptable hours, initial delay, maximum number and interval of the notifications sent by the program.
✓ Override configuration Reset to common
Define if this e-mail message notification should be triggered after a specific timeout and indicate the number of recurring notifications, if required, and the interval between occurrences(ignored by the alert-resolved notification).
Timeout (min): 10 🐈 Iterations: 3 🗸 Interval (sec): 300 🗸
Choose if you would not like to be disturbed with this during certain time intervals. Then the notification start will be delayed till an acceptable time.
Trigger this notification only during the following hours
🖌 Sun 🖌 Mon 🗸 Tue 🖌 Wed 🖍 Thu 🖉 Fri 🖉 Sat
From: 9:00 AM 🗸 Till: 6:00 PM 🗸
Apply Cancel

Pic 2. Notification settings

When you enable e-mail notification for an alert you will receive e-mails twice – when an alert is started and when it is ended. You can delay notification by specifying a timeout for notification. In this case the program will send you a notification about created alert after specified timeout. If an alert is ended earlier than the specified timeout, no e-mails are sent.

E-mail notifications of the host state changes are enabled by default, but you need to activate them by specifying SMTP settings on the E-Mail Options page of the program

preferences. On the **Notification Mail Templates** page of the preferences, you may find templates used for e-mail notifications and change them, if required.

If you use e-mail notifications, you may configure them to group messages into a single e-mail. It allows you to reduce the number of e-mails that the program sends in case of a massive outage of the monitored hosts. In addition, the program allows grouping events by host within a notification message.

If required, you can configure the program to execute custom actions, such as commands, scripts or executables, on the server when the host state or quality change. This may be helpful, for example, for integrating Ping Monitor with other systems. This option is explained in the Integration with Other Programs chapter.

Using Custom Notifications for Hosts/Groups

All notifications configured in the program preferences are common and used for all hosts. For example, e-mail recipients configured on the **Recipients** page of the preferences are used for all hosts.

Now let's assume you need to send e-mails to different addresses for a specific group of hosts. Ping Monitor allows overriding common settings and using individual settings for hosts and groups. You may open a host or a group for editing and specify custom notifications settings and e-mail recipients Pic 3.

'Europe' - Edit Group					Х
Configure Group Provide the group properties and t for the hosts from this group, if rea	he list of members to be included into the group, and ove quired. You can add both hosts and other groups into the	rride the m group.	onitoring s	ettings [
General	Specify which alerts and server-side notifications are e parameters if needed.	nabled and	change the	e notification	ns
Monitor Settings	Override configuration	mon config	uration	Reset to con	nmon
Connection Quality	🥒 Edit 🔛 🛗 🧮				٥
Performance	Notification	Timeout	Iterations	Interval	Rest
Gateway Options	✓ ♥ Host is Down	•		10	
Intervals	E-Mail Message	10	2	300	
Automation	A A	10	,	300	
Alerts and Notifications	🗌 🌰 E-Mail Message	0	1	10	
Notification Time					
Recipients					
Custom Fields					
	<i>د</i>				>
	Learn more about Notifications				
			Save	Cance	el

Pic 3. Overriding common notification settings for a group

Using this feature, you may, for example, enable notifications on state change events for all hosts in a specific group, while no notifications of state changes will be sent for other hosts. Or you may specify a list of e-mail recipients for all hosts, override it for a specific group that will use different recipients, and specify still different recipients for a host in the group.

Generating Reports

Ping Monitor includes built-in reporting features, so the program can automatically generate reports for you. Reports can be managed on the **Reports** view, where you can create reports of two types: summary and detailed. What is the difference between those types of reports?

- **Summary report**. This report includes main statistical metrics for multiple hosts. It is represented as a table, with one raw per host. The report includes basic metrics such as the number of outages, uptime, packet loss, performance, MOS, latency average, deviation and CV. This report is similar to information displayed in the **Statistics** view for all hosts.
- **Detailed report**. This report includes all available statistics for multiple hosts. The report includes detailed statistics for a host such as the latency, uptime, state and quality charts, state and quality intervals and other data. This report is similar to information displayed in the **Statistics** view for a host, but it can include data for multiple hosts.

You can manage reports in the **Reports** view. When creating a new report, you should decide whether it should be a summary or a detailed report, then configure the report settings accordingly **Pic 1**.

Europe' - New Detailed R Configure Detailed R	eport ×
Specify a name for the automatic reports, pr	s report, provide an optional report description, choose the recurrence options for generating ovide hosts to generate the report for and configure the output settings.
General	Name: Europe
Members	Choose the recurrence type for generating this report on a regular basis or confirm that this report should only be generated on demand.
Filter	On Demand
Outputs	Recurring
	The report is generated every day at 12:05 AM and contains the statistics for the previous day.
	Specify the time zone to generate this report for. The selected time zone affects the report generation time, when recurrent, the report period and all the times within the report content.
	The local time zone of the server should be used
	◯ Use the following time zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada) 🗸 🗸
	• The report period for the on demand reports is defined when generating the report.
	Summary
	For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at
	Report Settings
	Members: 💡 Add Members
	Outputs: 💡 Configure Outputs
	Description:
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Add Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring a report

To configure a report, you need to specify the following settings:

- **Generation type and recurrence**. A report can be generated on demand, when you initiate its generation manually, or it can be generated automatically. For automatically generated reports, you need to specify the recurrence settings. For example, reports can be generated daily, weekly or monthly.
- Members. You need to configure a list of hosts and groups to be included into the report.
- Filter. You may filter hosts based on specified conditions.
- **Output format**. The program can generate reports as PDF and HTML files and send them by email, if required. The program can also upload the generated reports to a specified FTP server.

Reports are designed to include information about multiple hosts. So how do you manage the reported data? You can use a filter based on the entered condition, for instance **Pic 2**. When you configure a daily report, which is generated automatically every day, you should include all hosts that you need to track into this report. For example, you need to include hosts with downtime to analyze problematic hosts only. The list of those hosts can be different every day depending on the monitoring results, but it will always meet the entered condition and be up-to-date.

'Europe' - New Detailed Re	port	×
Configure Detailed Re Specify a name for this automatic reports, pro	port report, provide an optional report description, choose the recurrence options for generating vide hosts to generate the report for and configure the output settings.	
General	Provide a filter condition to be applied to the statistics for a set of report members. Only data matching the filter condition will be included into this report.	statistics
Members	And	
Filter	Downtime > 0%	
	Add	Cancel

Pic 2. Filter configuration in a report

The reports generated by the program include a preconfigured header and footer. You can customize them and include your own logo and text. This can be configured on the **Reports Customization** page of the program preferences.

Integration with Other Programs

The program includes several features that may help you to integrate it with other systems and programs. For example, you can use Ping Monitor as a tool that registers various events, such as host state and connection quality changes, and integrate Ping Monitor with other systems such as event managers or help desks to notify them about those events. As another example, you can use ping data collected by Ping Monitor and export them for processing into external tools.

Using Custom Actions to Integrate with other Programs

Ping Monitor tracks alerts, the host state and the connection quality to detect their changes, so that the program can notify you of such events. The Managing Notifications chapter provides an overview of the available notification types, including Custom Actions. So, what are Custom Actions and how can you use them?

A Custom Action allows you to run a command, script or executable on the server after a host state or connection quality change. You can configure one or multiple actions for every event on the **Alerts and Notifications** page of the program preferences. You can use Custom Actions to send custom notifications in form of, for example, SMS messages on alerts. Thus, if you have software that can send mobile text messages, you can integrate it with Ping Monitor using Custom Actions. Custom Actions can also be used to integrate the program with third-party event management systems and help desks. Thus, when an alert is created by the program or when the host state or quality change, the program runs the configured Custom Actions that create events and tickets in external systems.

A **Custom Action** should be assigned to an alert or event that will initiate it. On the **Alerts and Notifications** page of the preferences select an alert or event and choose **Custom Action** in the **New** context submenu. The configuration dialog allows you to specify certain actions and commands to be executed. Note that the command will be executed on the computer where Ping Monitor server runs, so the specified script or executable file must be available on the server. You may test the entered command to make sure it works as expected. All other settings are the same as for the other notifications and are explained in the **Managing Notifications** chapter.

Configure	Custom Ad	tion	٠
Set up conditi	the custom ac on is reached	tion to be launched as a notification when the specified for a monitored host.	C:
General	Advanced]	
Specify a d and all the	command or a e required par	path to the program to be executed upon the notification a ameters.	activation
Name:	sms		
On Occur	red: o d:\to	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_I	HOSI ··· I
On Occurr	red: o d:\to	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make	HOS1 ···· I
On Occurr Any o availa	red: • d:\to command or p able on the se	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOS1 ··· I
On Occurr Any o availa	red: 0 d:\to command or p able on the se	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOSI I
On Occurr Any of avails	red: o d:\to command or p able on the se	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOSI I
On Occurr Any o availa	red: • d:\to command or p able on the se	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOSI I
On Occurr Any o availa	red: o d:\to	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOSI I
On Occurr Any o avail	red: o d:\to	ols\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_ rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make rver and does not require any user input.	HOSI I

Pic 1. Configuring a Custom Action

Custom Actions can be executed on alerts and various events, for example, on host Up or Down and on quality changes. If required, you may configure different scripts or executables to process them. Alternatively, you may use a single script or executable and pass the type of event as a command-line parameter.

Note that a Custom Action configured in the preferences will be executed for all the hosts, but how do you know what host triggered the event? In the command-line of Custom Actions, you can use placeholders. For example, the "%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%" placeholder will be replaced by the host name. You can use placeholders to pass information on the host into a Custom Action script or executable as command-line parameters. Learn more about this topic in the Using Placeholders chapter.

As for any notification, Custom Actions configured in the program preferences are used for all the hosts. The program allows overriding the common settings to use individual settings for hosts and groups, if required. It means that you may configure different Custom Actions for hosts and groups.

Exporting Ping Data

Ping Monitor saves ping results for all hosts, so it is possible to export raw ping data and use it in external tools. Ping data exporting options are available in **Statistics** when a host is selected. Open the **Timeline** dialog and use the export option available there. When you initiate ping data export, the program opens the exporting wizard where you can select the scope of the exported data and the export format. The program exports ping data as a .csv file.

Chapter 3: Program Interface Overview

The main window of Ping Monitor Pic 1 displays the Hosts view \triangle , the Reports view \bigcirc , the **Document** view \bigcirc , the Log view \bigcirc , the Access Control view \bigcirc , the Operations view \bigcirc and the Ribbon bar \bigcirc .



Pic 1. The main program window

The **Hosts** view displays the hosts and groups of hosts in the hierarchical structure and is primarily designed for performing hosts management and monitoring activity management. The **Reports** view is designed to display and manage preconfigured monitors performance and availability reports to be generated either on demand or on a regular basis.

The **Log** view shows those events not connected to hosts availability and monitoring activity, such as messages from supplementary operations, reports generation problems, etc. Within the **Access Control** view, you can define the roles and permissions for the users to access the server. If you would like to review and/or cancel the currently running operations, you can use the **Operations** view.

The **Document** view provides you with access to host monitoring information and statistics Pic 2. You can open multiple documents, if required, to display monitoring information for different hosts. On the left side of the document you can find the navigation panel H that allows you to switch the pages in the document to work with the different types of the data.



Pic 2. The Document view

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

Use the navigation panel to work with the following pages. **Overview** provides you with the brief information on the hosts being monitored and their actual state and quality. **Statistics Summary** displays the hosts monitoring statistics for the specified time interval. **Alerts Summary** displays alerts for hosts. You can review all active alerts, alerts history for all hosts and can acknowledge alerts, if you need. **State Summary** can be used to monitor current state of remote hosts. **Quality Summary** allows you to focus on the connection quality to the hosts.

The summary pages allow you to review statistics, alerts, state and quality for multiple hosts at once, but to get details for a specific host, you can click the host name and drill-down to this host to review its characteristics \underline{Pic} . You can switch between host characteristics using buttons, located on the navigation bar \underline{I} .



Pic 3. Host monitoring data

Use the **Up** button to navigate to the upper level. You can switch between host monitoring data pages using **Statistics**, **Alerts**, **State** and **Quality** buttons.

The Document View

The **Document** view provides you with access to all monitoring and statistical information collected by the program. By default it is located at the center of the main screen. The program automatically creates a document with the Document 1 name when you run the program at the first time. It is displayed as a tab. If you need, you can create new documents that will appear on the main screen as new tabs. You can open a document on a screen by switching to the corresponding tab.

You can navigate within a document using the navigation bar A, located at the left side Pic 1. It allows you to switch to the different pages: **Overview**, **Statistics Summary**, **Alerts Summary**, **State Summary** and **Quality Summary**. These pages provide you with the details of the particular aspects of the monitoring data. The summary pages display information about all hosts in the document, but you can also navigate to the host level to see the host details. In the following chapters you can find more information about these pages.

🚮 Do	Si Document 1 🖶 🗙											
¢	Quality Summary B C Alerts State C											
	Monitoring all Hosts											
1	📴 - 🔛 Hosts 🔄 Groups 🚯 Group by Seventy 💱 🔛 🗐 🏢 🔡 📰 🗮											
•	h-09215.emcosoftware.com	h-06930.emcosoftware.com	h-10886.emcosoftware.com	^								
>	Group: North America\United States\Glendale	Group: North America\United States\Dallas	Group: North America\United States\Bayonne									
A	Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 202.91 ms	Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 191.05 ms	Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 141.91 ms									
	Bad 00:00:31	Warning 00:01:41	Warning 00:03:28									

Pic 1. The Document view

The information about the current page opened in the document is displayed in the information panel **B**. There you can see a name of the opened page or a name of a host if you navigated to the host level. The navigation bar **C** allows you to switch the pages within document and navigate through hierarchy. The **Up** button allows going to the upper level, i.e. if you currently is on the host level, so that you can navigate to the summary page displaying information for all hosts. The **Statistics**, **Alerts**, **State** and **Quality** buttons allow switching to the corresponding pages. If you are on the summary page of the same of the corresponding page of the same host.

The **Document** view can be linked to the **Hosts** view to display only the hosts that are selected in the **Hosts** view or that are in the groups selected in the **Hosts** view. This functionality is enabled using the **Link to Hosts View** button on the navigation bar **D**.

By default the **Document** view shows information for all hosts, but it is possible to narrow down to specific hosts in the document. When the document is opened, you can click the **Link to Hosts View** button on the navigation bar and select required hosts in the **Hosts** view. To switch back to all hosts you can click the **Display All** link or toggle out the **Link to Hosts View** button.

You can open a new document by clicking the **Document** button located in the **New** group of the **Home** tab of Ribbon. Alternatively you can select hosts to be added to the document in the **Hosts** view and select the **New Document** option in the context menu items **Show Overview In**, **Show Alerts In** or **Show Statistics In**. When a new document is opened, a new tab with the autogenerated document name is appeared.

You can use the following context-menu actions displayed when the document tab is clicked by the right button of the mouse. These actions allow you to manage a document.

	Close Close the document, so that the document tab is closed
	Close All But This Close all documents except of the current one
	Close All Close all documents, including the current one
Z	Float Switch the document to the floating mode, that allows moving the document to any place on the screen
*	Pin Tab Pinned tabs are moved to left and displayed before other tabs
	New Horizontal Tab Group Split the screen horizontally and organize tabs (documents) into groups located one under another
	New Vertical Tab Group Split the screen vertically and organize tabs (documents) into groups located one next to another
64	Duplicate Make a copy of the current document

Rename

Set a custom name for a tab (document)

The **Document** view allows you to organize monitoring data as you need. For example, you can open a few documents to review data for specific hosts or groups. Each document has its own UI controls layout, data filters, sorting and other visual presentation settings, so if you need to represent the same data differently, you can do that using different documents.

Overview

The **Overview Pic 1** is designed to provide you with the brief information on monitored hosts and their states. It is located within a document, in the middle of the main program window and can be opened using the document navigation panel. You can either overview the entire monitoring system or focus on specific host and/or groups.



Pic 1. The entire monitoring system overview

In the **State & Quality** area of **Overview** the information is summarized in a doughnut chart, so you can easily see the distribution of hosts with different states and quality. Inside a doughnut itself, you can find the total number of host you are focusing. The first column of the legend displays the count of active, inactive and paused hosts – this distribution is represented with the inner doughnut. For the hosts the monitoring is active for, you can find the information on how many of them are up and down, as well as how many hosts the state is being determined for. This distribution is displayed in the second column of the legend and the middle doughnut respectively. The last column is used to describe the connection quality to monitored hosts. The distribution is reflected in the outer doughnut on the chart. If you would like to focus on host states and connection quality distribution for active hosts, click the **Active** radio button in the right top corner of the area. To switch back to all hosts use the **All** button.

The **State & Quality** part is interactive. You can click the values for states and qualities to drill down to the hosts with the corresponding quality and state.

The **Performance** chart shows historical characteristics of the monitored host and displays how many hosts had particular performance characteristics during the selected period. You can switch the period to see the overall performance change over time.

The **Alerts** chart shows the number of alerts that are active or acknowledged at the current moment. The alerts are grouped by severity, so you can see how critical these alerts are. You can click the displayed numbers of alerts to navigate to these

To refresh the **Overview** pertaining to the selection within the **Hosts** view, you can enable the **Link to Hosts View** item in the toolbar.

Statistics

The **Statistics** page of a document displays the monitoring statistics for specific periods of time. You can open it by clicking the **Statistics Summary** button on the navigation panel of the document.

Statistics Summary

The monitoring statistics summary is represented in a form of a table **Pic 1** where each row stands for a single host. The statistics is displayed for the period chosen on the view toolbar. You can choose between live intervals, which are configured on the **Monitoring Statistics** preference page, a set of predefined historical intervals and custom historical interval. You can apply grouping, sorting and filtering operations for all available hosts at once.

G	Statistics Summa	ary								1	r	Statistics	Alerts	State Quality
	Statistics for all Hosts													*
	0 626 2985													
1	🗙 📴 🖬 🚼 E	-										Period:	Last Month (8/1/2022 - 8/31/2022) •
	Host Name 🔺	Group	Activity Time	Uptime (%)	Outages	PL (%)	Perf	MOS	Avg (ms)	Dev (ms)	CV (%)	Min (ms)	Max (ms)	
- 68	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:47	62.02	1	38.03	Low	*****	182.91	62.10	33.95	88.38	2071.73	^
	h-05669.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
N	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:12	99.99	1	0.02	Low	*****	181.63	60.39	33.25	86.86	1519.92	
	h-05671.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	****						
	h-05672.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05673.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05674.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:52	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	182.01	57.42	31.55	87.21	1489.15	
	h-05675.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:03	100.00	0	0.16	Medium	*****	182.05	58.95	32.38	88.67	1780.31	
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:10	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	182.39	56.07	30.74	86.32	1464.15	
	h-05677.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05678.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	99.97	2	0.05	Medium	*****	181.80	58.27	32.05	85.77	1488.93	
	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	181.29	56.49	31.16	87.89	1500.82	
	h-05681.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:11	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	183.55	58.78	32.02	85.68	1660.19	
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	181.07	57.16	31.57	113.30	1828.05	
	h-05683.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05684.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05685.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:03	99.97	2	0.05	Medium	*****	181.59	58.72	32.34	89.25	1659.22	
	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:10:52	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	181.79	56.25	30.94	93.78	1415.22	
	h-05688.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	20:42:48	0.00	1	100.00	Faulty	*****						
	h-05689.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:04	100.00	0	0.02	Medium	*****	181.54	56.44	31.09	96.81	1498.91	
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:10	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	181.23	55.90	30.85	87.91	2072.42	
	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:14	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	181.79	56.87	31.28	86.50	1497.40	
	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:08	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	182.45	56.82	31.14	91.80	1660.56	
	h-05693.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:32	99.99	1	0.02	Medium	*****	181.86	58.11	31.95	96.44	1403.13	
	h-05694.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	1	0.04	Medium	*****	182.84	59.67	32.64	88.84	1475.65	
	h-05695.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:07	100.00	0	0.03	Medium	*****	180.29	53.72	29.80	85.87	1492.03	
	h-05696.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:42	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	180.93	55.37	30.61	97.22	1462.65	
	h-05697.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:51	99.99	2	0.03	Medium	*****	181.15	57.67	31.84	88.38	1490.95	
	h-05698.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:00	99.99	1	0.03	Medium	*****	182.33	57.27	31.41	88.63	2065.51	
	h-05699.emcosoftware.com	North America\Unit	6.03:11:32	99.98	2	0.07	Medium	*****	182.15	57.29	31.45	86.52	1495.87	~

Pic 1. Statistics summary for all hosts

Along with the statistical values, on the **Statistics** page you can find the performance characteristics, calculated on a basis of these values. The conditions for calculating the

performance are provided on the **Performance** preference page. By default, the performance values are highlighted due to their severity, as well as the values that affect the performance. This behavior is controlled with the **Highlight** button on the toolbar.

Please note that not all of the available data columns are displayed on this page by default, but you can always choose the columns you really need and remove the unwanted ones by using the column chooser. For example, you can display the **Uptime Interval** and **Downtime Interval** columns to see how exactly the uptime percentage was calculated.

For the statistics table, you can choose from the following set of columns.

Column	Description	Visible by Default		
	'			
Host Name	Yes			
Host Address	The host address.	No		
Host Label	The label provided to the host during configuration.	No		
Group	The hosts group the current host belongs to.	Yes		
	Activity characteristics			
Activity Time	The time interval during which the monitoring process has been running.	Yes		
Pause Time	The time interval during which the monitoring process has been paused.	No		
	Monitoring statistics for the specified interval	·		
Uptime	The percentage of time with the up state.	Yes		
Uptime Interval	The time interval during which the host was up.	No		
Downtime Interval	The time interval during which the host was down.	No		
Outages	The number of outages.	Yes		
PL (Packet Loss)	A ratio of the number of lost packets to the number of packets being sent.	Yes		
PD (Packet Delivery)	A ratio of the number of delivered packets to the number of packets being sent.	No		
Delivered Packets	The absolute number of delivered packets.	No		
Lost Packets	The absolute number of lost packets.	No		
Dev (Latency Deviation)	A standard deviation from the average latency value for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered.	Yes		
CV (Latency CV)	CV (Latency CV)A percentage ratio of the latency deviation to the average latency calculated for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered.Yes			
Avg (Average Latency)	Yes			

Column	Description	Visible by Default
Min (Minimum Latency)	A smallest value from all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered.	Yes
Max (Maximum Latency)	A largest value from all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered.	Yes
	Performance characteristics	
Perf (Performance)	The performance calculated on a basis of monitoring statistics.	Yes
MOS	A well-established metric to obtain the quality of VoIP on a basis of the latency characteristics and packet loss percentage for all packets sent.	Yes
	Connection quality characteristics	
Good Quality	The percentage of time with the good connection quality.	No
Warning Quality	The percentage of time with the warning connection quality.	No
Bad Quality	The percentage of time with the bad connection quality.	No
Critical Quality	The percentage of time with the critical connection quality.	No
Good Quality Interval	The time interval during which the connection quality was good.	No
Warning Quality Interval	The time interval during which the connection quality was warning.	No
Bad Quality Interval	The time interval during which the connection quality was bad.	No
Critical Quality Interval	The time interval during which the connection quality was critical.	No

You can collapse or expand all the groups using the **Full Expand** and **Full Collapse** buttons on the view area toolbar.

Toolbar Overview

	Period
•	The Period button from the Statistics view toolbar allows you to choose the time period the summary statistics is displayed for.
	Delete
×	The Delete button from the Statistics view toolbar is used to delete all monitoring statistics for the selected hosts.
	Export
•	The Export button from the Statistics view toolbar is intended to export the displayed monitoring statistics to a CSV file.

	Generate Report
	The Generate Report button from the Statistics view toolbar can be used to generate a monitoring statistics report for the selected hosts, having specified the required report type, output options and a period of time.
	Highlight
٠	The Highlight button from the Statistics view toolbar enables and disables highlighting the performance cell and cells in the statistics table that affect the performance with the performance mark color.
	Full Expand
	The Full Expand button from the Statistics view toolbar should be used to expand all grouping rows.
	Full Collapse
	The Full Collapse button from the Statistics view toolbar should be used to collapse all grouping rows.
	Group By Box
	The Group By Box button should be used to configure the data grouping for the table within the Statistics view.
	Choose Columns
	The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the table within the Statistics view.
	Filter Editor
7	The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed in the table within the Statistics view.
	Advanced Options
Ø	The Advanced Options button from the Statistics view toolbar opens the view configuration menu where you can reach the settings of storing and displaying monitoring statistics and reset the layout of the view.

Detailed Statistics

To see detailed statistics for a host you can click the host name in **Statistics Summary**. The host statistics page **Pic 2** is used to provide you with the integral monitoring statistics gathered during the specified period, graphically visualized and grouped by categories. The information on this page is grouped in several categories.

6	h-00000.emcosoftware.com	↑ Statistics Alerts State Qualit
10	Africa\South Africa Country Code: ZA	
1	🛗 Report As 🔹 🎒 Export 🔹 🕥	Period: 60 Minutes (10/1/2022 7:02 AM - 10/1/2022 8:02 AM) *
•0	Performance 🖏 Low 💿	Tracking
*	Uptime: 99.48% Packet Loss: 3.26% Latency: 212.41 ms CV: 11.79% MOS: 3.59	(iii) 400 200
	MOS: • ★★★	7 7594 AM 7508 AM 7:12 AM 7:16 AM 7:20 AM 7:24 AM 7:28 AM 7:32 AM 7:36 AM 7:40 AM 7:44 AM 7:48 AM 7:52 AM 7:56 AM 8:00 AM
	Availability	Latency & Uptime
	Uptime: Packet Loss: 99.48% 3.26%	
	Up: 00:59:41 Lost: Down: 00:00:19 Delivered: 3	
	Outages: Shortest: 00:00 1 Longest: 00:00	9 9 200 9
	Latency	90 -
	Deviation: CV: • 25.04 ms 11.79%	운 60 역 30
	Average: Minimum: 206.83 212.41 ms Maximum: 495.83	s 7:04 AM 7:08 AM 7:12 AM 7:16 AM 7:20 AM 7:24 AM 7:28 AM 7:32 AM 7:36 AM 7:40 AM 7:44 AM 7:48 AM 7:52 AM 7:56 AM 8:00 AM
	Quality	State & Quality
	Good: Warning: 0% 0%	2 m 11111111111111111111111111111111111

Pic 2. The detailed statistics view for a single host

On the toolbar you can find the buttons for selecting statistics display period, opening the detailed timeline, exporting raw data and publishing the statistics report.

Toolbar Overview

	Period
- 🕙	The Period button allows you to choose the time period the detailed statistics is displayed for.
	Timeline
))	The Timeline button allows you to open the timeline graph of raw ping responses together with host state and connection quality intervals.
	Export Raw Data
	The Export Raw Data button allows you to export raw ping replies data to a CSV format.
	Report As
"" ▼	The Report As button can be used to report the detailed monitoring statistics to a PDF, HTML or MHT file.



Print

The **Print** button should be used to print the displayed monitoring statistics.

In the left top corner, you can find the performance characteristics. Below the performance characteristics, you can find the information on host availability during the specified interval. It consists of an uptime percentage, uptime and downtime intervals, a packet loss percentage, lost and delivered packets counts and outages information.

The next category to follow is the information on latency: minimum, maximum, average, deviation and coefficient of variation. The next category is showing you the percentage and intervals of different connection quality during the specified period. The last within the left column comes the category, displaying information on monitoring activity – you can find the activity time interval and pause time interval.

On the right side of the page you can find charts with statistical information. The **Tracking** chart **Pic 3** is aimed to display the real-time information with the latest host responses time. This information is displayed only when reviewing live statistics and, in case the selected interval is longer than an hour, only the data for the latest hour is displayed due to performance reasons.



Pic 3. Tracking latency

The **Latency & Uptime** chart **Pic 4** is used to focus on the latency and uptime analysis. You can see latency minimum, maximum, average and latency deviation as well as uptime percent. The level of aggregation in the chart is adjusted automatically for the specified period.



Pic 4. Analyzing latency and uptime

The **State & Quality** chart **Pic 5** is used to focus on the host state and connection quality intervals distribution analysis. It shows a percent of each state and quality values the host had in each of the time intervals. The level of aggregation in the chart is adjusted automatically for the specified period.



Pic 5. Analyzing state and quality

The **Intervals** table displays the list of all host state and quality intervals for the selected period of time. For each state and quality interval you can see its start and end date and duration **Pic 6**.

Intervals			
📑 Export * 📻	🔟 .al 😑 🚍 🔳 "	7	
Туре	Start	End	+ Duration
(I-I) Up	9/22/2022 12:15:47 AM	9/23/2022 3:30:17 AM *	1.03:14:30
(I-I) Down	9/21/2022 11:08:22 PM	9/21/2022 11:10:13 PM	00:01:51
(H) Up	9/21/2022 5:38:23 AM	9/21/2022 11:08:22 PM	17:29:59
(I-1) Up	9/21/2022 12:38:27 AM	9/21/2022 5:32:58 AM	04:54:31
(I+)) Up	9/19/2022 10:41:01 AM *	9/21/2022 12:33:32 AM	1.13:52:31

Pic 6. Reviewing intervals

The list of intervals is displayed in a form of a tree, where the root nodes represent the specific state. In case the host has been unreachable during any interval, it can be expanded to review when the host was reachable and when not. In case the comment is provided for the interval, it is displayed under the root node. For each interval, along with its type, you can find the start time, end time and duration. In case the interval is exceeding the selected period, the exceeding time is marked with a star.

Toolbar Overview

••••

Export

The **Export** button from the toolbar allows you to export the displayed intervals list to a CSV format.

Set Comment

The **Set Comment** button can be used to provide a comment for the selected interval.

((-))	State The State button allows you to display state intervals in the table.
al	Quality The Quality button allows you to display quality intervals in the table.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button from the toolbar should be used to expand all nodes in the intervals tree.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button from the toolbar should be used to collapse all nodes in the intervals tree.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the intervals tree.
7	Filter Editor The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed in the intervals tree.
ŧ¢;	Advanced Options The Advanced Options button from the toolbar opens the view configuration menu where you can reset the layout of the view.

For each state or quality interval, it is possible to provide a comment. The comment can, for example, describe the reason for the outage, or something else. To provide a comment, select the interval and choose the **Set Comment** item in the pop-up menu or click the corresponding button on the toolbar. The dialog will be displayed on the screen to let you provide the comment. Either the selected or all intervals can be exported to a CSV file using the **Export** button on the toolbar and the **Export All** and **Export Selected** menu items. At any point, you can reset the view layout to defaults using the **Reset Layout** option from the **Advanced Options** menu.

The **Events** table contains all monitoring events for the host and can be used as a monitoring log. If you are facing some problems during monitoring or would like to know when the monitoring process was started and stopped, you should refer to this page.

E	vents				
	📴 Export = 📃 📘	🗄 🗊 🌱			0
	Title	Description	Time	Ŧ	
1	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.	9/22/2022 12:17:17 AM		^
I	Host State	The state of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was established.	9/22/2022 12:15:47 AM		
b	Activity	Monitoring of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host is started.	9/22/2022 12:15:47 AM		
b	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Bad'.	9/21/2022 11:08:43 PM		
ŀ	A Host State	The state of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).	9/21/2022 11:08:22 PM		
b	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.	9/21/2022 5:39:55 AM		
ŀ	Host State	The state of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was established.	9/21/2022 5:38:23 AM		
ŀ	 Activity 	Monitoring of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host is started.	9/21/2022 5:38:23 AM		
ŀ	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.	9/21/2022 12:39:58 AM		
	1 Host State	The state of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was established.	9/21/2022 12:38:27 AM		
ŀ	 Activity 	Monitoring of the 'h-05675.emcosoftware.com' host is started.	9/21/2022 12:38:27 AM		
١.	Constant Constant	The second	0.00.0003.44.00.34.004		Ŷ

Pic 7. The host events for a single host

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

The events are displayed in a form of a table where each row represents a single event. You can sort, group and filter the events by any column as well as change the columns set. By default the table consists of the event type represented by an icon, the event title, the logging time and the event description itself, with or without a troubleshooting hint. The description and hint for any event is by default wrapped, so that you can easily read it. If you would like to have more events visible at the same time, you can configure the **Events** page to display only one line per event by disabling the **Wrap Description** option from the **Advanced Options** menu. If required, it is possible to add the **Error Code** column to the view using the **Column Chooser**.

The following icons are used to display the event types:

- the blue icon with an 'i' character means that everything is OK;
- S the brown circle icon with a cross-cut line is used to identify that the operation was canceled by user or due to shutdown of the underlying system;
- ▲ the yellow icon with an exclamation mark is the warning icon. It means that the special attention should be payed to this event;
- 😢 the red icon with a white cross is the error sign: it stands for a failure event.

If required, you can add a column containing the text representation for the severity, that can be used for grouping and filtering data.

Toolbar Overview

	Export The Export button from the toolbar is intended to export the displayed events to a CSV
	Full Expand The Full Expand button from the toolbar should be used to expand all the grouping rows in the view.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button from the toolbar should be used to collapse all the grouping rows in the view.
	Group By Box The Group By Box button should be used to configure the data grouping for the Events page.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed on the Events page.
7	Filter Editor The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed on the Events page.
Ø	Advanced Options The Advanced Options button from the Events page toolbar opens the view configuration menu where you can enable/disable automatic scroll and messages wrapping, and reset the layout of the view.

If it is really important for you to see the newly arrived events as soon as possible, you can enable the **Autoscroll** option in the **Advanced Options** menu. In case this option is enabled, the view will automatically scroll to new events as soon as they arrive.

Using the toolbar or pop-up menu it is also possible to export all or selected events to a CSV file for future analysis, sharing with colleagues or sending problem reports to your ISP.

The layout of the **Events** page, including all the grouping and sorting settings and the details pane visibility, can be easily reset to factory settings by choosing the **Reset Layout** option from the **Advanced Options** menu.

Timeline

Ping Monitor can show you the timeline of raw ping reply data along with host state and connection quality intervals. You can open the timeline using the **Timeline** button in the detailed statistics view. You can focus on specific interval of the timeline by clicking the point within **Latency & Uptime** or **State & Quality** charts.



Pic 8. Timeline

Within the **Timeline** dialog **Pic 8**, you can find the timeline graph and the sliders to be used for navigation through the timeline. The timeline graph consists of three parts, those are **Latency**, **State** and **Quality**. The **Latency** part is used to display the ping replies data, the **State** part reflects the state intervals on the timeline and the **Quality** part is used for displaying the quality intervals.

Toolbar Overview



F

Refresh

The **Refresh** button allows you to actualize the data on raw ping replies, state and connection quality for the specified period.

Export Raw Data

The **Export Raw Data** button allows you to export raw ping replies data to a CSV format.

Along with using the sliders for navigation, it is also possible to swipe the chart itself for navigation and use mouse wheel for zooming. The timeline range is limited to 30 days due to performance reasons. You can change the timeline range using the **Period** button on the dialog toolbar. To actualize ping replies data along with state and quality intervals, use the **Refresh** button on the toolbar. The **Export Raw Data** button can be used to export raw ping replies data to a CSV format.

Alerts

The **Alerts** page of a document displays the active alerts for monitored hosts and alerts history. You can open it by clicking the **Alerts Summary** button on the navigation panel of the document.

Alerts Summary

The **Alerts Summary** page displays alert information in two views. The top view shows a list of active alerts detected on monitored hosts, representing active monitoring issues. The bottom view contains the **Alerts History**, listing previously detected alerts. This view helps you review alerts reported for monitored hosts in the past.

In both views, each row represents an alert for a specific host. Columns display details such as host name, alert name, severity, duration, and other alert characteristics **Pic 1**. The summary page provides an overview of alerts for all monitored hosts referenced in the document.

¢	Alerts	Summary			1	Statistic	s Alerts	State	Q	uality
-8	Monitorin	g alerts for all Hosts								=
	0	2 2	0							trains and
	🥖 Edit	🚰 🔹 🗘 All 🏠 Active 🗘 Acknow	wledged 😵 目 🗄	•	7					0
	Severity 👻	Name	Host		Start		Duration 👻	State	React	ivation
- X	🖖 Major	Host Down	Headquarters (hq.emcosoftw	are.com)	2/1/2025 3:29:25 /	MA	02:43:03	Active		
-	🖖 Major	Host Down	h-00528.emcosoftware.com		2/2/2025 11:25:33	PM	00:40:34	Active		
	Major	Connection Quality: Unsatisfactory	tesla.com		2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	00:01:27	Active		
	W Minor	Big latency	windows.com		2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM	00:40:08	Active		
	V Minor	Big latency	microsoft.com		2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM	00:40:08	Active		
	V Minor	Big latency	yahoo.com		2/2/2025 11:54:36	PM	00:11:31	Active		
	V Minor	Big latency	tesla.com		2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	00:01:27	Active		
				¥						
	Alerts Hi	story								
	Period:	24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/202	5 6:17 AM) 🔹 📑 Export 🔹	* 日		7				٥
	Severity	Name	Host	Start		End		 Duration 	n	Status
	W Minor	Big latency	tesla.com	2/1/2025	4:28:22 AM	2/1/2025 4	k34:21 AM	00	0:05:59	Resolv ^
	W Minor	Big latency	tesla.com	2/1/2025	4:13:25 AM	2/1/2025 4	:23:29 AM	00	0:10:04	Resolv
	Critical	Quality critical	intel.com	2/1/2025	3:47:00 AM	2/1/2025 4	:12:05 AM	00	25:05	Cance
	🐠 Major	Host Down	intel.com	2/1/2025	3:42:05 AM	2/1/2025 4	:12:05 AM	00):30:00	Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	nvidia.com	2/1/2025	3:47:00 AM	2/1/2025 4	k12:01 AM	00	0:25:01	Cance
	Major	Host Down	nvidia.com	2/1/2025	3:41:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	k12:01 AM	00	0:30:02	Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	h-00023.emcosoftware.com	2/1/2025	3:46:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	:11:12 AM	00):24:13	Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	h-00527.emcosoftware.com	2/1/2025	3:46:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	k11:12 AM	00	24:13	Cance ∨

Pic 1. Alerts summary

You can use data grouping, filtering and sorting options available for the table interface to represent data according with your needs. You can switch between different modes of **Alerts Summary** using the corresponding buttons on the toolbar.

You can manage active alerts displayed in the top table of the **Alerts Summary** page using the buttons available on the table's toolbar.

Edit

The **Edit** button allows editing a selected alert, so you can change the alert severity or acknowledge the alert.

AII The AII button allows you to display all active alerts, including the alerts in the Active and Acknowledged states. Active The Active button allows you to display alerts with the Active state only. Acknowledged The Acknowledged button allows you to display alerts with the Acknowledged state only.

For the **Alerts History** table, you can manage the displayed data using the following button on the table's toolbar:

Period

The **Period** button lets you select the time range for historical alerts to be displayed in the table.

The following buttons are available for both tables – the table with active alerts and the Alerts History table. You can use them to manage the displayed data.

-	Export The Export button allows exporting alerts information displayed on the screen.
•	Highlight The Highlight button turns on coloring of the alert severity text in the table, so you can find alerts with the critical problems easier.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button expands all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button collapses all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Group By Box The Group by Box button enables data grouping in the table by the values of the selected columns. When this option is enabled you can drag & drop a column to the appeared area to group data by values of this column.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button allows you to select columns that should be displayed or hided on the displayed table.
7	Filter Editor The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the monitored entries.

The active alerts, reported in the top view, allow you to discover the current problems with the monitored hosts. To help you managing the problems there are two types of alerts – active and acknowledged alerts. Active alert means that there is a new problem. If you know about the problem and work on resolving it, you can acknowledge the alert permanently or for a specific period of time. Acknowledged alerts are displayed with the corresponding state, so you easily identify them and don't mix with active alerts.

You can acknowledge alerts by editing them and enabling the acknowledge options. To manage an alert use the actions available in toolbar or on the **Alerts** tab of the contextual **Alerts Tools** menu on Ribbon. Alternatively you can use context menu for alerts to acknowledge them with just a single mouse click.

Host Alerts

In the **Alerts Summary** page you can see all alerts for all monitored hosts. Note that alerts can be detected by different conditions that you can configure and customize, so the list of alerts can contain different alerts for the same host and alerts for the different hosts as well. For each alert **Alerts Summary** reports the name of the host where the alert is detected. It is the same for both the active alerts and alerts history views. These names work as hyperlinks, so you can click them to navigate to the host level and see all alerts for a specific host.

The list of alerts for a host is identical to the **Alerts Summary**. It is represented with the identical views with active alerts and alerts history, but on the host level you can see alerts reported for a specific host only. You can return to viewing alerts for all hosts by pressing the **Up** button on the top navigation bar.

State

The **State** page of the document is mainly designed to be used for focusing on hosts states monitoring, where you can easily detect any problematic situations just in time. You can open it by clicking the **State Summary** button on the navigation panel of the document.

State Summary

State Summary displays the actual states of hosts. It shows only those hosts the monitoring is currently active for. It is organized with the help of tiles representing the objects being monitored, that are colored to indicate of the hosts states. Let us take a closer look at the data representation.



Pic 1. Monitoring hosts state
The first mode of the **State Summary** is the per-host state monitoring **Pic 1**. This is the default mode, where each tile in the view represents a single host that is currently monitored and is colored with the host state color: green – for up, red – for down, and gray – for pending. In case the host is currently unreachable, thus the state is represented with the latest reachable one, the tile is hatched.

Together with the state, for each host you can find out how long has the host been in this state, the group the host is located in, the host IP address and resolved reverse name. All these information is available in the tool-tip and on the tile itself, when the large tiles are used. For medium tiles, you can see the host name and label on the tile together with the state time stamp. The small tiles are simply filled with the host state color; any information is available in the tool-tip only.

¢	State Summary					\uparrow	Statistics Ale	erts State Quality		
	Monitoring all Hosts 2699 84	0						1		
1	📑 🗧 Hosts 🕒 Gr	oups 👌 Group by Severity	A 24 🗩 📰 🔛	II 📕 🌱				0		
**	Akron Group: North America\U	nited States	Aliquippa Group: North America\Un	ited States	Alpharetta Group: North America/U	nited States	Altamonte Springs Group: North America\United States			
	Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0		
	1	0	1	0	1	0	3	1		
	Up	Down	Up	Down	Up	Down	Up	Down		
	Amarillo Group: North America\U	nited States	Ann Arbor Group: North America\Un	ited States	Argyle Group: North America\U	nited States	Arlington Group: North America\United States			
	Pending	0	Pending 0		Pending 0		Pending	0		
	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	1 Up	0 Down	5 Up	0 Down		
	Arlington Heigl Group: North America\U	nts Inited States	Ashburn Group: North America\Un	ited States	Asheville Group: North America\D	nited States	Ashland Group: North America\United States			
	Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0		
	1 Up	0 Down	289 UP	3 Down	1 Up	0 Down	3 Up	0 Down		
	Atlanta Group: North America\U	inited States	Aurora Group: North America\Un	ited States	Austin Group: North America\U	nited States	Bakersfield Group: North America/United States			

Pic 2. Monitoring state for groups of hosts

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

Along with per-host state monitoring, it is possible to monitor state for host groups. The group tile can either represent the group or the set of individual hosts (selected individually or not belonging to any group) Pic 2. The group tile is displaying the number of hosts within the group that are currently in specific states. When monitoring state in grouped mode, you can click on the group to focus on hosts from that group, or click on the specific state part within a group to focus on hosts with that specific state.

¢	State Summary						个	Statistics	Alerts	State	Quality
10	Monitoring all Hosts 2698 85	0									#
1	📴 • 🔛 Hosts 🛅 Grou	aps 👌 Group by Severity	4 84 🗩 📑			Ŷ					0
0	Name	Group	State	Duration	IP Address	Reverse Name					
•	h-05668.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Down	08:02:32	100.21.126.246	h-05668.emcosoftware.com					^
	h-05670.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	34.211.109.156	h-05670.emcosoftware.com					
- 24	h-05674.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.155.182.164	h-05674.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05675.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.161.116.23	h-05675.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05676.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.161.124.106	h-05676.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05679.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.162.232.15	h-05679.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05680.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	35.163.128.201	h-05680.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05681.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	35.164.181.189	h-05681.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05682.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	35.164.250.120	h-05682.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05686.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	44.225.2.78	h-05686.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05687.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	44.228.126.126	h-05687.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05689.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	50.112.125.251	h-05689.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05690.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.10.67.49	h-05690.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05691.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.11.37.152	h-05691.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05692.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	52.12.229.142	h-05692.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05693.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	\$2.13.195.78	h-05693.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05694.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	52.13.5.33	h-05694.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05695.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:46	52.218.160.87	h-05695.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05696.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.192.83	h-05696.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05697.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.193.75	h-05697.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05698.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.197.90	h-05698.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05699.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.200.147	h-05699.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05700.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.208.155	h-05700.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05701.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.209.227	h-05701.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05702.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.216.11	h-05702.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05703.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.216.242	h-05703.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05704.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.217.106	h-05704.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05705.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.221.250	h-05705.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05706.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.228.186	h-05706.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05707.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.229.186	h-05707.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05708.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.242.146	h-05708.emcosoftware.com					
	h-05709.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Up	08:02:47	52.218.244.11	h-05709.emcosoftware.com					~

Pic 3. Hosts states represented as a table

Tiles representation of host state us useful for control rooms where all hosts are displayed on a screen. In other cases you may need to use a table representation **Pic 3**. It shows host names, host states, state duration and other useful information as table columns.

You can switch between different modes of the **State Summary** page using the corresponding buttons on the view toolbar.

Toolbar Overview

-	Export The Export button allows exporting hosts state information displayed on the scree.
📒 Hosts	Hosts The Hosts button is used to configure the view for monitoring each host individually.
🛅 Groups	Groups The Groups button is used to configure the view for monitoring groups of hosts.

I Group by Severity	Group by Severity The Group by Severity button allows you to group the view the way that the problematic nodes are always displayed on top.
₽↓	Sort by Name When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Name button enables the view sorting by entry name.
81	Sort by Time When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Time button enables the view sorting by state change time stamp.
я	Focus on Problems The Focus on Problems button allows you to configure the view to be automatically scrolled to entries that go down, when grouped by severity and sorted by time.
*	Highlight The Highlight button from the Statistics view toolbar enables and disables highlighting the performance cell and cells in the statistics table that affect the performance with the performance mark color.
	TableThe Table button switches the view to the table representation, where eachhost and its data is represented as a table row.
	Small The Small button switches the view to the mode where each monitored host is represented just with a pictogram describing its state. Any other information on the entry is available in the tool tip only.
	Medium The Medium button is used to switch to the mode where each entry is represented with a tile containing only the summary information on the entry. The detailed info is available in the tool tip.
	Large The Large button enables the view mode where a tile representing each entry contains maximum information on the entry being monitored.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button is available in the table mode only. It expands all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button is available in the table mode only. It collapses all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Group By Box The Group by Box button is available in the table mode only. It enables data grouping in the table by the values of the selected columns. When this option is enabled you can drag & drop a column to the appeared area to group data by values of this column.

	Choose Columns
	The Choose Columns button is available in the table mode only. It allows you to select columns that should be displayed or hided on the displayed table.
	Filter Editor
Y	The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the monitored entries.

All entries within **State Summary** can be grouped by severity so that the problematic entries are always on top. To enable such grouping, use the **Group by Severity** button on the toolbar. For example, when enabled, the hosts, that are in the down state, will be displayed on top, then hosts that are in the up state will follow and then there will be the hosts with the pending state.

The Filter Editor button allows you to filter out entries with specific state. To switch between tiles of different size, use the Small, Medium and Large buttons. You can switch to the table data representation using the Table button.

Host State

On the **State Summary** page you can click on a host to navigate to the host details. It allows you to review the detailed information for a single host **Pic 4**.



Pic 4. Monitoring state for a single host

On the host state page, in the left top corner you can find the block that is quite similar to the large tile representing the host and contains the same information. Below this block, you can view the information on the distribution for the twenty latest packets. To the right those latest packets are displayed in the chronological order as well as the host state that is reached after each response.

On the bottom on the page you can find the area with recent state intervals. It is used to display the most recent intervals that occurred during the last hour.

Quality

The **Quality** page of the document is designed to be used for focusing on connection quality monitoring, where you can easily detect any problematic situations just in time. You can open it by clicking the **Quality Summary** button on the navigation panel of the document.

Quality Summary

Quality Summary displays real-time quality metrics of the monitored hosts. It displays only those hosts the monitoring is currently active for. It is organized with the help of tiles representing the objects being monitored. Let us take a closer look at the data representation.



Pic 1. Monitoring hosts connection quality

The first mode of **Quality Monitor** is the per-host connection quality monitoring **Pic 1**. This is the default mode, where each tile represents a single host. For the hosts that are monitored, the connection quality is calculated based on the rules defined in the program preferences and/or host settings. The tile is filled with red color in case all packets from the sample used to calculate the connection quality are lost, thus the quality is critical. In other cases, the quality value is displayed with the help of the colored tag on the right of the tile: green – for good quality, yellow – for warning, red – for bad, and gray – for pending. In case the host is currently unreachable, thus the quality is represented with the latest reachable one, the tile is hatched.

On the large tiles, you can find the parameters for each host used to calculate the quality and see which parameter is leading to the warning or bad-quality value. The same way as for the state, you can see how long the host connection quality has had this or that value. The smaller the tile the less information is available immediately, but there is still a whole set of values in the tool-tip.

C Ilo A	Quality Monitoring 141	Quality Summary Monitoring all Hosts 141 2538 18 66 19 Hosts 67 Statistics Alerts Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics Statistics </th														
**	Brea Group: North America/United States			Brecker Group: Nor	Breckenridge Group: North America\United States			Bristow Group: North America\United States			Brookings Group: North America\United States					
	Pending			0	Pending			0	Pending			0	Pending			0
	0	53	0	2	0	3	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0
	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical
	Brookly Group: Not	yn rth America\Un	ited States	0	Buena Group: Nor	Buena Park Group: North America\United States			Buffalo Group: North Americal United States			0	Butler Group: North America\United States			
	0	5	0	0	0	5	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	1	0	0
	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical
	Cambridge			Camby	Camby			Campbell			Canby					
	Group: North Americal United States			Group: Nor	Group: North America\United States			Group: North America\United States			Group: North America\United States					
	Pending			0	Pending			0	Pending			0	Pending			0
	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0
	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical	Good	Warning	Bad	Critical
	Canoga Park			Canton	anton				Carle Place				Carrollton			
	Group: North America/United States			Group: Nor	voup: North America\United States				Group: North America/United States				Group: North America\United States			

Pic 2. Monitoring connection quality for groups of hosts

Along with per-host connection quality monitoring, it is possible to monitor connection quality for host groups. The group tile can either represent the group or the set of individual hosts (selected individually or not belonging to any group) Pic 2. The group tile is displaying the number of hosts within the group having specific connection quality. When monitoring connection quality in grouped mode, you can click on the group to focus on hosts from that group, or click on the specific connection quality.

٢	Quality Summar	у						\uparrow	Statistics	Alerts	State	Qu
880	Monitoring all Hosts 141 2536	22 84	0									
1	📴 - 🔛 Hosts 🛅 Gro	ups 👌 Group by Severity	화 81 🔊 📍	: 💷 💠 🕫	= E	8 📰 🔚	1					
-0	Name	Group	Quality	Duration 🔺	PL (%)	Latency (ms)	Jitter (ms)					
•õ	h-11129.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat		00:00:23								
	h-08791.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Bad	00:01:01	35.00	144.44						
2	h-09432.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:01:19	15.00	156.76						
	h-07889.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Bad	00:01:45	0.00	203.67						
	h-06314.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Bad	00:02:07	85.00	111.88						
	h-06447.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:02:19	5.00	169.84						
	h-07061.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:03:26	0.00	152.69						
	h-07888.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Bad	00:04:42	0.00	202.48						
	h-10829.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:05:44	0.00	150.49						
	h-08364.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:05:59	0.00	137.22						
	h-09114.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:09:15	0.00	143.88						
	h-09116.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:10:31	0.00	144.37						
	h-07025.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:10:51	0.00	152.55						
	h-09115.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:10:52	0.00	140.79						
	h-05812.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:12:31	15.00	127.71						
	h-08648.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Bad	00:12:36	0.00	200.75						
	h-10553.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:13:23	0.00	188.32						
	h-06148.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:13:41	0.00	127.79						
	h-06931.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:13:50	0.00	170.78						
	h-07951.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:13:53	0.00	169.42						
	h-07944.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:03	0.00	169.57						
	h-06933.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:04	5.00	170.97						
	h-07916.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:05	0.00	170.60						
	h-07906.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:06	0.00	184.44						
	h-07963.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:11	0.00	169.35						
	h-07949.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:13	0.00	170.89						
	h-07962.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:14:16	0.00	169.50						
	h-07895.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:15:03	0.00	171.39						
	h-06137.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:15:23	0.00	143.55						
	h-06928.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Warning	00:18:48	0.00	156.72						
	h-07217.emcosoftware.com	North America/United Stat	Critical	00:19:45	100.00							
	h-07481.emcosoftware.com	North America\United Stat	Warning	00:22:44	0.00	193.23						

Pic 3. Connection quality displayed as a table

Tiles representation of quality may be helpful for control rooms where all hosts are displayed on a single screen. In other cases you can switch to the data representation as a table. In this case hosts are displayed as table rows and quality metrics are displayed as table columns **Pic 3**.

You can switch between different modes of **Quality Summary** using the corresponding buttons on the view toolbar.

Toolbar Overview

-	Export The Export button allows exporting hosts quality information displayed on the screen.
📒 Hosts	Hosts The Hosts button is used to configure the view for monitoring each host individually.
🛅 Groups	Groups The Groups button is used to configure the view for monitoring groups of hosts.
🖏 Group by Severity	Group by Severity The Group by Severity button allows you to group the view the way that the problematic nodes are always displayed on top.
₽↓	Sort by Name When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Name button enables the view sorting by entry name.

81	Sort by Time When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Time button enables the view sorting by connection quality change time stamp.
я	Focus on Problems The Focus on Problems button allows you to configure the view to be automatically scrolled to entries where connection quality goes critical, when grouped by severity and sorted by time.
÷	Highlight The Highlight button is available in the table representation mode only. It turns on coloring of the host quality text in the table, so you can find hosts with the problems easier.
	TableThe Table button switches the view to the table representation, where each host and its data is represented as a table row.
	Small The Small button switches the view to the mode where each monitored host is represented just with a pictogram describing its connection quality. Any other information on the entry is available in the tool tip only.
	Medium The Medium button is used to switch to the mode where each entry is represented with a tile containing only the summary information on the entry. The detailed info is available in the tool tip.
=	Large The Large button enables the view mode where a tile representing each entry contains maximum information on the entry being monitored.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button is available in the table mode only. It expands all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button is available in the table mode only. It collapses all grouping nodes, if grouping is turned on for the table.
	Group By Box The Group by Box button is available in the table mode only. It enables data grouping in the table by the values of the selected columns. When this option is enabled you can drag & drop a column to the appeared area to group data by values of this column.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button is available in the table mode only. It allows you to select columns that should be displayed or hided on the displayed table.
Ŷ	Filter Editor

The **Filter Editor** button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the monitored entries.

All entries within **Quality Summary** can be grouped by severity so that the problematic entries are always on top. To enable such grouping, use the **Group by Severity** button on the toolbar. For example, when enabled, the hosts, that are in the down state, will be displayed on top, then hosts that are in the up state will follow and then there will be the hosts with the pending state.

The **Filter Editor** button allows you to filter out entries with specific connection quality. To switch between tiles of different size, use the **Small**, **Medium** and **Large** buttons. To display data as a table you use the **Table** button.

Host Quality

On the **Quality Summary** page you can click on a host to navigate to the host details. It allows you to review the detailed information for a single host **Pic 4**.



Pic 3. Monitoring connection quality for a single host

On the host quality page, in the left top corner you can find the block that is quite similar to the large tile representing the host and contains the same information. Below this block, you can view the information on the distribution for the packets from a sample used to calculate the connection quality. Below the packets distribution, you can find the connection quality characteristics. To the right those latest packets are displayed in the chronological order as well as the connection quality that is reached after each response.

On the bottom on the page you can find the area with recent quality intervals. It is used to display the most recent connection quality intervals that occurred during the last hour.

Hosts View

The **Hosts** view is by default located on the left of the main program window and displays the hosts and groups of hosts in the hierarchical structure **Pic 1**. This view was primarily designed for performing hosts management, so you can add and remove hosts there, and start and stop monitoring of the hosts.

Hosts			ą	×
🕒 • 🖪 New • 📓 🧟 🚟 • 🥒 🗙	🖀 Tree View	Table View	7	0
Name 🔺	Activity	On Startup		
🔺 🐑 North America				^
🕨 🛅 Canada				
🔺 🛄 United States				
🔺 🛄 Agoura Hills				
h-09735.emcosoftware.com	Inactive	Restore Activity		
🔺 🛅 Akron				
h-08623.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🛄 Aliquippa				
h-08616.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Alpharetta				
h-10723.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Altamonte Springs				
h-08326.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08327.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08328.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08329.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Amarillo				
h-09233.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Ann Arbor				
h-09123.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Argyle				
h-09425.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
🔺 🐑 Arlington				
h-08177.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08178.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08179.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08180.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08181.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity		
h-08182.emcosoftware.com	Inactive	Restore Activity		
🔺 🛅 Arlinaton Heiahts	~			~
Active (2783)	tive (9272)	Paused (0)		

Pic 1. The Hosts view

You can switch from the tree structure representation to the table one to be able to apply grouping, sorting and filtering operations for all available hosts at once. The icon next to every item is used to describe of the item's type. The following set of icons is used:

- i the group of hosts;
- 📒 the host;
- I the host with duplicate address.

In the **Hosts** view you can find the current monitoring activity for each host, so for each host you can see whether it is monitored or not. If a host is currently monitored, it is displayed as **Active**. If monitoring of a host is stopped, the host is displayed as **Inactive**. If monitoring is paused, the host is displayed as **Paused**.

At the bottom of the **Hosts** view you can find an interactive chart that displays how many hosts are **Active**, **Inactive** or **Paused**. It gives you a quick overview of monitoring activity of all your hosts. The chart is interactive, so you can click the chart bars or the chart legend entries to apply a filter and display hosts with a selected type of activity only, for example, display **Inactive** hosts only. To switch the view and display hosts with all types of activity you need to click the **Back to All Hosts** link displayed above the list of hosts.

Please note that not all of the available data columns are displayed in this view by default, but you can always choose the columns you really need and remove the unwanted ones by using the column chooser.

In the **Hosts** view you can choose from the following set of columns.

Column	Description	Visible by Default
Name	The combination of host address and label provided during host configuration.	Yes
Activity	The current monitoring activity: either Active, or Paused or Inactive.	Yes
Description	The description provided for the host during its configuration.	No
IP Address	The IP address of the host being monitored, as resolved during monitoring.	Yes
Reverse Name	The DNS name of the host being monitored, as resolved during monitoring.	No
Dynamic IP	The indication that the host has a dynamic IP address, thus the address must be resolved before each ping.	No
On Startup	The sign either the monitoring should be activated for this host on startup, or the host monitoring should stay inactive, or the previous activity should be restored.	Yes

From the **Hosts** view, you can manage a set of hosts and groups of hosts, control the monitoring process activity for specific hosts and generate statistical reports for custom periods of time. All these actions are available from the view pop-up menu and on the toolbar.

The other useful features of this view are an ability to use copy/paste and drag/drop to copy and move hosts between groups and the ability to import/export hosts and groups. The corresponding actions are available in the pop-up menu, **Organize** Ribbon group and **Clipboard** Ribbon group on the **Program** page.

Toolbar Overview

	Manage Activity
•	The Manage Activity button from the Hosts view toolbar can be used to start, stop and pause the monitoring process for the selected hosts.
	New
🚺 New 🔻	The New button from the Hosts view toolbar allows you to create hosts and groups of hosts having provided the required properties.
	Generate Report
	The Generate Report button from the Hosts view toolbar can be used to generate a monitoring performance and availability report for the selected hosts and groups of hosts, having specified the required report type, output options and a period of time.
	Delete Statistics
1	The Delete Statistics button from the Hosts view toolbar is used to delete all monitoring data for the selected hosts.
.	Auto-start

	The Auto-start drop-down button from the Hosts view contains the actions for the selected hosts to be included to and excluded from the auto-start list.
Ø	Edit The Edit button from the Hosts view toolbar should be used to edit the selected host or group of hosts.
×	Delete The Delete button from the Hosts view toolbar allows you to permanently delete the selected hosts and/or groups of hosts.
×	Tree View The Tree View button from the Hosts view toolbar switches the view to the hierarchical representation of groups and hosts.
	Table ViewThe Table View button from the Hosts view toolbar switches the view to the flatrepresentation of groups and hosts.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button from the Hosts view toolbar should be used to expand all nodes in the view.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button from the Hosts view toolbar should be used to collapse all nodes in the view.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the Hosts view.
٢	Filter Editor The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed within the Hosts view.
¢	Advanced Options The Advanced Options button from the Hosts view toolbar opens the view configuration menu where you can reach the monitoring settings configuration and reset the layout of the view.

It is possible to switch between hierarchical and flat representation of groups and hosts using the **Tree View** and **Table View** items on the toolbar and in the popup menu. You can collapse or expand all the groups using the **Full Expand** and **Full Collapse** buttons on the view toolbar.

Now you are familiar with the **Hosts** view and should be able to use its benefits during the everyday work.

Reports View

The **Reports** view **Pic 1** is by default located on the left of the program main window. It is designed to display and manage preconfigured monitors performance and availability reports to be generated either on demand or on a regular basis.

	Name 🔺	Recurrence	Next Report	Enabled	
ł	Europe	Daily	9/23/2022 10:05:00 AM	\checkmark	
Ż	Servers	On Demand		~	
	Servers Detailed	Weekly	9/25/2022 10:05:00 AM	\checkmark	
ł	Total Weekly Summary	Weekly	9/25/2022 10:05:00 AM	\checkmark	
	USA	Daily	9/23/2022 10:05:00 AM	\checkmark	

Pic 1. The Reports view

The icon next to every item represented in the **Reports** view is used to describe of the item's type and state. Below is the list of icons used:

- 📰 the detailed report that is enabled for generation;
- the summary report that is enabled for generation;
- 📰 the detailed report that is disabled for generation;
- the summary report that is disabled for generation.

As for the problematic situations, the following overlays are used:

- The report is incorrectly configured and won't be generated;
- 🙀 the report won't be generated, because there no enabled report outputs.

For the detailed information on different report types and states, you can refer the **Preconfigured Reports** section of this document.

The **Reports** view initial state displays the report name, recurrence, next automatic generation time (for regular reports) and the sign if the report is enabled. You can customize the **Reports** view by choosing other columns to be displayed and filter data to make it feet your needs best – see the **Grouping and Filtering Data** topic for details. It is always possible to roll back to the default view layout using the **Reset Layout** item from the **Advanced Options** menu.

Toolbar Overview

Generate
The Generate button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to immediately generate the output for the selected enabled reports.

	New
New 🕶	The New button from the Reports view toolbar allows you to create a new preconfigured monitoring performance and availability report having provided the required properties.
	Enable
	The Enable button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to turn on an ability of generating the selected reports both manually and on a regular basis.
	Disable
***	The Disable button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to turn off an ability of generating the selected reports both manually and on a regular basis.
	Open Storage
D.	The Open Storage button from the Reports view toolbar allows you to open the local reports storage for the selected preconfigured report.
	Edit
Ø	The Edit button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to edit the selected preconfigred report.
	Delete
×	The Delete button from the Reports view toolbar is used to permanentrly deleted the selected reports.
	Full Expand
	The Full Expand button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to expand all the grouping rows in the view.
	Full Collapse
	The Full Collapse button from the Reports view toolbar should be used to collapse all the grouping rows in the view.
	Group By Box
	The Group By Box button should be used to configure the data grouping for the Reports view.
	Choose Columns
	The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the Reports view.
	Filter Editor
7	The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed in the Reports view.
	Advanced Options
¢\$	The Advanced Options button from the Reports view toolbar opens the view configuration menu where you can reset the layout of the view.

From the **Reports** view, it is possible to create new preconfigured reports to be generated either on demand or on a regular basis, control reports enablement, generate, edit and delete reports, etc. All these actions are available on the **Reports** view toolbar and in view popup menu. The **Reporting** contextual Ribbon page from the **Reporting Tools** category is displayed when the **Reports** view is active and also contains the actions for reports generation and management.

The **Reports** view fully supports the drag/drop and copy/paste techniques. Via those techniques you can add groups and hosts to the reports members set and duplicate reports. From this view it is also possible to export preconfigured reports, and import them to the program. The corresponding actions are available in the pop-up menu, **Organize** Ribbon group and **Clipboard** Ribbon group on the **Program** page.

Log View

The log is designed to store information on the events taking place during the program execution. The larger part of this information consists of events generated by the operations. The purpose of this chapter is to help you understand the log.

Loo						~
LOG					*	^
0	Period: 7 Days (9/16/2022 4:0	6 AM - 9/23/2022 4:06 AM) 🕶 📑 🖉 🧱 🧱 🧱			+	٥
Title		Description	Time	Ψ		
0	Hosts Monitor	The configured ping intervals have been restored. The current system performance allows the program to continue monitoring according to the settings.	9/22/2022 10:07:44 AM			^
-	Hosts Monitor	The hosts monitoring cannot be continued with the configured ping and state check intervals due to insufficient system resources. The monitoring intervals have been raised to at least 3 sec based on the current system performance.	9/22/2022 10:07:31 AM			
0	Hosts Monitor	The configured ping intervals have been restored. The current system performance allows the program to continue monitoring according to the settings.	9/22/2022 10:07:18 AM			
-	Hosts Monitor	The hosts monitoring cannot be continued with the configured ping and state check intervals due to insufficient system resources. The monitoring intervals have been raised to at least 6 sec based on the current system performance.	9/22/2022 10:07:05 AM			
0	Hosts Monitor	The configured ping intervals have been restored. The current system performance allows the program to continue monitoring according to the settings.	9/22/2022 8:43:15 AM			~
Sever	ity: Information Title: Ho	sts Monitor Time: 9/22/2022 10:07:44 AM				
Desc	iption:					
-						

🚯 9/22/2022 10:07:44 AM, The configured ping intervals have been restored. The current system performance allows the program to continue monitoring according to the settings.

Pic 1. The Log view

The **Log** view is located by default at the bottom of the Ping Monitor main window and displays the log in form of a tree and a pane that shows details of a selected event **Pic 1**. The description for any logged event is by default wrapped, so that you can easily read it. If you would like to have more events visible at the same time, you can configure the **Log** view to display only one line per event by disabling the **Wrap Description** option from the **Advanced Options** menu, after which a detailed description will only be shown in the event details pane. If you do not need the event details pane and would like to review the events only within the tree, you can hide the event details pane by disabling the **Show Event Details Pane** option from the **Advanced Options** menu. Also, it is possible to enable the automatic scrolling feature to always see new log events as soon as they arrive, using the **Autoscroll** item from the **Advanced Options** menu.

The logged events are selected only for the specified period. This approach is used to optimize memory usage and performance as there may be lots of events in the entire database. The display range for events is by default set to the **7 Days** value and can be changed with the range drop-down button on the view toolbar. The text on the button shows you the currently applied range. You can choose between the predefined ranges or provide a custom one.

Every event in the log is assigned a severity level represented by a certain icon. The icon allows you to see if any problem has occurred without reading the description. The following icons are available:

- the blue icon with an 'i' character means that everything is OK;
- S the brown circle icon with a cross-cut line is used to identify that the operation was canceled by user or due to shutdown of the underlying system;
- I the yellow icon with an exclamation mark is the warning sign: it tells you that some errors have occurred, but they are not critical. In such a case, there is no guarantee that the operation has actually succeeded;
- S the red icon with a white cross is the error sign: it means that the operation execution has failed.

Analyzing the log can help you a lot in your everyday work with Ping Monitor, because it contains all the information on the executed tasks and provides you with troubleshooting recommendations in case any problems are detected.

Toolbar Overview

•	Period The Period button from the Log view toolbar allows you to choose the time interval to display the logged events for.
- 🔄	Export The Export button should be used to export the log to a CSV file.
/	Clear The Clear button should be used to delete all the logged events from the program database.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button from the Log view toolbar should be used to expand all nodes in the table of logged events.

Full CollapseThe Full Collapse button from the Log view toolbar should be used to collapse all nodes
in the table of logged events.Image: Choose Columns
The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in
the table of logged events.Image: Filter Editor
The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied
to the data displayed within the table of logged events.Image: Advanced Options
The Advanced Options button enables you to configure the Log view, manage the
visibility of the event details pane and reset the view layout.

The options of clearing the log, expanding nodes in the tree of logged events and collapsing them are also available from the pop-up menu of the Log view.

The layout of the **Log** view, including the visible columns, the column widths, the sorting settings, the descriptions wrapping and the details pane visibility, can be easily reset to the initial defaults by choosing the **Reset Layout** option from the view menu.

Access Control View

The **Access Control** view **Pic 1** is by default located at the bottom of the main program window.

The Access Control view is available in the Enterprise Edition of the program only.

Its purpose is to define user roles and assign those roles to users and groups thus allowing granting or denying specific privileges to clients. For detailed information on configuring the privileges, refer to the **Access Control** section of this document.

Access Control						# X
🄐 🖉 X 🖂 🗮 🛅 🍸		0	a:		🗏 📑 🗊 🌱	0
Permissions			Ro	les		
Principal 🔺	Role			Name 🔺	Privileges	
Administrators (BUILTIN,Administrators)	Administrator			Administrator	All Privileges	
Alex (MERCURIUS\Alex)	Management		81	Management	Server Management	
Guest (MERCURIUS\Guest)	Read-Only			Monitoring	Monitoring	
Semote Management Users (BUILTIN/Remote	Reporting			No Access		
			80	Read-Only		
		:	81	Reporting	Reporting	
		:				

Pic 1. The Access Control view

The Access Control view is split in two parts, which are **Permissions** and **Roles**. Within the **Permissions** part, you can review and manage the currently effective associations between accounts and roles. The following icons are used within the **Permissions** group for displaying the type of the principal:

- the role is assigned to a user;
- 2 the role is assigned to a group.

Toolbar Overview

&1	Assign Permissions The Assign Permissions button allows you to assign roles to users and groups thus defining their privileges when they access the Ping Monitor server.
Ø	Edit The Edit button is used to reassign the access role for a selected user or group.
×	Delete The Delete button allows you to delete the selected access role assignments.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button should be used to expand all the grouping rows in the table.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button should be used to collapse all the grouping rows in the table.
-	Group By Box The Group By Box button should be used to configure the data grouping for the table.

9

<u>نې</u>

Choose Columns

The **Choose Columns** button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the table.

Filter Editor

The **Filter Editor** button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed within the table.

Configuration

The **Configuration** button provides access to the option of resetting the view layout.

The **Roles** part is used for reviewing and managing roles. For the **Roles** part, the following icons are used to define the type of the role:

- a build-in role;
- a user-defined role.

Toolbar Overview

	Add Role The Add Role button is used to create a new Ping Monitor server access role to be assigned to users and groups.
Ø	Edit The Edit button allows you to change the name and/or the set of enabled privileges for the selected user-defined access role.
×	Delete The Delete button is used to delete the selected user-defined access roles.
	Full Expand The Full Expand button should be used to expand all the grouping rows in the table.
	Full Collapse The Full Collapse button should be used to collapse all the grouping rows in the table.
	Group By Box The Group By Box button should be used to configure the data grouping for the table.
	Choose Columns The Choose Columns button should be used to choose the columns to be displayed in the table.
7	Filter Editor The Filter Editor button should be used to define the custom filter criteria to be applied to the data displayed within the table.
¢	Configuration The Configuration button provides access to the option of resetting the view layout.

You can regroup the layout of this view any way you want it using the **Group Layout** item from the **Configuration** menu. Both parts of this view fully support all the grouping and filtering features.

Operations View

The **Operations** view **Pic 1** shows the detailed progress of each operation being performed at the moment and allows canceling a particular operation or all running operations. By default, it is located at the bottom of the Ping Monitor main window.

Operations	8 ×
Cancel All	
ienerate Report Kosc	_
enerating report	
E Log Access Control Z Operations	

Pic 1. The Operations view

Cancel All

Progress information for every operation is shown in the pane with the progress bar, the operation information text and the **Cancel** button. The **Cancel** button is used to cancel individual running operations, whereas if the grouping operation is canceled, all the sub-operations are also canceled.

Cancel All

The **Cancel All** button from the **Operations** view toolbar can be used to cancel all the operations running in the application.

You can cancel all the running operations by clicking the **Cancel All** button on the toolbar of the **Operations** view.

Graphical User Interface features

EMCO Software provides you with a modern and intuitive graphical user interface, because we appreciate the users of our products and would like them to feel glad that they have EMCO programs installed on their PCs. Lots of resources were involved in creating this kind of an interface for you, and now we are proud we have done it. Custom DPI settings are fully supported, so that you can use EMCO programs on any display with any resolution you like. The '*Microsoft User Interface Guidelines on Layout, Icons and Sizing*' have been a powerful base for this work, and we are glad to tell you that they are fully complied with and supported. With the help of the skinning support and the Ribbon UI interface, every customer can configure the program UI to feel comfortable during each working day. EMCO also provides you with the **High Contrast** skin along with the bonus skins pack, which is an accessibility feature designed for people with vision impairment. The High Contrast color scheme can increase legibility for some users by heightening the screen contrast with alternative color combinations.

This chapter gives you a detailed description of how to fully enjoy the graphical user interface features, the skinning mechanism and the Ribbon bar features.

Skinning

Ping Monitor provides you with a wide range of custom skins with unique look and feel, so that you can choose any skin you like most. If you are a fan of the Microsoft Office interface, you have no reason to complain either, since Ping Monitor also gives you an option of choosing this type of skin. There are not only formal skins but also some informal ones.

All the skins can be divided into four groups: Office Skins, Custom Design Skins, Bonus Skins and Skins for Fun. The following skins are available:

Office Skins:	"Office 2019", "Office 2019 Black", "Office 2019 Dark", "Office 2019 White", "Office 2016", "Office 2016 Dark", "Office 2016 Black", "Office 2013", "Office 2013 Silver", "Office 2013 Black".
Custom Design Skins:	"Bright Style", "Dark Style", "Blue Vision", "Blue Vision 2013", "Light Vision 2013", "Dark Vision 2013", "High Contrast", "Metropolis", "Metropolis Dark", "Seven", "Seven Classic", "McSkin", "Blue", "Black".
Bonus Skins:	"Lilian", "iMaginary", "Caramel", "Money Twins", "Sharp", "Sharp Plus", "Foggy", "Darkroom", "Dark Side", "Liquid Sky", "London Liquid Sky", "The Asphalt World", "Glass Oceans", "Stardust", "Coffee", "Blueprint", "Whiteprint".
Skins for Fun:	"Christmas", "Valentine", "Summer", "Springtime".

Let us take a brief look at some of the skins:

Default skin look and feel example



Custom Design Skin look and feel example

• 61	EMCO Ping Monitor Enterprise											×			
Start	Stop Act	Pause Resume	Delete Statistics	Generate Report	Document Ho	st Group S	ummary Detailed Report Report	Web Interface Web							•
	a Docu	ument 1 🖷 🗙													-
Hests	6	Overview													
Report		Overview for all Hos	ts												11
5	1	State & Qu	ality ⁽⁾									O AI	Active	0	Î
	8					Acti	vity		<u>State</u>		Quality				
	2					27	86 Active		2692	Up	141	Good			
						92	69 Inactive		94	Down	2534	Warning			
			12055			c	Paused		0	Pending	19	Bad			
											92	Critical			
											0	Pending			
		Performan	ce 🛈 💽	Period: 5 Minut	es (9/29/2022 1:11 /	M - 9/29/2022 1:	16 AM) *	Alerts	D			C 48	C Active	0	
		100													
		80									0	Critical			
		(%) 52 52 60									94	Major			
		Ŷ 40							94		0	Minor			
		20									0	Acknowle	dged		÷
	📙 Log 🧯	🗃 Access Control 🧵	Operations												
Hosts:	12055 (278	36 active - 2692 up, 94 d	lown)											1	

Skins for Fun look and feel example

i	🕼 - 🗋 🕈 in the sector in the	a the second second	ÉN	ACO Ping Monitor E	interprise			e la la construcción de la constru	-' = x
H	Some View Program								0
Start Sto	p Pause Resume Delete Statistics Statistics To	Generate Report Reporting	fost Group Summary De Report Ru New	tailed Web Interface Web					
1 Do	cument 1 🖷 ×	.0 0			o			0 0	~ *
Hests	Overview								
	Overview for all Hosts								
apoets	State & Quality)						Q All Q Adive	o î
00			Act	tivity	State		Quality		
			2	786 Active	2693	Up	141	Good	
			9	269 Inactive	93	Down	2532	Warning	
	120	55		0 Paused	0	Pending	21	Bad	
							92	Critical	
							0	Pending	4
	Performance ⁽ⁱ⁾	Period: 5 Minutes (9/	29/2022 1:12 AM - 9/29/2022	1:17 AM -	Alerts ^③			Q All Q Active	1
	100								
	80						.0	Critical	
	£ 60						93	Major	
	40 40			_	93			Minor	0
	20							Million A. A. A. A.	
							0	Acknowledged	¢
E Log	Access Control	ns		1. M.					7
mosts: 120551	(2100 active - 2003 up, 33 down)		5	10 10 10					i. 🔺

High Contrast Skin look and feel



Ribbon

Ribbon is a tool that presents commands organized into a set of tabs. The tabs on the Ribbon represent commands that are most relevant for each of the task areas in the program **Pic 1**. For example, in Office Word the tabs group commands by activities such as inserting objects like pictures and tables, doing page layout, working with preferences, doing mailings, and reviewing. The Home tab provides an easy access to the most frequently used commands. Office Excel has a similar set of tabs that make sense for spreadsheet work including tabs for working with formulas, managing data, and reviewing. Those tabs simplify access to the program features, because they organize the commands in a way that reflects the tasks people perform in those programs.

0 3	() 🗇 = - = - = - = - = - = - = - = - = - =	Hosts Tools	EMCO Ping Monitor Enterprise	1	-	
- 10 -	Home View Program	Hosts				
		8	🗄 📶 🛄 🛅 🔚 🔩			
Start	Stop Pause Resume D	elete atistics	Senerate Document Host Group Summary Detailed Web Report Report Report Interface			
	Activity is Sta	tistics 15	eporting New Web			

Pic 1. The Ribbon bar

We are delighted to let you know that we fully conform with *Microsoft* ® *Ribbons Guidelines* and would like to introduce some Ribbon features to you. To learn more about Ribbon, the story of its development and its usability features, you may visit '*The Story of the Ribbon*' article from the MSDN blogs.

Application Menu

The **Application Menu** invoked using the **Application** button **Pic 2** is somewhat similar to the File menu in most programs that use a classic user interface, but it gives you more.



Pic 2. Application Menu

It contains links to the most helpful actions located under different tabs but made available from one access point.

Quick Access Toolbar

The **Quick Access Toolbar** Pic 3 is an end-user customizable bar located near the **Application Menu** or below the Ribbon bar depending on the configuration. It can contain links to both Ribbon items and Ribbon groups.



Pic 3. Quick Access Toolbar

To add an action link to the quick access toolbar, right click this action and select **Add to Quick Access Toolbar** from the pop-up menu. The groups can be added in the same way, the only difference being that to add a group you should right click its caption.

Representation and Navigation Features

The representation of the Ribbon bar can also be configured to make your work more comfortable. You can minimize Ribbon so that the tab's content is only shown when the tab is clicked on, thus extending the program workspace. Also, if it is not convenient for you to have the **Quick Access Toolbar** next to the **Application Menu**, you may place it below the Ribbon bar, so that it will look just like a simple toolbar. This configuration can be accessed from the pop-up menu of the Ribbon bar **Pic 4**.



Pic 4. The Ribbon customization menu

Navigation between the Ribbon tabs can be performed not only with a mouse click on a tab but also with the help of the mouse wheel. Just place the cursor over any tab and scroll the wheel – scrolling up will switch the tabs from right to left, and scrolling down will switch the tabs in the opposite direction.

Main features of UI Elements

The graphics shell used for Ping Monitor is aimed at providing a high level of usability to everyone. This topic covers main features of the graphical elements used in this program, and here you can find what puts EMCO GUI a step ahead of the others.

Docking

The Ping Monitor user interface is built using the ultimate docking technology which provides for the maximum use of the program working area. It allows docking the windows that are used less often than the main one to the sides, auto hide them or even close and then open again when required. The dock panels can be docked both to the main window and to each other, thus enabling you to build such a subsidiary window layout that makes you feel comfortable while working with Ping Monitor Pic 1.



Pic 1. Docking preview

To change the position of any dock window, you should click its header and move the mouse pointer while holding the left mouse button down. Hint windows are shown to help you understand where you can drop the window dragged. When you are dragging it over another dock window, it is possible to dock both windows to each other or display them in different tabs of the same dock window. When a dock window is floating, you can expand it to full screen by either clicking the **Full Screen** button in the windows title bar or pressing **F11** on the keyboard. To exit the full screen mode, just press **F11**.

To enable the auto hide feature for a window attached to any side of a main window, click the pin button in the dock window header. Clicking the cross button results in closing of the dock window. Each view can also be closed and opened again using the checkboxes in the **Show** Ribbon group accessible from the **View** page.

Grouping and Filtering Data

The Ping Monitor user interface is designed so as to make its usage as flexible as possible. The tables available in every EMCO program provide you with an easy-to-use data filtration and grouping mechanism. To group data by one of the columns, you should drag its header to the grouping box displayed over the table or choose an appropriate item from the column header pop-up menu Pic 2.

State 🔺		
	Group	

Pic 2. The grouping box of a table grouped by two columns

To group or ungroup data by any column when **Group By Box** Pic 2 is not visible, you can have it displayed by selecting the **Show Group By Box** item from the pop-up menu of any column header.

Data filtration can be performed in two ways: by using the quick filter or the filter editor. To use the quick filter feature, just click on the glyph in the right top corner of any column header. A dropdown list appears offering you to choose one of the predefined filters or select the custom one from the filtering dialog **Pic 3**.

Y Name	Activity	
Values		^
Clear Filter	Close	
h-05690.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-05691.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-05692.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-05693.emcosoftware.com	Active	v

Pic 3. Accessing the quick filter abilities

The **Filter Editor** shipped with Ping Monitor is easy to use and allows you to build your own complex filters quickly and easily **Pic 4**. To open the filter editor, choose the **Filter Editor** item from the column's pop-up menu.

Filter Editor	×
Configure Filter Condition Provide the filter condition to be applied to the view. You can filter the column filter conditions by any column and group any way you want.	7
And Type = Host	
Apply OK (Cancel

Pic 4. Using the filter editor

You can enable and disable the currently applied filter condition using the checkbox displayed next to the filter condition in the bottom of the view, inside the filter info pane Pic 5.

Name	Activity	
h-06433.emcosoftware.com	Active	^
h-06434.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06435.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06436.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06437.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06440.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06442.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06443.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06444.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06445.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06447.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06450.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06451.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06452.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06454.emcosoftware.com	Active	
h-06455.emcosoftware.com	Active	~
X V Type = Host V		Edit Filter

Pic 5. The filter info pane

To reset the currently applied filter use the \bowtie button from the filter info pane, and to customize it use the **Edit Filter** button from this pane.

Managing Columns in Trees and Tables

You can customize almost every table and tree in EMCO programs by moving and removing columns to make the control most informative for you. To move a column, drag it over the control's header and drop between other columns to its new position **Pic 6**.

Name	Activity	On Startup 👻	
h-05771.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	^
h-05772.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05773.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05775.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05776.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05777.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05778.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05780.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05781.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05782.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05783.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05784.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05786.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05787.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05788.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05789.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05790.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
h-05792.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	
b-05793.emcosoftware.com	Active	Restore Activity	~

Pic 6. Moving a column

To remove a column that is of no use for you, right click the control's header and select the **Remove This Column** item from the pop-up menu. Also, you can control columns availability using the column chooser **Pic 7**.

Name 🔺	Activity	Description	
h-05771.emcosoftware.com	Active	Description	^
h-05772.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05773.emcosoftware.com	Active	Customization ×	
h-05775.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05776.emcosoftware.com	Active	Search for a column P	
h-05777.emcosoftware.com	Active	Description	
h-05778.emcosoftware.com	Active	Dynamic IP	
h-05780.emcosoftware.com	Active	Group	
h-05781.emcosoftware.com	Active	On Startup	
h-05782.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05783.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05784.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05786.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05787.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05788.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05789.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05790.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05792.emcosoftware.com	Active		
h-05793.emcosoftware.com	 Active 	0	~

Pic 7. Using the column chooser

To show the column chooser, right click the control's header and select the **Column Chooser** menu item. After that, you can drag and drop columns from the header to the column chooser and backwards.

Automatic Saving and Restoring of Windows Layout

One of the service functions of Ping Monitor user interface is its ability to save and restore the windows layout. All the changeable parameters like the windows sizes and positions; the table columns order, sizes and positions; the grouping and filtering options; the dock windows configuration, etc. are saved between sessions. Thus, you do not need to configure the program's user interface layout every time you start this program.

Chapter 4: Hosts Management

Ping Monitor is a tool for monitoring the hosts connectivity. So the primary object in the program is the one that represents the remote host in the program, it is also called a host. All hosts can be grouped via host groups. A group, for instance, allows you to add a single unit as a report member, adding a group reference, and change a set of hosts included into the report by simply changing a set of group members. Also the group allows you to define custom settings to be applied for all hosts in it during the monitoring, unless the settings are overridden on a host itself. See the **Overriding Common Settings** section of this document for details.

The host is used as a master object for all data gathered by the program. It means that the gathered data is connected to a host, which allows to maintain the host monitoring statistics and to create statistical reports for specific date intervals. The most part of the monitoring data for the host is stored until deleted by the user or until the host is deleted. The historical data can also be deleted automatically when treated as outdated – this option is available for configuration in the program preferences.

All the hosts are displayed in the **Hosts** view. In this chapter we will take a closer look on the process of defining the hosts and groups of hosts, configuring them for monitoring, changing hosts configuration, deleting hosts or groups, integrating with external tools and at the process of hosts import and export.

Defining Hosts and Groups

The hosts are displayed in the **Hosts** view either in the hierarchical or in the flat form, depending on the view configuration. In this chapter, we will describe how to create hosts and groups, configure them for monitoring and delete them when they are no longer needed.

à	
Host	·

Host

The **Host** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the **Home** page and on the **Hosts** page from the **Hosts Tools** category should be used to add a new host or a range of hosts to be monitored.

To create a new host or a group of hosts from an IP range, you should press the **Host** button from the **New** group on the **Home** Ribbon page or on the **Hosts** page from the **Hosts Tools** category. Alternatively, you can use the **New > Host** routine from the **Hosts Browser** view toolbar and popup menu. In any case, the dialog will appear on the screen to help you with the creation process **Pic 1**.

Add Host Specify Monitored Host Info Provide a host address to mor and override the monitoring s	rmation itor along with additional host information, indicate if the host uses a dynamic IP address, ettings, if required.
General Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Gateway Options Intervals Automation Alerts and Notifications Notification Time Recipients Custom Fields	Enter the single network host address or the IP addresses range to monitor connection to. The single host address can be specified both as a host name and an IP address. Add Single Host Address: This host uses a dynamic IP address Add Hosts Range Start IP: 192 , 168 , 10 , 50 End IP: 192 , 168 , 10 , 54 Resolve address to host name Do not add if not resolved Label: Group: Texas Description: Start monitoring when added
1	Add Cancel

Pic 1. Adding a host or a range of hosts
In the **Add Host** dialog, you should first choose if you would like to add a single host or a range of hosts by specifying their IP addresses. If you would like to add a single host, leave the **Add Single Host** radio button chosen, enter the host address into the **Address** field and indicate if this host uses a dynamic IP address. In case of adding a range of hosts, you should provide the start and end IP addresses for the range. To perform the name resolution from IP addresses to host names when adding a range of hosts, you should check the **Resolve address to host name** option. If the host names resolution is enabled, you can specify if the hosts whose names cannot be resolved should be added to the monitoring data or not by using the **Do not add if not resolved** option.

The **Label** and **Description** fields can be used for easier host identification, and the **Group** field allows you to select the group this host belongs to. Also, you can provide additional configuration settings using appropriate tabs of the **Add Host** dialog.

On the **Custom Fields** page, you can provide values for a set of custom fields defined in the program preferences. Custom fields can be displayed in the **Hosts** view when corresponding columns are added. Custom fields can be used also within notifications and when integrating with external tools.

If you do not want the monitoring process to start automatically for hosts being added, uncheck the **Start monitoring when added** box. When you are done with providing the required information, press **Add** for the host or the hosts to be created. The created hosts will be automatically included into the auto-start list.



Group

Group

The **Group** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the **Home** page and on the **Hosts** page from the **Hosts Tools** category allows you to create a new hosts group.

To create a new group of hosts, you should use the **Group** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the **Home** page or on the **Hosts** page from the **Hosts Tools** category. Alternatively you can use the **Group** item from the **New** button pop-up on the **Hosts** view toolbar and the appropriate item in the view pop-up menu. The **Add Group** dialog will appear on the screen to configure the group being created **Pic 2**.

General Gr	oup Properties Enter a name for the group, choose the obj	ects to be included into the group and pr	rovide
Connection Quality	Name: Texas	Parent Group: [none]	
Gateway Options Intervals Automation Alerts and Notifications Notification Time Recipients Custom Fields	Name h-09244.emcosoftware.com h-09245.emcosoftware.com h-09246.emcosoftware.com h-09247.emcosoftware.com	Description Country Code: US, Region/Code: Texa Country Code: US Country Code: US Country Code: US	NT/24
	Description:		

Pic 2. Creating a group of hosts

When creating a group you are proposed to define the group name and description as well as the set of hosts and groups to be included into a group being created. The name and description are used to make it easier for you to identify the group being created in the future. To add a host or a group to the group being created use the **Add** button from the members tree toolbar or choose an appropriate item from the pop-up menu. The dialog will be displayed to let you choose the hosts and groups to be added. Those items that are already in the group being created are filtered from those available. The **Delete** button and menu item are used to remove the selected hosts and groups from the group being created. When configuring a group, it is also possible to provide the settings to be applied to hosts within the group, unless overridden, on the corresponding tabs. As soon as the group is configured, press **Add** to create it.

To edit any host or group, select it and either choose the Edit button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page or use the **Edit** items from the view toolbar and pop-up menu. The editing process is similar to the creation. When some hosts or groups are no longer needed you can delete them using either the **Delete** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page or use the **Delete** items from the view toolbar and pop-up menu. When you are deleting hosts and groups they are also deleted from all groups and reports they are currently included into.

Within the **Hosts** view it is also possible to copy and move hosts and groups between other groups as well as create their duplicates. This can be done either via the drag and drop technique, or via the copy/paste one. The **Cut**, **Copy**, and **Paste** items from the **Clipboard** Ribbon group on the **Program** page can be used, as well as the appropriate items from the pop-up menu. It is also possible to copy hosts and groups between different editions of the program and use the export feature. For the details on import and export, refer to the Importing and Exporting Hosts section of this document.

Overriding Common Settings

Ping Monitor comes with a wide range of monitoring and notification options those are defined in the program preferences. The options defined in preferences are initially used for all monitored hosts, but you can override specific groups of options for particular hosts or groups of hosts.

It is possible to override common settings when using the Enterprise or Professional editions of the program. The Free edition doesn't allow overriding common settings and specifying custom settings for hosts and groups.

When an options value for a host is calculated, first it checks if it is overridden on a host itself and on any of the parent groups. In case it is overridden on any level, than the overridden value is used, otherwise the value from program preferences is taken into account.

The overriding features are available during the hosts and groups addition and modification. The options are gathered on the corresponding navigator pages of the configuration dialog, those are:

Monitor Settings, Connection Quality, Performance, Gateway Options, Intervals, Automation, Alerts and Notifications, Notification Time, Recipients and Custom Fields.

For example, to override the monitoring settings, you should check the **Override ping options configuration** box on the **Monitoring** page, and then perform the required changes. Changing the common configuration, either from preferences or from the parent group, can be reached via the **Change common/parent configuration** link. To reset the settings to common, you can use the **Reset to common/parent** link. As you can see, the approach is easy and can be used to reach maximum flexibility of the monitoring process configuration.

Using Custom Fields

Using custom fields you can specify additional characteristics of hosts that can be used in various of cases. For example, you can specify a geographical location of the host, a name of the responsible person or a room number where a host is located. Custom fields can be displayed for a host together with other characteristics, so you can search, group and filter hosts by custom fields and use custom fields in notifications and custom actions.

To start using custom fields you need to specify a set of custom fields in the **Custom Fields** section of the program preferences **Pic 1**. You can add one or multiple fields according to your needs. You can add fields by specifying a custom field name only, or specify a custom field name and its value. Custom fields specified in preferences are automatically set to all hosts.

Preferences					×
Monitoring	^	î (Custom Fields		
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation		F	ing Monitor allows you to sponitored Hosts, which can t ields Provide a set of custo Host can be specified actions and e-mail me Name:	pecify a set of custom fields to define a hen be included into notifications by m fields for Hosts. As soon as provided during Host configuration. When use ssages, the field names are replaced w Value:	additional properties for means of placeholders. d, the field value for each d as placeholders for rith provided values.
Latency Measurement					Add
			Name	▲ Value	Delete
Alerts and Events Alerts and Notifications Balloons and Sounds Notification Mail Templates Notification Time	^		CUSTOMER_NAME		
General	^	I.			
Recipients <u>Custom Fields</u> Reports Storage Reports Customization Report Mail Templates External Tools					
			Learn more about cus	tom fields	
Miscellaneous	^	~			Apply
Restore Defaults					OK Cancel

Pic 1. Custom fields specification in Preferences

If you plan to set different custom fields values for hosts, you can specify custom fields names only in the program preferences and set custom fields values for hosts. To do that you need to create a new host or edit an existing host. Open **Custom Fields** in the host settings and turn on the **Override configuration** option. Now you can set custom values for the fields for this particular host **Pic 2**.

General E	The the nar	e custom fields values defined me in the pair o	are additional host proper d for those properties in the of '%' signs as displayed in t	ties that e notific the tabl	t are defined by end use ations by specifying the e below.	rs. You can use custom field
Connection Quality	•	Override contr	Dissebolder	chang	e parent configuration	Reset to parer
Performance		Overridden	Placenoider %CATECODV%	-	Value	
Catavara Oatlana			%CUSTOMER NAME%		Alfred	
Gateway Options						
Intervals						
Automation						
Automation						
lerts and Notifications						
erts and Notifications						
Alerts and Notifications Notification Time						
Alerts and Notifications Notification Time Recipients						
erts and Notifications otification Time ecipients ustom Fields						
rts and Notifications tification Time ipients tom Fields						
rts and Notifications tification Time cipients stom Fields						
ts and Notifications fication Time pients tom Fields						
s and Notifications ication Time pients om Fields						
and Notifications cation Time ients m Fields						
s and Notifications lication Time pients om Fields						

Pic 2. Specifying a value for the custom fields of a specific host

Once custom values are set for the hosts, you can start using them in the program. For example, you can display custom fields in the **Hosts** view. To do that you can right-click the **Hosts** table header and select the **Choose Columns** in the content menu. In the displayed dialog you can see the added custom fields, so you can click them to add to the hosts table. Now you can use the standard grouping, filtering and sorting features available in the table to organize hosts by custom fields.

You can use custom fields in notifications and custom actions where custom fields are available as placeholders. Edit **Notification Mail Templates** or configure a **Custom Actions** where you can use configured custom fields.

Integrating External Tools

Ping Monitor allows you to launch external tools directly from the **Hosts** view, providing host properties as the command line parameters. The options are available in the **External Tools** submenu of the **Hosts** view pop-up menu when a single host is selected. The program comes with a built-in set of predefined tools that allow you to open remote desktop connection to the host, view the hosted web-site in a browser, launch console utilities, such a ping and tracert. You can disable predefined tools and add you custom ones on the **External Tools** preference page, which can be also reached directly from the menu when choosing the **Configure External Tools** option. Please note, that the external tools are launched on the client side, i.e. on the PC where the Ping Monitor client is running.

Importing and Exporting Hosts

With Ping Monitor, you can easily import and export hosts information any time you want. You can export one or all of the available hosts and groups to use the exported data as a back-up, to share the hosts with your colleagues or simply to import them to another instance of the program. The import feature can be used to import hosts information both from the files created during export and those created manually. For example, you can create a CSV file manually to add multiple hosts by adding their data in Microsoft Office Excel. To get detailed information on the file formats used for import and export, review the Export/Import Formats section. This chapter covers the process of importing and exporting host information.

5
<u> </u>
mport

Import

The **Import** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page should be used to import hosts information from an XML or CSV file with the help of the wizard.

The hosts information can be imported into Ping Monitor from XML and CSV files. The XML file structure is quite complex, so it is not recommended to create it manually, but it is recommended to use it for export. The CSV file should consist of five columns: the host address, the label, the indication if the host uses a dynamic IP, the group and the description - each column should be separated with the field delimiter. The CSV file can be created manually to be able to add multiple hosts to Ping Monitor easily.

If you want to import the hosts information into Ping Monitor, press the **Import** button from **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page. The **Import Hosts Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. The Import Hosts Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Import Hosts Wizard** is the welcome page, which is used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information, press **Next** to continue with import.

On the next page of the **Import Hosts Wizard**, you are offered to choose the file you are going to import hosts information from. The file path should be provided in the **Import** From field <u>Pic 2</u>. The format of the provided file is detected automatically. The encoding of the XML file with hosts information is also detected automatically. For the CSV format, the preview page is displayed, where you can tune the parse options, being able to preview the parsing results.

Import Hosts Wizard	×
Specify File Path Input manually or specify the path to the file containing the data to import. The data should be in the XML or CSV format. For the CSV format, the encoding may be specified in the next step.	2
Import From: C:\Users\Alex\Documents\Host.csv	
The chosen file format is detected automatically. The encoding of the XML file with imported d detected automatically. For the CSV format, the displayed preview page enables you to tune th options while getting online results.	lata is also ne parse
< Back Next > Finish	Cancel

Pic 2. Choosing the import source file

The next page offers you to choose the hosts to import. By default, all the valid hosts that does not duplicate already existing addresses are selected **Pic 3**. Optionally, you can specify if the monitoring for new hosts should be started as soon as the hosts are added.

Check one or more objects from those av program.	ailable	e - the checke	d objects will	be imported into the	Į
87 87 🗖 🗮 🔳 🌱					(
lame		Dynamic IP	Auto-start	Description	
🛛 🗹 🐑 Hosts					
🔺 🗹 🛅 Europe					
🕨 🔽 🔄 France					
🕨 🗹 🛄 Germany					
🔺 🗹 🐑 USA					
🕨 🗹 🐑 California					
New York					
🕨 🗹 🐑 Texas					
4 🗌 🛄 Servers		_	_		
DBMS (dbms.emco.local)		Z	Z		
					>
Start monitoring when added					

Pic 3. Choosing the hosts to import

When the hosts to import have been chosen, press **Finish**. When the import is done, the hosts are added the program thus can be monitored.



Export

The **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page should be used to export hosts and/or groups of hosts from the program to an XML or CSV file that can be used in the future for import.

The hosts' information can be exported to the XML or CSV file format. The overridden settings are saved only into an XML format file. The hosts export can be performed either from the **Hosts Browser** or from the **Hosts** view. You can choose between exporting all objects and those that are currently selected. To perform export, use an appropriate option from the drop-down of the **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page. The **Export Hosts Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 4**.



Pic 4. The Export Hosts Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Export Hosts Wizard** is the welcome page, which is used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information, press **Next** to continue with export.

On the next page you are offered to choose the file you are going to save the hosts information to, the file format and the format options. The file path should be provided in the **Export To** field **Pic 5**. For the XML format, you can choose the encoding to be used for saving the host information, and for the CSV file, the field delimiter and the text qualifier should be specified together with the encoding. When exporting to the CSV file format, you can also define if you would like the column headers to be preserved in the resulting file, which can make it easier for you to identify each column – this feature can be enabled using the **Include column header** option.

Configu	re Export Opti	ons				a
Speci	fy the path to the gure the format of	e file for the exported da options.	ita and the	format you would like to	use, and	
Export To	C:\Users\Alex\	Documents\Host.xml				
Export	t to XML file					
XML	The XML data fi elements called format.	le is a structured file that tags. See the program d	t contains in locumentati	nformation about every o on for detailed informati	bject grouped by on about the XML file	
	Encoding: Uni	code (UTF-8)				v
Export	to CSV file					
C Export	to CSV file The CSV data fil separated with about the CSV f	le comprises columns, ea the specified field delim ille format.	ich standing iter. See the	g for a certain object prop program documentation	erty. The columns are for detailed informat	ior
C Export	to CSV file The CSV data fil separated with about the CSV f Encoding:	le comprises columns, ea the specified field delim lile format. Unicode (UTF-8)	ich standing iter. See the	g for a certain object prop program documentation	erty. The columns are for detailed informat	ior
C Export	to CSV file The CSV data fil separated with about the CSV f Encoding: Field Delimiter:	le comprises columns, ea the specified field delim file format. Unicode (UTF-8) , (Comma)	ich standing iter. See the	g for a certain object prog program documentation Text Qualifier: ^ (Quote	erty. The columns are for detailed informat	ior
O Export	to CSV file The CSV data fil separated with about the CSV f Encoding: Field Delimiter:	le comprises columns, ea the specified field delim file format. Unicode (UTF-8) , (Comma)	iter. See the	g for a certain object prog program documentation Text Qualifier: [* (Quote	erty. The columns are for detailed informat	ior

Pic 5. Configuring export options

When the file path and the export form are chosen, press **Finish** to proceed with export. The file containing the hosts' information will be created in the location according to the path specified. The file created during export can be used in the future to import the hosts' information back to the program.

Now you are fully introduced to the export and import capabilities of Ping Monitor and can use them in future to solve your tasks.

Export/Import Formats

This section describes the file formats used by Ping Monitor during hosts import and export. The available formats are CSV and XML. The CSV format file consists of five columns, namely:

Index	Header	Description	Mandat ory
1	Address	The host name or IP address.	Yes
2	Label	The label used for the host.	No

Index	Header	Description	Mandat ory
3	DynamicI P	The indication that the host uses a dynamic IP address. 'yes' should be used if the IP address is dynamic, otherwise use 'no'.	No
4	Group	The group the host belongs to.	No
5	Descripti on	The description used for the host.	No

Sampe CSV file

"Address", "Label", "Dynamic IP", "Group", "Description", "QuickLaunch"

- "h-00001.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"
- "h-00002.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"
- "h-00003.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"
- "h-00004.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"
- "h-00005.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"
- "h-00006.emcosoftware.com",,"yes","Hosts\USA\California",,"yes"

The host and groups in the XML file are hierarchically structured. Each item is represented with the **Entry** node, which has its **Type** attribute set either to **Group** or to **Host**. The other attributes are the following.

Attribute	Description						
	The following attributes are used for the Host entry type.						
Address	The host name or IP address.	Yes					
Label	The label used for the host.	No					
DynamicIP	The indication that the host uses a dynamic IP address. 'True' should be used if the IP address is dynamic, otherwise use 'False'.						
	The following attributes are used for the Group entry type.						
Name	The name of the hosts group.	Yes					
The	following attributes are used for both the Host and the Group entry types	•					
GUID	The unique item identifier in the database.	Yes					
Description	The description used for the item.	No					
Settings	Overridden monitoring process settings applied to this item in the XML format.	No					

Sampe XML file

<?xml version="1.0" encoding="utf-8"?>

```
<Data Version="3" Format="Hosts">
```

<Entry Type="Group" GUID="95ed6793-f3f8-4820-ad73-c504bd00b1c6" Name="Hosts">

<Entry Type="Group" GUID="323bde41-118f-4e97-ae4b-641d5c94db56" Name="USA">

<Entry Type="Group" GUID="e08465bf-6df2-4d3e-aa46-70db5f71610b" Name="California">

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="2f56be60-272a-4549-b152-542c5a90d15a" Address="h-00001.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="47d47b21-f3cf-44be-8056-673d134fc40c" Address="h-00002.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="5ea43d1e-c276-4705-a577-90217f734aaf" Address="h-00005.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

</Entry>

</Entry>

</Entry>

<Entry Type="Group" GUID="46678cbc-43e2-4a8f-9266-d02061919af6" Name="Texas">

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="bdb50796-d206-4092-99ad-23c1890d861a" Address="h-00111.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="b8d3110c-32c2-4646-84c6-9eff75fa3045" Address="h-00114.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

<Entry Type="Host" GUID="53c88234-2b91-4b38-a5a9-424a5ad7bf1b" Address="h-00115.emcosoftware.com" DynamicIP="yes" QuickLaunch="yes" Settings="" />

</Entry>

</Data>

Now you are introduced to the formats used for storing the hosts information and can prepare the files to be used for export manually or edit the data exported earlier to be used for future imports.

Chapter 5: Monitoring Connectivity

The main goal of Ping Monitor is to provide you with easy-to-use connection monitoring features. After you have added and configured the hosts to monitor, you are ready to start the monitoring process. As soon as the process is started, the program checks for the host state and connection quality changes using the options defined on the **Monitoring Settings** and **Connection Quality** preference pages. During this process the monitoring statistics is gathered by the program, to allow you review the overall monitoring statistics for each host and build performance and availability reports for required periods of time. The mentioned reports are covered in details in the **Reporting** section of this document.

The monitoring process for each host can either be inactive, active or paused. The activity can be either controlled manually or by the program taking into account the automation and monitoring intervals options defined in the program preferences and per host. While the monitoring process is paused, the ping packets are not sent to the remote hosts and the ping statistics stays the same until the monitoring process is resumed.

The monitored host can be in one of three states, those are: **Up**, **Down** and **Pending**. For the details on state monitoring, please refer the Host State Monitoring section of this document. Along with the host state, Ping Monitor monitors the connection quality. The available qualities are **Good**, **Warning**, **Bad**, **Critical** and **Pending**. The Connection Quality Monitoring section covers the process of monitoring a connection quality.

Ping Monitor can alert you on the hosts state or connection quality changes via e-mail, balloon or sounds. Also it is possible to trigger custom actions on hosts state or connection quality changes. The program alerts and notifications can be configured on the **Alerts and Notifications** preference page. You can choose which notification is enabled for each trigger and specify the delay for each action, if required.

In this chapter we will go through all the aspects of monitoring activity management and describe the statistics gathered during hosts monitoring in details.

Controlling Activity

Ping Monitor is used to check the remote host state and connection quality and notify the user on changes. The state and connection quality checks are performed only when the monitoring process is active. The monitoring process can be activated either automatically on the server startup, if this is enabled on the **Automation** preference page, or manually. Then the process can be either paused or stopped both automatically and manually. This chapter will show you how to control the monitoring process activity.



Start

The **Start** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page should be used to start monitoring for the currently selected hosts.

The monitoring process can be activated automatically on startup in two cases: either the host monitoring was active at the end of the previous session and it is configured to restore activity for hosts or the host is included in auto-start and it is configured to start monitoring for such hosts.

To start a monitoring manually for specific hosts, you can select those hosts in the **Hosts** view and press the **Start** button on the **Activity** Ribbon group located on the **Home** page. You can also start monitoring by clicking the **Start Monitoring** item in the pop-up menu or the **Start** item on the **Manage Activity** button drop-down available on the toolbar. The **Statistics** view can be used to start monitoring too.



Stop

The **Stop** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page allows you to stop monitoring for the currently selected hosts.

With Ping Monitor, it is possible to stop the monitoring process for any host being monitored any time you want. If you want to stop monitoring for hosts, select them in the **Hosts** or **Statistics** view and press the **Stop** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page. Alternatively you can use the **Stop Monitoring** item from the pop-up menu or the **Stop** item from the **Manage Activity** button drop-down on the toolbar.



Pause

The **Pause** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page allows you to pause monitoring for the currently selected hosts.



Resume

The **Resume** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page should be used to resume monitoring for the currently selected hosts.

With Ping Monitor, it is possible to pause the monitoring process any time you want. While the monitoring process is paused, the ping packets are not sent to the remote hosts and the ping statistics stays the same until the monitoring process is resumed. To pause monitoring manually, select the required host and press the **Pause** button from the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** page. Alternatively you can use the **Pause Monitoring** item from the pop-up menu or the **Pause** item from the **Manage Activity** button drop-down on the toolbar. It can also be paused automatically upon a certain predefined condition for a specified interval using the automation features of Ping Monitor. If the monitoring is paused, you can restart its operation using the **Resume Monitoring** menu item, or stop it completely using the **Stop Monitoring** menu item.

Analyzing Statistics

Ping Monitor gathers and stores per host performance and availability data while monitoring remote hosts connectivity. This data consists of the live statistics, integral historical statistics and raw historical data. You can review the monitoring statistics within on the **Statistics** page of the document, located at the center of the main screen. Let's take a detailed look on each layer of the monitoring data.

The live statistics is gathered while the server is running and restored on startup from raw historical data, in case if the raw data is configured to be persisted. The available live statistics intervals are provided within the **Live Data** section of the **Monitoring Statistics** preference page.

The historical data is stored hourly since the first time the monitoring was started. For each hour, all required characteristics are available: the monitoring time, the pause time, the uptime interval, the downtime interval, all latency characteristics, etc. This approach allows Ping Monitor to provide you with monitoring data for specific periods of time in the past with the maximum precision of one hour. Along with the hourly integrated data it is possible to store the raw responses data, that can be used to review **Timeline** and restore live statistics on restart. By default, the program stores all historical data for all hosts ever monitored until their statistics is deleted. If required, you can prevent the history database from continuous growing by configuring the historical data automatic removal or by disabling raw data storing in the **Historical Data** section of the **Monitoring Statistics** preference page.



Delete Statistics

The **Delete Statistics** button from the **Statistics** Ribbon group on the **Home** page should be used to delete all monitoring data for the selected hosts.

In case you want to begin the host monitoring from scratch, you do not need to delete the host and then create a new one. Ping Monitor provides you with an option of deleting the monitoring data for any host even without stopping the monitoring process. To delete all monitoring data for a host, select it and press the **Delete Statistics** button from the **Statistics** Ribbon group on the **Home** page. Alternatively, you can use the **Delete Statistics** button on the toolbar and the corresponding item from the pop-up menu.

Please note, that both live data, historical data and summary data will be permanently deleted when deleting monitoring statistics, so it won't be possible to generate historical data reports and review statistics for previous monitoring sessions.

If you have enable the raw data storing, you can review the monitoring timeline and export the information on each ping reply any time you want from the **Statistics** view while reviewing single host details. Just use the **Timeline** and the **Export Raw Data** buttons in the view header.

port Raw D)ata \	Wizard	I												
xport Peri	od													K	
Specify if data sent	i you t dur	would ing a s	l like t specifi	o expo c perio	rt all a d of tii	vailabl me.	e ping i	replies da	ta for f	the sel	ected I	nost or	only		
) Export all	avail	lable p	ing re	plies d	ata										
Export pir	ng re	plies d	lata fo	r the s	pecifie	d perio	od of tii	me: Cus	tom Ra	nge					
Start: 8/7	7/202	2		End:	8/13	/2022]							
								1							
€						July,	2022 -	August, 2	2022						
			Ju	uly 202	2					Au	gust 2(022			
9	SU	MO	TU	WE	TH	FR	SA	SU	MO	TU	WE	TH	FR	SA	
						1	2		1	2	3	4	5	6	
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	14	15	16	17				
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23								
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30								
	31														
									. P	ack		Maxta		Can	cal

Pic 1. Choosing the raw data export period

The **Export Raw Data Wizard** will be displayed on the screen to guide you through the export process. You can either choose to export raw ping replies data for a specific period of time or entire data set **Pic 1**. The data is exported to the specified CSV file when you press the **Finish** button on the data export wizard after providing the required information.

Using Alerts

The program allows you to detect connection problems of monitored hosts using alerts. You can configure custom alerts according to your needs to detect different types of problems. In alert configuration you can specify a condition that is evaluated for each monitored host separately. Once this condition is satisfied, the program reports an alert for the host, so you can see the alert in the program and this alert shows the host for which it is reported. An alert ends in two cases: it is resolved when the condition is no longer met, or it is canceled when either host monitoring is stopped or the condition has been modified and is no longer satisfied.

You can view alerts on the **Alerts Summary** page. The top view displays active alerts detected at the current moment, while the bottom view shows the **Alerts History**, listing past alerts **Pic 1**.

¢	Alerts	Summary			\uparrow	Statistic	s Alerts	State	Quality
-1	Monitorin	g alerts for all Hosts							=
	0	2 2	0						
	🥖 Edit	📴 - 🖞 All 🏠 Active 🏠 Acknow	wledged 😵 📃 📃		7				0
	Severity 👻	Name	Host		Start		Duration 👻	State Rea	tivation
0	U Major	Host Down	Headquarters (hq.emcosoftw	(are.com)	2/1/2025 3:29:25	M	02:43:03	Active	
	U Major	Host Down	h-00528.emcosoftware.com		2/2/2025 11:25:33	PM	00:40:34	Active	
	Major	Connection Quality: Unsatisfactory	tesla.com		2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	00:01:27	Active	
~ m	W Minor	Big latency	windows.com		2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM	00:40:08	Active	
	W Minor	Big latency	microsoft.com		2/2/2025 11:25:59	PM	00:40:08	Active	
	V Minor	Big latency	yahoo.com		2/2/2025 11:54:36	PM	00:11:31	Active	
	V Minor	Big latency	tesla.com		2/2/2025 12:04:40	AM	00:01:27	Active	
				~					
	Alerts Hi	story							
	Period:	24 Hours (1/31/2025 6:17 AM - 2/1/202	5 6:17 AM) 🔹 📑 Export 🔹	* E		7			0
	Severity	Name	Host	Start		End		 Duration 	Status
	W Minor	Big latency	tesla.com	2/1/2025	4:28:22 AM	2/1/2025 4	k34:21 AM	00:05:5	Resolv A
	W Minor	Big latency	tesla.com	2/1/2025	4:13:25 AM	2/1/2025 4	:23:29 AM	00:10:0	Resolv
	🐼 Critical	Quality critical	intel.com	2/1/2025	3:47:00 AM	2/1/2025 4	:12:05 AM	00:25:0	5 Cance
	🚯 Major	Host Down	intel.com	2/1/2025	3:42:05 AM	2/1/2025 4	k12:05 AM	00:30:0	Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	nvidia.com	2/1/2025	3:47:00 AM	2/1/2025 4	k12:01 AM	00:25:0	Cance
	Major	Host Down	nvidia.com	2/1/2025	3:41:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	k12:01 AM	00:30:0	2 Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	h-00023.emcosoftware.com	2/1/2025	3:46:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	k11:12 AM	00:24:1	3 Cance
	Critical	Quality critical	h-00527.emcosoftware.com	2/1/2025	3:46:59 AM	2/1/2025 4	k11:12 AM	00:24:1	Cance V

Pic 1. Alerts summary

Each alert is associated with the host where it occurred. Depending on alert configurations and monitoring results, multiple alerts can be reported for a single host, and the same alert may appear for multiple hosts.

For each alert, the active alerts view displays details such as alert name, host name, severity, start date and time, duration, and other parameters. Entries in the **Alerts History** view are displayed for a selected time range, which can be adjusted to match the required period.

The alerts list on both views displays alerts for all hosts. You can navigate to the host level by clicking a host name, which filters the views to show alerts for that host only. Click the **Up** button on the top navigation bar to return to the full list of alerts for all hosts.

The total number of active alerts is displayed in the **Alerts** section of **Overview**. These alerts indicate current monitoring issues. If no alerts are displayed, it means no problems have been detected at the moment. If there are alerts reported, you can review them in **Alerts Summary** and start to resolve the problems with hosts. Once the problem has been discovered, you can acknowledge it while working on the solution. To acknowledge the problem select the corresponding action in the context menu or on the toolbar. The alert can be acknowledged for a selected period of time or indefinitely. Acknowledged alerts are reported with the corresponding state, so you can see which alerts are active and acknowledged. If the problem isn't resolved during the acknowledge time period, the alert becomes active again.

The program can send notifications and execute custom actions when an alert is started and ended. It is described in the **Notifications of Alerts and Events** chapter. You can configure alerts and their conditions on the **Alerts and Notifications** page of the program preferences. By default the program provides two preconfigured alerts, but you can change them or create custom alerts in preferences. It is possible to use any real-time monitoring characteristics in the alert condition, including host state, quality characteristics, packet loss, latency, jitter and other metrics **Pic 2**.

Jostable co	onnection' - Alert	×
Set up a alert yo	Alert a specific condition to monitor certain characteristics of the host and u when their value indicates a problem.	
General	Advanced	
The name understan	and condition you provide should be specific enough to allow you to e d the reason of the problem. The comment could be useful in complex o	asily cases.
Name:	Unstable connection	
Comment:		
Condition		
And	lity ⊭ Good ket Loss ≥ 10	
	Add	Cancel

Pic 2. Alert configuration

When you configure an alert condition you can use logical operators to create condition of any complexity. Alternatively you can create a few separate alerts where each alert includes a simple condition. Use the approach that works the best in every particular case.

Host State Monitoring

EMCO Ping Monitor was primarily designed to monitor host state thus detect outages. The main characteristic of the monitored host is its uptime – the percentage of the monitoring time the host was online. The time period when the host is offline is called an outage. Each outage is detected regarding the condition defined in the monitoring settings. The conditions to treat the host as online is also configured through the monitoring settings.

For the host that is online, the state is **Up** and it is **Down** for the hosts that are offline. The **Pending** state is used to describe the moment when neither **Up** nor **Down** condition is reached. If you are using the gateway to check if the host is reachable and the host is currently not reachable, the **Unreachable** sign is added to the state. In case the host is in a non-pending state and the state is going to change (for example, the host state is **Up**, the packet is lost, but the **Down** condition is not reached yet) the state is considered as **Unstable**.

The summary information on hosts in different state is available on the **Overview** page of the document, located at the center of the main screen. There you can find the number of hosts that are in **Up**, **Down** and **Pending** states. The detailed per-host information on the current state can be found on the **State Summary** page. It is specially designed to focus on states monitoring. You can either monitor the per-host state, or monitor a number of hosts in different states per-group.



Pic 1. State Summary for all hosts

All information on ping replies, state changes, etc is stored to the monitoring statistics, unless explicitly disabled in program preferences on the **Monitoring Statistics** page.

Connection Quality Monitoring

Along with remote hosts state monitoring, EMCO Ping Monitor comes with an ability to monitor connection quality based on the provided settings. The connection quality check is performed on a basis of a sample containing the specified number of latest responses. The following characteristics can be used for calculation:

- **Packet Loss Percentage** a ratio of the number of lost packets in a connection quality check sample to the number of packets being sent within the same sample;
- Latency Percentile a specified percentile for latency in a sample of responses;
- **Jitter** a packet delay variation for a sample of delivered packets of a specified length with reference to the specifications defined in RFC-1889.

The packet loss percentage cannot be removed from quality calculation and the connection quality is treated as **Critical** when 100% of packets are lost. The connection quality is **Bad** in case if any condition from enabled for bad quality is reached, the same is true for the **Warning** quality. The quality is **Good** when no problematic condition is reached. When the sample size is insufficient to calculate the connection quality, it is **Pending**. If you are using the gateway to check if the host is reachable and the host is currently not reachable, the **Unreachable** sign is added to the connection quality.

The summary information on hosts with different connection quality is available on the **Overview** page of the document, located at the center of the main screen. There you can find the number of hosts with **Good**, **Warning**, **Bad**, **Critical** and **Pending** quality. The detailed per-host information on the current connection quality can be found in the **Quality Summary** page. It is specially designed to focus on connection quality monitoring. You can either monitor the per-host connection quality, or monitor a number of hosts with different connection quality per-group.

¢	Quality Summary Monitoring all Hosts	4 0	\uparrow	Statistics Alerts State Quality
	📑 🗧 Hosts 🛅 Groups 🔥 Group by Severity	4 24 🔎 🔳 🔠 📰 🚍 🍸		0
•8	h-08791.emcosoftware.com	h-09432.emcosoftware.com	h-07889.emcosoftware.com	h-06314.emcosoftware.com
*	Group: North AmericalUnited States/Lincoln Packet Loss: 25% Latency: 144.5 ms	Group: North America\United States\Weatherford Packet Loss: 20% Latency: 156.8 ms	Group: North America\United States\Monticello Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 201.97 ms	Group: North America\United States\New York Packet Loss: 55% Latency: 111.79 ms
	Bad < 1 sec	Warning 00:00:18	Bad 00:00:44	Bad 00:01:06
	h-06447.emcosoftware.com	h-07061.emcosoftware.com	h-07888.emcosoftware.com	h-10829.emcosoftware.com
	Group: North America\United States\Bowie Packet Loss: 10% Lateng: 170.26 ms	Group: North America\United States\Dallas Packet Loss: 20% Latency: 152.69 ms	Group: North America\United States\Monticello Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 201.64 ms	Group: North America\United S\Newport News Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 151.16 ms
	Warning 00:01:18	Warning 00:02:25	Bad 00:03:41	Warning 00:04:43
	h-08364.emcosoftware.com	h-09114.emcosoftware.com	h-09116.emcosoftware.com	h-07025.emcosoftware.com
	Group: North America\United States\St Louis Packet Loss: 0% Lateng: 137.24 ms	Group: North America\United\Pompano Beach Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 144,38 ms	Group: North America\United\Pompano Beach Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 145.36 ms	Group: North America\United States\Dallas Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 152.62 ms
	Warning 00:04:58	Warning 00:08:14	Warning 00:09:30	Warning 00:09:50
	h-09115.emcosoftware.com	h-05812.emcosoftware.com	h-11129.emcosoftware.com	h-08648.emcosoftware.com
	Group: North America\United\Pompano Beach	Group: North America\United States\Ashburn	Group: North America\United\San Luis Obispo	Group: North America'\United States\Portland

Pic 1. Quality Summary for all hosts

All information on connection quality changes is stored to the monitoring statistics, unless explicitly disabled in program preferences on the **Monitoring Statistics** page.

Notifications on Alerts and Events

One of the most outstanding features of Ping Monitor is an ability to trigger notifications on alerts and on specific host state and connection quality changing events. You can flexibly configure each and every notification: choose a delay for notification, specify the periods of time when the notification can be triggered, provide the number of iterations for the notification to reoccur, etc. The program allows you to use the following notification types:

- E-mail Message;
- Custom Action;
- Sound;
- Balloon Tip.

The balloon tips and sound notifications are triggered on a client side, whereas the e-mail messages and custom actions are handled by the server.

E-mail messages are sent using the specified **E-mail Options**. The e-mail message subject and body used for building notification messages are configured on the **Notification Mail Templates** preferences page, and the placeholders that can be used in the templates are described in the Using **Placeholders** part of this guide. For the custom actions, you can provide any command that does not require interaction with an end-user. The sound notification can play any system sound or the custom one, provided by the user during notification configuration.

With Ping Monitor, you can use the placeholders for the Custom Actions definitions similarly to the connection status notifications, e.g. ConnectionLoss.cmd "% REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%" for connection loss. Do not forget to quote the placeholders that contain white spaces.

Ping Monitor sends notifications in the following cases:

- On Alert occurs when an alert is started and ended;
- On Down State Event occurs when the outage condition is met for the host thus it goes down;
- On Up State Event is considered to occur when the host connection to which was lost goes up;
- On Good Quality Event occurs when a connection quality to the monitored host becomes Good;
- On Warning Quality Event occurs when a connection quality to the monitored host is changed to Warning;
- On Bad Quality Event occurs as soon as the Bad connection quality to the host is detected;
- On Critical Quality Event occurs when a connection quality to the host goes Critical.

E-mail notifications and custom actions can be configured on the **Alerts and Notifications** page of preferences. Sounds and balloons can be configured on the **Balloons and Sounds** page of preferences. You need to configure alerts and events first and then assign required notifications that should be sent on these alerts and events.

When you configure notifications you can specify their settings that are different for the different type of notifications. For example, for e-mails you can configure e-mail recipients, for custom actions you can configure commands to be executed. On the **Advanced** tab of the configuration you can specify additional options such as timeout, execution time, etc.

sms' - Cust	tom Action		×
Set up conditi	the custom Ac	tion tion to be launched as a notification when the specified for a monitored host.	C:\
General	Advanced		
Specify a c and all the	ommand or a required para	path to the program to be executed upon the notification ad ameters.	tivation
Name:	sms		
On Occurr	ed: 0 d:\too	ls\sms.exe '%PHONE%' 'The connection to the '%REMOTE_H	051 🕨
Any c availa	ommand or p ible on the se	rogram will be executed on the server, so you have to make s iver and does not require any user input.	ure it is
		Add	Cancel

Pic 1. Notification configuration

For each notification, it is possible to define a timeout, in minutes, i.e. the waiting period before the notification is triggered. If the host state or connection quality is changed during such waiting period, the corresponding notification is not triggered. You can configure the notifications to reoccur multiple times with the specified interval between occurrences as long as the triggered condition is met. Default configuration is specified on the **Notification Time** page in preferences, but you can override these settings and specify custom configuration for each notification.

If you want the notification to trigger only during a specific period of time, enable the **Trigger this notification only during the following hours** option and specify the time period. The program skips the notifications for the events that occur outside the configured interval.

Auto-start List

Ping Monitor is a program used to monitor connectivity to remote hosts, so the monitoring activity management is one of the main functionality parts. To make it more comfortable to start bulk monitoring we have introduced automation settings available on the **Automation** preference page. You can configure either to restore the previous monitoring activity for hosts on the next server startup, or start monitoring only for those hosts that are included in the auto-start list, or leave the monitoring process inactive for all hosts. In case you have chosen the second option, you should configure the auto-start list, by including and excluding specific hosts.



Include

The **Include** button from the **Auto-Start** Ribbon group on the **Hosts** contextual page from the **Hosts Tools** category should be used to add the selected hosts to the auto-start list.



Exclude

The **Exclude** button from the **Auto-Start** Ribbon group on the Hosts contextual page from the **Hosts Tools** category should be used to remove the selected hosts to the auto-start list.

When a host is created it is automatically added to the auto-start list. You can then use the **Include** and **Exclude** button from the **Auto-Start** Ribbon group on the **Hosts** contextual page from the **Hosts Tools** category to include hosts to and exclude hosts from this list. These items are also available in the **Hosts** view toolbars and pop-up menus. To check if the host is currently included to the quick launch, just review if the **On Startup** column of the **Hosts** view has the **Activate** value.

Chapter 6: Reporting

Ping Monitor comes with a built in feature of generating statistical reports based on the historical data gathered while monitoring remote hosts connectivity. The generated reports can be sent to you via e-mail and stored either locally or on an FTP server. You can generate a generic report for any period of time any time you want. It is also possible to save preconfigured reports to be generated either on demand or automatically on a regular basis.

There are two different types of reports; those are the **Summary** and the **Detailed** ones. The summary reports provide you with a brief information on monitors availability and performance in a form of a table, where each row represents a single host from the report members. The detailed report contains a wider range of data and consists of multiple sections, where each section stands for a single host. Within a section, you can find the monitoring activity, response time and availability characteristics. The cumulative characteristics are amplified with the graphical representation of the characteristics dynamic in time for the report period. The presentation and the actual set of displayed characteristics depends on the report output settings.

In the following chapters, we will provide you with the detailed description of the reports configuration process.

Generic Reports

Ping Monitor allows you to generate reports based on historical data for any set of hosts and for any period from the past. The generated report can be either sent via e-mail or saved to the reports storage. Let us take a look at generating reports from a scratch.



Generate Report

The **Generate Report** button from the **Reporting** Ribbon group on the **Home** page should be used to generate a performance and availability report for any period of time.

To generate a new report at the current moment, you should use the **Generate Report** button from the **Reporting** Ribbon group on the **Home** page. The wizard will be displayed on the screen to guide you through the steps of the report generation process **Pic 1**.

Generate Report Wizard	×
Report Type Choose if you would like to include either brief or detailed monitors availability ar data into the generated report.	nd performance
Summary Report Generate a report with brief information on the monitors availability and pert Detailed Report Generate a report with detailed information on the monitors availability and	formance
< Back N	Vext > Cancel

```
Pic 1. Choosing a report type
```

On the first page of the wizard, you are proposed to choose the type of the report to be generated. The **Summary** reports provide you with a brief information in a form of a table, where each row represents a single host, and the **Detailed** report contains a wider range of data and consists of multiple sections, where each section stands for a single host. When the report type is chosen, press **Next**.

-	ocherote neport men	0		^
Report Spe per	t Properties cify the name for the repo formance and availability	ort to be generated characteristics for.	and choose the period to report the monif	tors
Name:	Europe			
Provide	a date range to generate range.	the report for. You	can either choose one of the predefined ra	anges or specify a
Period:	Yesterday		¥	
all the t The	imes within the report cor local time zone of the sen	ntent. ver should be used		
🔿 Use	the following time zone:	(UTC-08:00) Pacific	Time (US & Canada)	V

Pic 2. Specifying the report properties

On the next page of the wizard **Pic 2**, you are proposed to specify the report properties. Those are the report name and the period to generate the report for. You can choose between the predefined periods available in the **Range** drop-down, or choose the **Custom Range** value and specify the required period. When the detailed report is generated, the level of details will be adjusted to the report period automatically. Next to the report range, you can specify the time zone used for generating the report. The selected time zone affects the selection of the report period and all the times within the report content. You can either use the local time zone of the monitoring server, which is the default behavior, or choose a specific time zone.

On the next pages, you are proposed to choose a list of report members and define report output options. In case the **Hosts** view or the **Statistics** view was active while initiating a generic report generation, the selected hosts and groups are automatically added to the report members. For the detailed information on report members configuration, refer to the Report Members section of this document. You can filter the members based on their performance and availability characteristics by specifying the Report Filter. As for the reports output, you can save it to the file or send via e-mail, and indicate which information should be included into the detailed report. The outputs configuration is described in the Report Outputs section.

After you have configured the report options, press **Finish** for the report to be generated. As you can see, creating a generic monitoring data report is a fast and easy process, and you should be able to use it in the everyday work without any difficulties.

Preconfigured Reports

Along generating the monitoring performance and availability reports from scratch, Ping Monitor allows you to save preconfigured reports to be generated either on a regular basis or on demand. The preconfigured reports are saved in the program database and displayed in the **Reports** view. Let us take a closer look on those reports.

	BERGET	
Su	umma	irv
E	enor	+

Summary Report

The **Summary Report** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the regular **Home** and contextual **Reporting** page from the **Reporting Tools** category should be used to create a new preconfigured report with the brief information on monitors performance and availability.

Detailed Report

Detailed Report

COLUMN 1

The **Detailed Report** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the regular **Home** and contextual **Reporting** page from the **Reporting Tools** category should be used to create a new preconfigured report with the detailed information on monitors performance and availability.

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

The same way as for creating generic reports, you can choose between summary and detailed report. To create a preconfigured summary report, use the **Summary Report** button from the **New** Ribbon group on the regular Home and contextual **Reporting** page from the **Reporting Tools** category. For the detailed reports creation, the **Detailed Report** button should be used. The corresponding items are also available under the **New** drop-down button of the **Reports** view toolbar and the corresponding item in the pop-up menu. In any case a dialog will be opened to help you configure the report object **Pic 1**.

Specify a name for th automatic reports, p	this report, provide an optional report description, choose the recurrence options for generating provide hosts to generate the report for and configure the output settings.
General	Name: Europe
Members	Choose the recurrence type for generating this report on a regular basis or confirm that this report should only be generated on demand.
Filter	On Demand
Outputs	○ Recurring
	The report is generated every day at 12:05 AM and contains the statistics for the previous day.
	Specify the time zone to generate this report for. The selected time zone affects the report generation time, when recurrent, the report period and all the times within the report content.
	The local time zone of the server should be used
	O Use the following time zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)
	• The report period for the on demand reports is defined when generating the report.
	Summary
	Summary Sum
	Summary Summary A For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at Report Settings
	Summary Summary Summary For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at generated. Report Settings Members: Add Members
	Summary A For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at Report Settings Members: Add Members Outputs: Configure Outputs
	Summary A For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at Image: Provide the second state of t
	Summary A For the report to be generated, at least one host should be available in report members and at Image: Provide the second state of t

Pic 1. Creating a detailed report

The report configuration pane consists of four navigation pages, those are: **General**, **Members**, **Filter** and **Outputs**. On the general page, you are supposed to provide a common information about the report object to be created. The name for the report to be created should be provided to the **Name** field. Optionally, you can provide a description for the easier report object identification to the **Description** field.

For the preconfigured reports, one of the main properties is the recurrence type. It defines if the report is generated on demand or on a regular basis. In case the report should be generated on a regular basis, you can choose between daily, weekly and monthly reports.

The daily report, when being generated, includes the monitoring data for the day prior to the generation date. The daily reports are generated every day at the specified time.

For the weekly report, you can specify if it should contain the information for the previous calendar week or the previous seven days when generated. In case you have chosen the previous seven days and the report is generated on the Autust the 28th 2019, the report period will be from the

August the 21st to the August the 27th, inclusive. When the previous calendar week is chosen, the report period will be from the August the 19st to the August the 25th, inclusive. The weekly reports are generated on a specified week days at the specified time.

The monthly report can be generated on a basis of the monitoring data for the previous calendar month or the previous month to date. For example, if the report is generated on the May the 5th, the report period will be from the April the 5th to the May the 4th, inclusive in case of the previous month to date, and from the April the 1th to the April the 30th, inclusive in case of the previous calendar month. The monthly reports are generated in case of the previous month to date, and from the April the 1th to the April the 30th, inclusive in case of the previous calendar month on a certain week day of the month at the specified time.

You can also specify the time zone used for the predefined report being configured. The selected time zone affects the report generation time, when recurrent, the report period and all the times within the report content. You can either use the local time zone of the monitoring server, which is the default behavior, or choose a specific time zone. When configuring recurrent reports, in case the time zone differs from the client's one, the next report time preview will show both the time in the selected time zone and the local time.

The other pages are used to define the report members, filter and outputs. For the information on defining members, you can refer the Report Members section of the document, the filtering is described in the Report Fitler section, and the guidance on report outputs configuration is available in the Report Outputs section.



Generate

The Generate button from the Reports Ribbon group on the Reporting contextual page from the **Reporting Tools** category should be used to manually generate the selected preconfigured report.

For the report to be generated on a regular basis, the server should be up and running at the date and time the report is going to be generated. You can also generate such report manually at any time, the behavior will be the same as it is generated automatically at the same time.

If you have chosen to generate the report on demand, the program will ask you to provide the report period when you are requesting the report generation. The level of details in the detailed report will then be adjusted automatically to the report period.

To generate the report on a basis of predefined configuration, you should select it in the **Reports** view and press the Generate button from the Reports group on the Reporting contextual Ribbon page from the **Reporting Tools** category. Alternatively, you can use the corresponding items on the **Reports** view toolbar and in the pop-up menu.

Enable

ON

Disable

The **Enable** button from the **Reports** Ribbon group on the **Reporting** contextual page from the **Reporting Tools** category allows you to turn on an ability of generating the Enable selected reports.

Disable

The **Disable** button from the **Reports** Ribbon group on the **Reporting** contextual page from the **Reporting Tools** category allows you to turn off an ability of generating the selected reports.

In case for some reason you do not want the preconfigured report to be generated automatically or would like to prevent on demand reports from being mistakenly generated, you can disable those reports generation. To disable an ability of reports generation, select those reports in the **Reports** view and choose either the **Disable** button from the **Reports** Ribbon group on the **Reporting** contextual page from the **Reporting Tools** category, or the **Disable** button on the view toolbar, or the **Disable** item from the pop-up menu. As soon as the report is disabled, it won't be possible to generate it until it is enabled again. To enable the report, use the **Enable** buttons and menu item.

To edit any report, select it and either choose the **Edit** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page or use the **Edit** items from the **Reports** view toolbar and pop-up menu. The editing process is similar to the creation. When some reports are no longer needed you can delete them using either the **Delete** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page or the **Delete** items from the view toolbar and pop-up menu.

Within the Reports view it is also possible to copy reports and add members to reports without opening the report editing dialog. This can be done either via the drag and drop technique, or via the copy/paste one. The **Cut**, **Copy**, and **Paste** items from the **Clipboard** Ribbon group on the **Program** page can be used, as well as the appropriate items from the pop-up menu. It is also possible to copy reports between different editions of the program and use the export feature. For the details on import and export, refer to the Importing and Exporting Preconfigured Reports section of this document.

Report Members

When configuring both generic and preconfigured reports, you are proposed to provide a list of report members **Pic 1**. This list is used to define a set of host to report their availability and performance characteristics.



Pic 1. Defining report members

When defining report members, you can add to the members lists any host or group of hosts. In case a group of hosts is added, all hosts from this group and subgroups will be processed while generating a report. When you perform the changes to the group content it is automatically reflected in the report, because the group is actually linked. You can review a group content in the members list editor by expanding the group node. If you want to ensure, that specific host will surely be included in the report, you can add that particular host even if it contains in a group already added. The program guarantees that a single host will appear in a report content only once.

To add members to a report, you can use the **Add** button on the members editor toolbar and the corresponding item from the pop-up menu. The dialog will be opened to let you choose the members from those available in the program to be added. To remote the members from the list, select them in the editor and press the **Delete** button on the toolbar. You can also choose the **Delete** item from the pop-up menu.

Report Filter

With Ping Monitor you can filter the report content during the report generation. This feature allows you to flexibly perform dynamic report configuration. For example, you can exclude the hosts that were not monitored during the report period, or those that had no outages. The filter may be specified during the report configuration process **Pic 1**.

Specify a name for this automatic reports, pro	s report, provide an optional report description, choose the recurrence options for generating wide hosts to generate the report for and configure the output settings.
General	Provide a filter condition to be applied to the statistics for a set of report members. Only statistics data matching the filter condition will be included into this report.
Members	And
Filter	Downtime > 0%

Pic 1. Specifying a report filter

The report filter editor is similar to the filter editor used for filtering data in trees and tables. You can combine any number of conditions, as well as groups of conditions, with **Or** and **And** operators. You can filter by any field from those available in the statistics data.

When the report is generated, the program checks if each host statistics matches the filter condition and, if not, the host is excluded from the report output. In case all hosts are excluded, the report is not generated and the corresponding message is added to the **Log** view.

Report Outputs

Ping Monitor allows you to send monitors performance and availability reports via e-mail or save them to a reports storage. Each of these outputs can be enabled while configuring a generic or reconfigured report **Pic 1**.

Specify a name for th automatic reports, pr	Report his report, provide an optional report description, choose the recurr rovide hosts to generate the report for and configure the output se	rence options for generating
General Members Filter Outputs	Configuration E-Mail Recipients E-Mail Template E-mail Report Choose if you would like this report to be sent via should be attached to the generated e-mail messi Send Report via E-Mail Attach a report in the PDF format to the e Name Template: SREPORT_NAME% %R Name Preview: Europe 2019.07.18-07.51. File Report Specify if you would like to save this report to the format and provide a file name template.	Reports Storage a e-mail and if the report in the PDF form age. mail message REPORT_DATE%-%REPORT_TIME%-%UTC_ 50-UTC-08.00.pdf e reports storage, choose the report file
	Save Penart to Storage	
	Save Report to Storage Report Format: Adobe PDF File (*.pdf)	
	Save Report to Storage Report Format: Adobe PDF File (*.pdf) Name Template: 0 %REPORT_NAME% %R	REPORT_DATE%-%REPORT_TIME%-%UTC.
	Save Report to Storage Report Format: Adobe PDF File (*.pdf) Name Template: %REPORT_NAME% %R Name Preview: Europe 2019.07.18-07.51.	REPORT_DATE%-%REPORT_TIME%-%UTC_ 50-UTC-08.00.pdf

Pic 1. Configuring report outputs

When configuring report outputs, you can specify if you would like the report to be sent via e-mail and/or saved to the reports storage. The e-mail generation options are configured within the **E-mail Report** group, and the saving options in the **File Report** group. When configuring a detailed report, within the **Content** group, you can specify if the tables with all state intervals, quality intervals and host events for the report period should be included into the report. You can disable these options to reduce the report size if the corresponding information is not required.

Within the **E-mail Report** group you can enable the e-mail output using the **Send Report via E-mail** check box. When sending reports via e-mail, the message body is by default generated using the Notification Mail Templates specified for the report type and sent to the recipients defined in the mail options. For preconfigured reports, you can override e-mail recipients and mail templates on the corresponding tabs of the outputs configuration page.

To enable saving file reports to the reports storage, you should check the **Save Report to Storage** option within the **File Report** group. The report can be saved to one of the following formats: **Adobe PDF File, HTML Web Page** and **MIME HTML** Document. The format is selected within the **Report Format** field. The file name to be used for the file created while generating the report is created on a basis of the template defined within the **Name Template** field. The placeholders that

can be used in the field are described within the **Report Name Template Placeholders** section of the document. The preview of the file name generated using the specified template is available in the **Name Preview** field. The file reports are by default saved to the location configured in the storage settings. For preconfigured reports, you can override these settings on the corresponding tab of the outputs configuration page.

Importing and Exporting Preconfigured Reports

With Ping Monitor, you can easily import and export reports any time you want. You can export one or all of the available reports to use the exported data as a back-up, to share the reports with your colleagues or simply to import them to another instance of the program. This chapter covers the process of importing and exporting reports.



Import

The **Import** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page can be used to import reports from an XML file with the help of the wizard.

The reports can be imported into Ping Monitor from XML files. The XML file structure is quite complex, so it is not recommended to create it manually. If you want to import the reports into Ping Monitor, press the **Import** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page, when the **Reports** view is active. The **Import Reports Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. The Import Reports Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Import Reports Wizard** is the welcome page, which is used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information, press **Next** to continue with import.
On the next page of the **Import Reports Wizard**, you are offered to choose the file you are going to import reports from. The file path should be provided in the **Import** From field <u>Pic 2</u>. The format and encoding of the XML file with reports is detected automatically.

Import Reports Wizard				×
Specify File Path Input manually or specify the path to the fi valid XML in any of the supported formats.	le containing th	e data to import.	The file should be a	Z
Import From: C:\Users\Alex\Documents\Report	ts.xml			•••
The chosen file format is detected autor The objects that are successfully parsed	natically as well will be available	as the encoding o e for import.	f the data within the	2 XML file.
	< Back	Next >	Finish	Cancel

Pic 2. Choosing the import source file

The next page offers you to choose the reports to import. By default, all the valid reports are selected **Pic 3**.

: 8					0
	Name A	Recurrence	Enabled	Description	
1	Europe	Daily	~		
1	Servers	On Demand	\checkmark		
1 📰	Servers Detailed	Daily	\checkmark		
1	Total Weekly Summary	Weekly	\checkmark		
1 📰	USA	Daily	\checkmark		
3 🕎	USA	Daily	\checkmark		

Pic 3. Choosing the reports to import

When the reports to import have been chosen, press **Finish**. When the import is done, the reports are added to the program and displayed in the **Reports** view.



Export

The **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page should be used to export reports from the program to an XML file that can be used in the future for import.

The reports can be easily exported to the XML file format for future reuse. The reports export can be performed from the **Reports** view. You can choose between exporting all reports and those that are currently selected. To perform export, use an appropriate option from the drop-down of the **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page. The **Export Reports Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 4**.

Export Reports Wizard		×
	Welcome to the Expor	t Reports
	Wizard	-
	With Ping Monitor, exporting any pool of o created after such export can be processed automated tool.	bjects is fast and easy. The file manually or with any
	You can use the exported file as a back-up, colleagues. The data can be exported to a fi configuration options.	or you can share the data with ile having specified the format
	A detailed description of the export format documentation.	can be found in the program
@ emco	Press Next to proceed with export.	How can I use reports export?
	< Back	Next > Cancel

Pic 4. The Export Reports Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Export Reports Wizard** is the welcome page, which is used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information, press **Next** to continue with export.

On the next page you are offered to choose the file you are going to save the reports to and the format options. The file path should be provided in the **Export To** field **Pic 5**.

Export	t Reports Wizard	×
Confi Sp	igure Export Options pecify the path to the file for the exported data and configure the XML file encoding.	
Export	t To: C:\Users\Alex\Documents\Reports.xml	
XML	The XML data file is a structured file that contains information about every object grouped by called tags. See the program documentation for detailed information about the XML file form	elements at.
-	Encoding: Unicode (UTF-8)	~
	< Back Finish	Cancel

Pic 5. Configuring export options

When the file path and the encoding are chosen, press **Finish** to proceed with export. The file containing the reports' information will be created in the location according to the path specified. The file created during export can be used in the future to import the reports back to the program.

Now you are fully introduced to the reports export and import capabilities of Ping Monitor and can use them in future to solve your tasks.

Chapter 7: Web Interface

Ping Monitor comes with an option of deploying an IIS web site together with the server application to provide web access to hosts monitoring and statistics review. This site is installed by default when performing a complete server installation.



Web Interface

The **Web Interface** button from the **Web** group on the **Home** Ribbon page can be used to open the EMCO Ping Monitor program web site in the default browser.

On the web site home page, you can see the monitoring system overview **Pic 1** and a set of buttons that can be used to navigate through available pages.



Pic 1. The web interface home page

For each web page in the header part you can find its title, navigation menu, filtering button and tool buttons used to manage the page. The status bar in the bottom of the page always shows the information on the server, page generation date and time till next refresh, in case the auto-refresh is currently enabled.

In this chapter, we will take a closer look on each of the available pages.

Overview Page

The **Overview Pic 1** page is designed to provide you with the brief information on monitored hosts and their states. It is the home page of the Ping Monitor web interface. You can either overview the entire monitoring system or focus on specific host and/or groups.



Pic 1. The entire monitoring system overview

In the **State & Quality** area of the **Overview** page the information is summarized in a doughnut chart, so you can easily see the distribution of hosts with different state and quality. Inside a doughnut itself, you can find the total number of hosts you are focusing. The first column of the legend displays the count of active, inactive and paused hosts – this distribution is represented with the inner doughnut.

For the hosts the monitoring is active for, you can find the information on how many of them are Up and Down. This distribution is displayed in the second column of the legend and the middle doughnut respectively. The last column is used to describe the connection quality to monitored hosts. The distribution is reflected in the outer doughnut on the chart. You can focus on host states and connection quality distribution for active hosts by clicking on the **Active** radio button in the right top corner of the area. To switch back to all hosts use the **All** button.

The **State & Quality** and other parts of the **Overview** page are interactive. For example, you can click the values for the activities and/or states and qualities to drill down to the hosts with the corresponding activity, quality and state.

The **Performance** area shows a chart with distribution of the total number of hosts with the different performance characteristics over time. You can select a period of time and see how many hosts had **High**, **Medium**, **Low** and **Faulty** performance in specific periods.

The **Alerts** area displays a chart that shows the number of active alerts at the current moment. Alerts are displayed by severity, so you can see the number of alerts with each severity. You can click these numbers to go to the **Alerts** page where the alerts with the selected severity are displayed.

You can configure the **Overview** page to show information only for specific hosts and/or groups using the filter editor that is reached using the **Filter** button next to the navigation menu in the left top corner of the page. The refresh interval is configured within the **Advanced Options** drop-down button from the right top corner.

In the bottom part of the **Overview** page, you can find the information on the server and a set of helpful links. You can use the colored buttons, located either to the left or on the top of the information areas depending on the pages size, to navigate to other pages. The hosts filter is pertained during the navigation.

Statistics Page

The **Statistics** page displays the monitoring statistics for specific periods of time. You can either review the summary statistics for multiple hosts or detailed monitoring statistics for specific host. Let us take a close look at each of the approaches.

Statistics Summary

In the monitoring statistics each row or card stands for a single hosts **Pic 1**. The statistics is displayed for the period chosen in the right part of the page header. You can choose between live intervals, that are configured on the **Monitoring Statistics** preference page, a set of predefined historical intervals and custom historical interval.

The view data is split to pages. The links for switching between pages as well as the combo specifying the number of entries per page are available in the bottom part of the page.

\rightarrow C (a) O localhost:4811/statistics	?timezone=Am	erica%2	tLos_Ange?	es		20	£≡ \⊕	
STATISTICS SUMMARY		1	0/2/2022 3	50 AM - 1	0/2/2022 3:5	5 AM 5 N	Ainutes 🔪	< 🗘
Sort by: Host † 🗸 🕂							≣	:: =
Host	Uptime (%)	PL (%)	Outages	Perf	MOS	Avg (ms)	Dev (ms)	CV (%)
h-00000.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth Africa	100.00	6.25	5 0	Low	****	214.90	34.85	16.21
h-00001.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth AfricalCape Town	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	****	188.75	2.92	1.54
h-00002.emcosoftware.com Africal.South Africal.Cape Town	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	****	195.58	16.73	8.55
h-05668.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States/Boardman	0.00	100.00	1	Faulty				
h-05670.emcosoftware.com North AmericalUnited States\Boardman	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	*****	177.43	42.54	23.98
h-05674.emcosoftware.com North AmericalUnited States\Boardman	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	****	170.17	3.60	2.11
h-05675.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States/Boardman	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	****	170.41	0.45	0.27
h-05676.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States/Boardman	100.00	0.00	0 0	Medium	****	171.58	3.22	1.88
h-05679.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States/Boardman	100.00	0.00	0	Medium	*****	180.34	41.98	23.28
h-05680.emcosoftware.com North AmericalUnited States\Boardman	100.00	0.00	0	Medium	*****	179.70	42.11	23.43
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	279					Hosts p	er page:	10 🗸

Pic 1. Statistics summary for all hosts

You can configure the **Statistics** page to show information only for specific hosts and/or groups using the filter editor that is reached using the **Filter** button next to the navigation menu in the left top corner of the page. Using the filter editor, you can also filter the page by statistical properties. The refresh interval is configured within the **Advanced Options** drop-down button from the right top corner.

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

Along with the statistical values, on the **Statistics** page you can find the performance characteristics, calculated on a basis of this values. The conditions for calculating the performance are provided on the **Performance** preference page. The performance values are underlined with color due to their severity, as well as the values that affect the performance.

Toolbar Overview

:=	List The List button from the Statistics page toolbar allows you to display the statistics in a form of a list.
::	Cards The Cards button from the Statistics page toolbar allows you to display the statistics in a form of cards.
▦	TableThe Table button from the Statistics page toolbar allows you to display the statistics in aform of a table.

You can choose between the following representations of statistics summary: list, cards and table. The corresponding buttons are available in the page contents' toolbar. Together with the information displayed, you can find additional summary characteristics, such as periods with different connection quality, in the item tooltip.

Detailed Statistics

With Ping Monitor web interface you can focus on detailed statistics for specific hosts. To reach the detailed statistics, you can click the host name hyper-link in the summary representation. As the result you drill-down to the host level, where you can review all monitoring characteristics of a host.

The detailed statistics page for a single host <u>Pic 2</u> consists of the common host information, such as the host name, label and group the host is located in, displayed on the top of the page and other sections, such as host performance, tracking, latency, uptime, state and quality. Let us take a closer look on each part of the page.

) 🙆 h-05679.emcosoftware.com - Sta 🗙 🕂				-		×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow \mathcal{O} \textcircled{o} \textcircled{o} localhost:4811/	/statistics/	tails?id=6496&timezone=America%2fLc	os_Angeles& ເ`ວັ	ć= 🕀	۲	
STATISTICS	1	2/2022 3:57 AM - 10/2/2022 4:02 AM 5	Minutes 🗸 🏹 Tir	neline	\$	
h-05679.emcosoftware.co North America\United States\Boardman Country Code: US, Region/Code: Oregon/OR	m					
Statistics Alerts St	ate	Quality				
Performance Media	am 🛈	racking			20	
Uptime: 100% Packet Loss: 0% Latency: 176.81 ms CV: 13.97% MOS: 4.08		200				
MOS: [©] * * 1 Availability		100				
Uptime: Packet Los 100% 0%	SS:	0 3:58:00 AM 3:59:00 AM 4:00: 3:58:30 AM 3:59:30 AM	00 AM 4:01:00 AM 4:00:30 AM 4:01:3	4:02:00 AM 0 AM 4:	02:30	
Up: 00:05:00 Lost: Down: 00:00:00 Delivered:	0 30	atency & Uptime			5.8 2 5	
Outages: Shortest: 0 Longest:	[n/a] [n/a]	300				
EMCO Ping Monitor 92		Refre	sh: Auto	10/2/2022 4	:02:46 AM	

Pic 2. The detailed statistics page for a single host

Detailed host statistics is used to provide you with the integral monitoring statistics gathered during the specified period, graphically visualized and grouped by categories. The information on the page is grouped in several categories. In the left top corner, you can find the performance characteristics. Below the performance characteristics, you can find the information on host availability during the specified interval. It consists of an uptime percentage, uptime and downtime intervals, a packet loss percentage, lost and delivered packets counts and outages information.

The next category to follow is the information on latency: minimum, maximum, average, deviation and coefficient of variation. The next category is showing you the percentage and intervals of different connection quality during the specified period. The last category within the left column displaying information on monitoring activity – you can find the activity time interval and pause time interval.

On the right side of the page you can find a few statistics analysis charts. The top chart displays real-time latency tracking. It shows the actual ping statistics. In case the selected interval is longer than an hour, only the data for the latest hour is displayed due to performance reasons. Under the tracking chart you can find the latency and uptime analytics, and the bottom chart displays the analysis information for state and quality intervals. You can click on the points in both charts to open the detailed timeline for the period the point displays integral data for. Also it is possible to expand each chart to full screen using the corresponding button in the chart header **Pic 3**.

h-05679.emcosoftware.	com - Sta 🗙 🕂		- 🗆 ×
← → C ⋒ (D localhost:4811/statist	cs/details?id=6496&timezone=America%2fLos_Angeles& t͡₀ t͡≌	@ 😩 📷
STATIST	ICS	10/2/2022 3:04 AM - 10/2/2022 4:04 AM 60 Minutes 💙 🔅 Timeline	C
h-05679.emco North America\United Stat Country Code: US, Region/	software.com es\Boardman Code: Oregon/OR		
Statistics	Alerts State	Quality	
Performance	Medium ®	Tracking	23
Uptime: 100% Latency: 181.46 ms MOS: 3.88	Packet Loss: 0% CV: 26.45%	450	
MOS: © Availability		300 150	
Uptime: 100%	Packet Loss: 0%	0 3:10 AM 3:20 AM 3:30 AM 3:40 AM 3:50 AM	4:00 AM
Up: 01:00:00 Down: 00:00:00	Lost: Delivered: 36	Latency & Uptime	23
Outages: 0	Shortest: [n/a Longest: [n/a	300 AS0	٨
EMCO Ping Monitor 92		II Refresh: Auto 10/2/2	022 4:04:16 AM

Pic 3. Tracking latency, state and quality

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

Under the charts you can find a table with the state and quality intervals. By default the table displays the state intervals, but you can switch from state to quality intervals and vice a versa using the buttons located at the top of the table. The table displays the list of all host state intervals for the selected period of time and the list of connection quality intervals. Let us take a closer look at this information $\operatorname{Pic} 4$.



Pic 4. Reviewing state interval

The **State Intervals** and **Quality Intervals** tabs are quite similar. The first one displays the list of all host state intervals for the selected period of time and the second one – the list of connection quality intervals. Let us take a closer look at these tabs using the **State Intervals** one as the reference **Pice 5**. The list of intervals is displayed in a form of a tree, where the root nodes represent the specific state, and is split into pages. In case the host has been unreachable during any interval, it can be expanded to review when the host was reachable and when not. In case the comment is provided for the interval, it is displayed in root node and spanned through the child nodes, when expanded. For each interval, along with its type, you can find the start time, end time and duration. In case the interval is exceeding the selected period, the exceeding time is marked with a star. You can use the buttons above the table to display only the intervals of the specified types.

At the bottom of the page you can find a list of host events. It contains all monitoring events for the host and can be used as a monitoring log. The events are displayed in a form of a table where each row represents a single event, split into pages.

							-	-
¢	 STATIST 	ICS	8/1/2022 - 8/31/2022	Last Mo	onth 🗸 🤌) Timeline		٥
		Туре	Start		End		Duratio	n
	(H) Up 8/17/2022 9:13:05 PM 8/22/2022						4.08:28	:52
1	(H) Down 8/17/2022 9:12:56 PM 8/17/2022 9:13:05 PM						00:00	:09
	(H) Up		8/16/2022 2:3	0:27 AM	8/17/2022 9:	12:56 PM	1.18:42	:29
					Interv	als per pa	ge: 20	\sim
	Title	Des	cription			1	Time	
	Title	Des	cription			1	Time	
0	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05790.emco	software.com' host was ch	anged to	'Bad'.	8/22/2022 5:42:21 AM		
A	Host State	The state of the 'h-05790.emcosoftware.com' lost. Ping reply was not received within the a	host was changed to 'Dow lotted time (IP status: 11010	/n'. The co)).	onnection was	8/22/202	2 5:42:01	AM
0	Host State	The state of the 'h-05790.emcosoftware.com' restored after being down for 00:00:09.	host was changed to 'Up'.	The conn	ection was	8/17/202	2 9:13:05	PM
	Host State	The state of the 'h-05790.emcosoftware.com' lost. Ping reply was not received within the a	host was changed to 'Dow lotted time (IP status: 11010	/n'. The co)).	onnection was	8/17/202	2 9:12:56	PM
A	Connection Quality	The connection quality for the 'h-05790.emc	software.com' host was ch	anged to	Warning!	8/16/202	2 2:32:23	AM
A 0		The state of the 'h-05790.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was established.						AM
4 0 0	Host State	established.						
▲ 0 0	Host State Activity	established. Monitoring of the 'h-05790.emcosoftware.cor	n' host is started.			8/16/202	2 2:30:27	AM

Pic 5. The host events on a single host details page

If you are facing some problems during monitoring or would like to know when the monitoring process was started and stopped, you should refer to this table.

Timeline

Ping Monitor can show you the timeline of raw ping reply data along with host state and connection quality intervals. You can open the timeline using the **Timeline** button in the header of the detailed statistics page. You can focus on specific interval of the timeline by clicking the point within **Latency & Uptime** or **State & Quality** charts.



Pic 6. Timeline

On the **Timeline** page **Pic 6**, you can find the timeline graph and the sliders to be used for navigation through the timeline. The timeline graph consists of three parts, those are **Latency**, **State** and **Quality**. The **Latency** part is used to display the ping replies data, the **State** part reflects the state intervals on the timeline and the **Quality** part is used for displaying the quality intervals.

The timeline range is limited to 30 days due to performance reasons. You can change the timeline range using the period combo in the page header. To actualize ping replies data along with state and quality intervals, use the **Refresh** button from the header. The **Export Raw Data** button can be used to export raw ping replies data to a CSV format, and the **Full Screen** button allows you to expand the time line to full screen.

Alerts Page

The **Alerts** page is designed to display information about detected alerts. This page contains two views. The top view shows active alerts currently reported for monitored hosts. The bottom view displays the **Alerts History**, listing alerts detected earlier. You can adjust the scope of displayed alerts history by selecting a specific time period.

Each row in both views represents an alert, while columns display alert details such as the alert name, host name, duration of the alert and its severity <u>Pic 1</u>.

→ C a	localhost:4811/alerts?	timezone=America9	62fLos_Ang	eles			îô	¢= @	8
6 • • •	LERTS SUMMARY						0	* @ *	\$
Sort by: X S	everity 4 🗸 🗙 Duration	+++							
Severity	Name			Host	Group	p Duration	State	Reactivation	h Ir
🗌 🙆 Critical	Quality critical		mars.com			00:17:56	Active		
🗌 🕴 Critical	Quality critical		google.co	m		00:17:56	Active		
🗌 🕴 Critical	Quality critical		wicrosoft.	com		00:15:03	Active		
🗌 🖖 Major	Host Down		test.com			00:18:19	Active		
🗌 🖖 Major	Connection Quality: Unsatisfacto	cy.	test.com			00:17:58	Active		
1 2 3							Alerts pe	r page: 5	~
Alerts Histor	Y				1/31	/2025 7:22 AM - 2/1	1/2025 7:22 AM	24 Hours	~
Severity	Name	Host	Group	Start		End	Duration	Status	
🚸 Major Big	latency	windows.com		2/1/2025 7:04	:56 AM	2/1/2025 7:21:50	AM 00:16:54	Resolved	
🔶 Major late	ncy 0-50	google.com		2/1/2025 7:15	5:01 AM	2/1/2025 7:19:52	AM 00:04:51	Resolved	
😈 Minor late	ncy 40-50	tesla.com		2/1/2025 7:15	5:01 AM	2/1/2025 7:19:52	AM 00:04:51	Resolved	
🚯 Major late	ncy 50-100	mars.com		2/1/2025 7:14	1:58 AM	2/1/2025 7:15:01	AM 00:00:03	Resolved	
🚯 Major Con	nection Quality: Unsatisfactory	tesla.com		2/1/2025 7:11	:47 AM	2/1/2025 7:14:58	AM 00:03:11	Resolved	

Pic 1. Alerts page

The alerts lists can be sorted by one or multiple fields. You can edit an active alert by selecting it and clicking the **Edit** button on the toolbar. This allows you to modify the alert's severity and acknowledge it either for a specific time interval or indefinitely. You can also filter the displayed alerts to show only active or acknowledged alerts.

		one - Anterica Acteory Angelesona - o					
• • • ALE	ERTS				0	* (J) *	¢
h-05736.emco North Americal United State	software.com elBoardman Code: Oregon/OR						
Statistics	Alerts State Qua	lity					
Sort by: X Severity	V X Duration 1 V +	Ismo		-	-	Describert	ion In
serving		varne		Duration	State	Reactivat	
Major Connect	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory	ame		00:01:15	Active	Reactivat	
Major Connect	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory	ame		00:01:15	Active Alerts pe	r page:	s 🗸
Alerts History	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory	lame	1/31/20	00:01:15	Active Alerts pe	r page:	5 ✔ s ✔
Alerts History	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory Name	Start	1/31/20	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End	Active Alerts pe /2025 7:21 AM Duration	r page: 1 24 Hours Statu	5 V s V
Alerts History Severity Major latency 0-50	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory Name	2/1/2025 7:15:0	1/31/20	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End 1/2025 7:19:52 A	Active Alerts per /2025 7:21 AM Duration M 00:04:51	r page: 1 24 Hours Statu Resolved	5 V s V 15
Alerts History Severity Major latency 0-50 Minor latency 40-50	ion Quality: Unsatisfactory Name	Start 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0	1/31/20 01 AM 2/2 01 AM 2/2	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End 1/2025 7:19:52 A	State Active Alerts per /2025 7:21 AM Duration IM 00:04:51 IM 00:04:51	r page: 1 24 Hours Statu Resolved Resolved	5 V s V
Alerts History Severity Major latency 0-50 Minor latency 40-50 Major latency 50-100	Name	Start 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:14:0	1/31/20 01 AM 2/1 01 AM 2/1 88 AM 2/1	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End 1/2025 7:19:52 / 1/2025 7:19:52 /	State Active Alerts per /2025 7:21 AM Duration M 00:04:51 M 00:00:03	r page: 1 24 Hour: Statu Resolved Resolved	5 V s V
Alerts History Severity Major Iatency 0-50 Major Iatency 40-50 Major Iatency 50-100 Major Connection Q	Name Name Unsatisfactory	Start 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:11:0 2/1/2025 7:11:0	1/31/20 01 AM 2/1 01 AM 2/1 18 AM 2/1 167 AM 2/1	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End 1/2025 7:19:52 A 1/2025 7:19:52 A 1/2025 7:19:52 A	State Active Alerts pe /2025 7:21 AM Duration M 00:04:51 M 00:00:03 M 00:03:11	r page: 24 Hour: Statu Resolved Resolved Resolved	5 V s V
Alerts History Severity Major Connect Alerts History Major latency 0-50 Major latency 40-50 Major latency 50-100 Major Connection Q	Name Name Ruality: Unsatisfactory	Start 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:15:0 2/1/2025 7:14:1 2/1/2025 7:11:0	1/31/20 01 AM 2/1 01 AM 2/1 168 AM 2/1 167 AM 2/1	Duration 00:01:15 25 7:21 AM - 2/1 End 1/2025 7:19:52 A 1/2025 7:19:52 A 1/2025 7:19:52 A	State Active Alerts pe /2025 7:21 AM Duration IM 00:04:51 IM 00:00:03 IM 00:03:11	r page: 24 Hour: Statu Resolved Resolved Resolved	5 v s v is

Pic 2. Host alerts

The **Alerts** page displays alerts for all hosts, but you can click a host name in the table to drill-down to the host level and review alerts for the selected host **Pic 2**. The alerts list for a host is similar to the list of alerts for all hosts, but it displays alerts for the selected host only.

State Page

The **State** page is designed to be used for focusing on hosts states monitoring, where you can easily detect any problematic situations just in time. The page displays only those hosts the monitoring is currently active for. It is possible to monitor per-host states as well as the states distribution for groups of hosts. The default data representation on page is organized with the help of tiles displaying the objects being monitored, that are colored to indicate of the hosts states. Alternatively the hosts state information can be represented as a table. Let us take a closer look at the page. To open the **State** page you need to select the **State Summary** item in the main menu.

State Summary

When you click the **State Summary** item in the main menu, you navigate to the page that displays state information for multiple hosts. By default this page represents hosts as tiles **Pic 1**. Each tile in the page represents a single host that is currently monitored and is colored with the host state color: green – for up, red – for down, and gray – for pending. In case the host is currently unreachable, thus the state is represented with the latest reachable one, the tile is hatched.



Pic 1. Monitoring hosts state

Together with the state, for each host you can find out how long has the host been in this state, the group the host is located in, the host IP address and resolved reverse name. All these information is available in the tool-tip and on the tile itself, when the large tiles are used. For medium tiles, you can see the host name and label on the tile together with the state time stamp. The small tiles are simply filled with the host state color – any information is available in the tool-tip only.

😨 🧔 State Monitor - EN	MCO Ping Moni × +				- 🗆 X	
\leftarrow \rightarrow C \Diamond	localhost:4811/	monitor?timezone=Am	nerica%2fLos_Angeles8	id=groups វិ ័	t 🕀 😩 😶	
STATE	SUMMARY 2697	86 0			20	
			Hosts	Groups 👌 🖡		
Akron Group: North America\U	Inited States	Aliquippa Group: North America\U	Inited States	Alpharetta Group: North America\	Jnited States	
Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0	
l Up	0 Down] Up	0 Down	l Up	0 Down	
Altamonte Sprin Group: North America\U	gs Inited States	Amarillo Group: North America\U	Inited States	Ann Arbor Group: North America\l	Jnited States	
Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0	
4 Up	0 Down] Up	0 Down] Up	0 Down	
Argyle Group: North America\U	Inited States	Arlington Group: North America\U	Inited States	Arlington Heights Group: North America\United States		
Pending	0	Pending	0	Pending	0	
l Up	0 Down	5 Up	0 Down	l Up	0 Down	
EMCO Ping Monitor 92	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Refresh: Auto	9/23/2022 5:36:32 AM	

Pic 2. Monitoring state for groups of hosts

Together with per-host state monitoring, it is possible to monitor state for host groups. The group tile can either represent the group or the set of individual hosts (selected individually or not belonging to any group) Pic 2. The group tile is displaying the number of hosts within the group that are currently in specific states. When monitoring state in grouped mode, you can click on the group to focus on hosts from that group, or click on the specific state part within a group to focus on hosts with that specific state.

You can switch between different modes using the corresponding buttons on the toolbar.

Toolbar Overview

Hosts

Hosts

The **Hosts** button is used to configure the page for monitoring each host individually.

🕒 Groups	Groups The Groups button is used to configure the page for monitoring groups of hosts.
♦	Group by Severity The Group by Severity button allows you to group the page the way that the problematic nodes are always displayed on top.
↓ ^A z	Sort by Name When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Name button enables the page sorting by entry name.
I ∑	Sort by Time When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Time button enables the page sorting by state change time stamp.
	Focus on Problems The Focus on Problems button allows you to configure the page to be automatically scrolled to entries that go down, when grouped by severity and sorted by time.
	Table The Table button switches the page to the table data representation.
	Small The Small button switches the page to the mode where each monitored host is represented just with a pictogram describing its state. Any other information on the entry is available in the tool tip only.
	Medium The Medium button is used to switch to the mode where each entry is represented with a tile containing only the summary information on the entry. The detailed info is available in the tool tip.
	Large The Large button enables the mode where a tile representing each entry contains maximum information on the entry being monitored.

All entries within the **State Summary** page can be grouped by severity so that the problematic entries are always on top. To enable such grouping, use the **Group by Severity** button on the toolbar. For example, when enabled, the hosts, that are down, will be displayed on top, then hosts that are up will follow the down ones, then there will be the hosts with the pending state. To switch between tiles of different size, use the **Small**, **Medium** and **Large** buttons.

You can configure the **State Summary** page to show information only for specific hosts and/or groups using the filter editor that is reached using the **Filter** button next to the navigation menu in the left top corner of the page. Using the filter editor, you can also filter the page to display hosts with specific states. The refresh interval is configured within the **Advanced Options** drop-down button from the right top corner.

😑 State Monitor - EM	ICO Ping Moni 🗙	+							-		
ightarrow C $lpha$	 localhos 	st:4811/mon	itor?timezo	one=America%	2fLos_Angeles&d	=groups	tò	Ę,	•		
STATE	SUMMARY	2697	86	0						5.2 2 3	φ
					Hosts 🗈	Groups	\$ ${\downarrow}^{\rm A}_{\rm Z}$	12	7		I
			Name					Up	Down	Pend	ling
Akron North Americal(United States								1	0		0
Aliquippa Iorth America\United States									0		0
Ipharetta iorth America\United States								1	0		0
Itamonte Springs Iorth America\United States								4	0		0
marillo Iorth Americal(United States									0		0
Iorth America\United States									0		0
Argyle Iorth America\United States									1 0		0
Arlington Jorth America\United States								5	5 0		0
Arlington Heights Jorth Americal/United States									0		0
Ashburn Iorth America\United States								289	3		0
Asheville									0		(

Pic 3. State Summary represented as a table

The **State Summary** page can display host state information as a table. To activate table representation you need to click the **Table** button on the toolbar. In the table mode each host is displayed as a row, you can see host name, state and other information as columns.

Host State

You can also focus on monitoring specific hosts. To monitor single host, just click the tile the host is represented with. As the result you drill-down to the host level. The page containing the monitoring details for this host will be displayed **Pic 4**.

Web Interface

h-09432.emcosoftware.	com - Q: × +					- 0	
\rightarrow C \otimes C	D localhost:481	1/monitor/hstate?id=1	0416&back=http:%2f%2flocall	host:4811%2fmonitor%3	ftimezone 😚	ć 🛈 🔮	þ
STAT	E					23 Ø]
h-09432.em North Americal/United Country Code: US, Reg	COSOftware States\Weatherford gion/Code: Texas/TX	e.com					
Statistics	Alerts	State Qua	ality				
Up				Packets (Latest	20)		
Packets [h-094 Distribution (I	208.66.150.94 32.emcosoftware.com	livery				
20%		Delivered 80%	ă				
			State				
Delivered: 16	Lost: 4	Unreachable: 0	-19 -15 Packets: Del State: Up	-11 ivered 🛄 Lost 🔄 U Bown 📰 R	-7 Inreachable Pending 🛛 Unreachab	-3 O	
Recent Intervals	; (1)						
		Туре		Start	End	Duration	
(H) Up				10/2/2022 2:16:47 AM*	10/2/2022 4:22:28 A	M 02:05:41	
EMCO Ping Monitor 92				Befresty A	uto	10/2/2022 4:22:33 AM	м

Pic 4. Monitoring state for a single host

On the detailed state monitor page, in the left top corner you can find the block that is quite similar to the large tile representing the host and contains the same information. Below this block, you can view the information on the distribution for the twenty latest packets. To the right those latest packets are displayed in the chronological order as well as the host state that is reached after each response.

On the bottom of the detailed sate monitor page you can find the area with recent state intervals (state changes). It displays all states the host had during the last hour.

Quality Page

The **Quality** page is designed to be used for focusing on connection quality monitoring, where you can easily detect any problematic situations just in time. The page displays only those hosts the monitoring is currently active for. It is possible to monitor per-host connection quality as well as the qualities distribution for groups of hosts. By default the page is organized with the help of tiles representing the objects being monitored, but it is possible to display data as a table. To open the page you need to click the **State Summary** item in the main menu. Let us take a closer look at the page.

Quality Summary

To display the connection quality information for monitored hosts you need to select the **Quality Summary** item in the main menu. The connection quality information on the screen is represented as tiles, where each tile represents a single host **Pic 1**. For the hosts that are monitored, the connection quality is calculated based on the rules defined in the program preferences and/or host settings. The tile is filled with red color in case all packets from the sample used to calculate the connection quality are lost, thus the quality is critical. In other cases, the quality value is displayed with the help of the colored tag on the right of the tile: green – for good quality, yellow – for warning, red – for bad, and gray – for pending. In case the host is currently unreachable, thus the quality is represented with the latest reachable one, the tile is hatched.



Pic 1. Monitoring hosts connection quality

The first mode of the **Quality Monitor** page we are going to introduce is the per-host connection quality monitoring **Pic 1**. This is the default mode, where each tile represents a single host. For the hosts that are monitored, the connection quality is calculated based on the rules defined in the program preferences and/or host settings. The tile is filled with red color in case all packets from the sample used to calculate the connection quality are lost, thus the quality is critical. In other cases, the quality value is displayed with the help of the colored tag on the right of the tile: green – for good quality, yellow – for warning, red – for bad, and gray – for pending. In case the host is currently unreachable, thus the quality is represented with the latest reachable one, the tile is hatched.

On the large tiles, for each host you can find the parameters used to calculate the quality and to see which parameter is leading to the warning or bad quality value. The same way as for the state, you can see how long has the host connection had this or that value. The smaller the tile the less information is available immediately, but there is still a whole set of values in the tool-tip.



Pic 2. Monitoring connection quality for groups of hosts

Together with per-host connection quality monitoring, it is possible to monitor connection quality for host groups. The group tile can either represent the group or the set of individual hosts (selected individually or not belonging to any group) Pic 2. The group tile is displaying the number of hosts within the group having specific connection quality. When monitoring connection quality in grouped mode, you can click on the group to focus on hosts from that group, or click on the specific connection quality.

You can switch between different modes using the corresponding buttons on the toolbar.

Toolbar Overview

Hosts	Hosts The Hosts button is used to configure the page for monitoring each host individually.
🕒 Groups	Groups The Groups button is used to configure the page for monitoring groups of hosts.
Ŷ	Group by Severity The Group by Severity button allows you to group the page the way that the problematic nodes are always displayed on top.
↓ ^A z	Sort by Name When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Name button enables the page sorting by entry name.
18	Sort by Time When monitoring hosts, the Sort by Time button enables the page sorting by connection quality change time stamp.
	Focus on Problems The Focus on Problems button allows you to configure the page to be automatically scrolled to entries where connection quality goes critical, when grouped by severity and sorted by time.
	TableThe Table button switches the page to the table data representation.
	Small The Small button switches the page to the mode where each monitored host is represented just with a pictogram describing its connection quality. Any other information on the entry is available in the tool tip only.
**	Medium The Medium button is used to switch to the mode where each entry is represented with a tile containing only the summary information on the entry. The detailed info is available in the tool tip.
	Large The Large button enables the mode where a tile representing each entry contains maximum information on the entry being monitored.

All entries on the **Quality Summary** page can be grouped by severity so that the problematic entries are always on top. To enable such grouping, use the **Group by Severity** button on the toolbar. For example, when enabled, the hosts with the critical connection quality will be displayed on top, then hosts with the bad connection quality will follow, then there will be the hosts with the warning quality, and so on. To switch between tiles of different size, use the **Small**, **Medium** and **Large** buttons.

You can configure the **Quality Summary** page to show information only for specific hosts and/or groups using the filter editor that is reached using the **Filter** button next to the navigation menu in

EMCO Ping Monitor 9

the left top corner of the page. Using the filter editor, you can also filter the page to display hosts with specific connection quality. The refresh interval is configured within the **Advanced Options** drop-down button from the right top corner.

→ C @ ① localhost:4811/monitor?tin	nezone=America%2fLos Ange	les&m=quality		sia s≦=	G (
	2536 20 86	0			22 0	ž
	Hosts	🗈 Groups 👃	J ^A J∑	3 2 🔳		
Name	Quality	Duration	PL (%)	Latency (ms)	Jitter (ms	5)
h-05668.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States\Boardman	Critical	1.05:26:44	100	[n/a]		
h-05670.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	169.75		
h-05674.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	169.25		
h-05675.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States)Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	169.56		
h-05676.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	169.59		
h-05679.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:41	0	170.75		
h-05680.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	172.94		
h-05681,emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	170.74		
h-05682.emcosoftware.com North America)United States)Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	171.43		
h-05686.emcosoftware.com North AmericalUnited StateslBoardman	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	171.04		
h-05687.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:41	0	171.28		
h-05689.emcosoftware.com North America/United States/Boardman	Warning	1.05:26:41	0	170.87		
h-05690.emcosoftware.com	Warning	1.05:26:40	0	169.42		

Pic 3. Quality Summary represented as a table

The **Quality Summary** page can display host connection quality information as a table. To activate table representation you need to click the **Table** button on the toolbar. In the table mode each host is displayed as a row, you can see host name, quality and other information as columns.

Host Quality

You can also focus on monitoring specific hosts. To monitor single host, just click the tile the host is represented with. As the result you drill-down to the host level. The page containing the monitoring details for this host will be displayed **Pic 4**.

Web Interface

● h-09432.emcosoftware.com - Q: × +				- 0	I X
\rightarrow C $\widehat{\mathbf{O}}$ localhost:4811/monitor/hquality?id	=10416&back=http:%2f%2flocalhost	:4811%2fmonitor	%3ftimezon 🖒 🔹	ć 🛈 😩	
QUALITY				2	
h-09432.emcosoftware.com North Americal/United States/Weatherford Country Code: US, Region/Code: Texas/TX	Ka .				
Statistics Alerts State Qua	lity				
Warning ®	Pa	ackets (Latest	20)		
Packet Loss: 15% Latency: ⁽²⁾ 162.3 ms	1162 30ms				
Packet Loss: Latency: ⁽ⁱ⁾ Jitter: 15% 162.3 ms 0.41 ms	-19 -15 Packets: Latency 50 Quality: Cood Wa Pending Un	-11 Percentile 🗍 Lost arning 🙀 Bad weachable	-7 -3 Unreachable	5 0	
Recent Intervals ①					
Туре		Start	End	Duration	
al Warning	10/2/2	022 4:22:08 AM	10/2/2022 4:29:12 AM	00:07:04	
Bad	10/2/2	022 4:21:25 AM	10/2/2022 4:22:08 AM	00:00:43	
all Warning	10/2/2	022 4:17:13 AM	10/2/2022 4:21:25 AM	00:04:12	

Pic 4. Monitoring connection quality for a single host

On the detailed connection quality monitor page, in the left top corner you can find the block that is quite similar to the large tile representing the host and contains the same information. Below this block, you can view the information on the distribution for the packets from a sample used to calculate the connection quality. Below the packets distribution, you can find the connection quality characteristics. To the right those latest packets are displayed in the chronological order as well as the connection quality that is reached after each response.

On the bottom of the detailed connection quality monitor page you can find the area with recent quality intervals. It is used to display the most recent quality intervals (quality changes) that occurred during the last hour.

Hosts Page

The **Hosts** page **Pic 1** was primarily designed for performing monitoring activity management as well as host state and connection quality monitoring. It can displays hosts available in the program split into pages.

Hosts - EMCO Ping Monitor x +		- 0	×
\leftarrow \rightarrow \bigcirc \bigcirc localhost:4811/hosts?timezone=America%2fLos_Angeles	to th	۹	0
HOSTS		I D ₿	
Sort by: Host † 🗸 +			
Name	On Startup	Dynamic IP	
h-00000.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth Africa	Restore Activity	No	
h-00001.emcosoftware.com Africal/South Africal/Cape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00002.emcosoftware.com Africal/South Africal/Cape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00003.emcosoftware.com Africal/South Africal/Cape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00004.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth AfricalCape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00005.emcosoftware.com Africa)South Africa)Cape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00006.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth AfricalCape Town	Restore Activity	No	
h-00007.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth Africa	Restore Activity	No	
h-00008.emcosoftware.com	Restore Activity	No	
h-00009.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth Africa	Restore Activity	No	
h-00010.emcosoftware.com AfricalSouth AfricalJohannesburg	Restore Activity	No	
h-00011.emcosoftware.com	Restore Activity	No	
EMCO Ping Monitor 92 Refresh: Auto	9/26/2	022 12:52:41 AM	

Pic 1. The Hosts page

On the **Hosts** page you can find the current monitoring activity for each host. For all hosts the monitoring is currently active, you can see its state and connection quality, as well as the connection quality characteristics. The host state, connection quality and the characteristics used for quality calculation are underlined with the severity color.

You can configure the **Hosts** page to show information only for specific hosts and/or groups using the filter editor that is reached using the **Filter** button next to the navigation menu in the left top corner of the page. Using the filter editor, you can also filter the page by monitoring activity, hosts state and connection quality. The refresh interval is configured within the **Advanced Options** dropdown button from the right top corner.

Start

The **Start** button from the **Hosts** page header can be used to start the monitoring process for the checked hosts.

	Stop The Stop button from the Hosts page header allows you to stop the monitoring process for the checked hosts.
Ш	Pause The Pause button from the Hosts page header can be used to pause the monitoring process for the checked hosts.
₽	Resume The Resume button from the Hosts view toolbar is used to resume the monitoring process for the checked hosts.
:=	List The List button from the Hosts page toolbar switches the page to the list representation of hosts providing you with maximum details.
▦	TableThe Table button from the Hosts page toolbar switches the page to the compact tablerepresentation of hosts.

To control the monitoring activity, check the hosts in the view and use the **Start**, **Stop**, **Pause** and **Resume** buttons from the page header. It is possible to switch between the list and table representations of hosts using the **List** and **Table** items on the toolbar and in the popup menu. These representations provide different level of detail.

Chapter 8: Using Placeholders

Ping Monitor supports a flexible configuration of custom actions definitions, report file names and email message templates - this flexibility is achieved by allowing the use of placeholders to form the templates and command line parameters of actions. This part of the guide describes the placeholders that can be used in templates for notification messages sent by e-mail in case of certain events, in report file names and in definitions of custom actions.

Notification E-mail Placeholders

This part of the guide describes the placeholders that can be used in the templates for the notification messages sent by e-mail in case of certain events. There are state and quality notification messages, summary report messages and detailed report messages. Each of them is described below. Along with the described placeholders, you can use the custom fields, if defined.

Host State Notifications

Host state notification placeholders can be used for notification messages that are sent when the host state changes. The following placeholders can be used:

%REMOTE_HOST%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined;
%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%	the address of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_LABEL%	the label of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_IP%	the resolved IP address of the remote host;
%REMOTE_HOST_GROUP%	the group the remote host belongs to;
%REMOTE_HOST_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the remote host being monitored;
%STATE%	the current host state, either Up or Down;
%CONNECTION_STATUS%	the current connection status. It can be either 'lost', or 'restored'. For the 'lost' status, the reason for ping failure is added. If you do not want to see the reason, use the '% SHORT_CONNECTION_STATUS%' placeholder;
%SHORT_CONNECTION_STATUS%	the current connection status. It can be either 'lost', or 'restored'. The reason for ping failure is never added;
%CHANGE_TIME%	the date and time the connection status was changed at;
%OCCURRENCE%	the number of notification sent for this event (useful for recurring notifications);
%LOCAL_HOST%	the machine name;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running program name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running program;
%TIME%	the current time;
%DATE%	the current date;
%DATETIME%	the current date and time;

%UTC_OFFSET%	the current UTC offset;
%YEAR%	the current year.

In case of the **On Connection Restore** notification, you can use the following additional placeholders:

%OUTAGE_DURATION%	the duration of the outage that has ended;
%OUTAGE_START_TIME%	the start time of the outage that has ended;
%OUTAGE_END_TIME%	the end time of the outage that has ended.

Connection Quality Notifications

Connection quality notification placeholders can be used for notification messages that are sent when the connection quality changes. The following placeholders can be used:

%REMOTE_HOST%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined;
%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%	the address of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_LABEL%	the label of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_IP%	the resolved IP address of the remote host;
%REMOTE_HOST_GROUP%	the resolved IP address of the remote host;
%REMOTE_HOST_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the remote host being monitored;
%QUALITY%	the current connection quality, one of the following: Good, Warning, Bad or Critical;
%CHANGE_TIME%	the date and time the connection status was changed at.
%OCCURRENCE%	the number of notification sent for this event (useful for recurring notifications);
%LOCAL_HOST%	the machine name;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running program name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running program;
%TIME%	the current time;
%DATE%	the current date;
%DATETIME%	the current date and time;
%UTC_OFFSET%	the current UTC offset;
%YEAR%	the current year.

Summary Report

For the e-mail messages, sent as summary reports you can use the following placeholders:

%REPORT_NAME%	the name of the generated report;
%REPORT_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the generated report;

the type of the generated report;
the period the report is generated for;
the table with the summary information on hosts availability and ping performance;
the machine name;
the running program name;
the current version of the running program;
the current time;
the current date;
the current date and time;
the current UTC offset;
the current year.

Detailed Report

For the detailed report, the message body is generated for each host separately, and the header and footer are generated only once. So, the placeholders standing for any information on a single host can be used only within the message body. The following placeholders are available:

%REPORT_NAME%	the name of the generated report;
%REPORT_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the generated report;
%REPORT_TYPE%	the type of the generated report;
%REPORT_PERIOD%	the period the report is generated for;
%REMOTE_HOST_EXT%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined, and footnote sign, if required;
%REMOTE_HOST%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined;
%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%	the address of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_LABEL%	the label of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_GROUP%	the group the remote host belongs to;
%REMOTE_HOST_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the remote host being monitored;
%ACTIVITY_TIME%	the time span the host was monitored for during the report period;
%PAUSE_TIME%	the time span the host monitoring was paused for during the report period;
%MIN_LATENCY%	the smallest value from all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the report period in milliseconds;
%MAX_LATENCY%	the largest value from all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the report period in milliseconds;

%AVG_LATENCY%	the arithmetic mean of all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the report period in milliseconds;
%LATENCY_DEVIATION%	the standard deviation from the average latency value for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the report period in milliseconds;
%LATENCY_CV%	the percentage ratio of the latency deviation to the average latency calculated for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the specified time period;
%UPTIME%	the percentage ratio of the host uptime to the whole non- pending time during the report period;
%OUTAGES_COUNT%	the number of outages that took place during the report period;
%UPTIME_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection to the host was up during the report period;
%DOWNTIME_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection to the host was down during the report period;
%SHORTEST_OUTAGE%	the shortest outage that took place during the report period;
%LONGEST_OUTAGE%	the longest outage that took place during the report period;
%PACKET_LOSS%	the percentage ratio of the number of lost packets to the number of packets being sent during the report period;
%LOST_PACKETS_COUNT%	the number of lost packets during the report period;
%DELIVERED_PACKETS_COUNT%	the number of delivered packets during the report period;
%MOS%	the mean opinion score, a well-established metric for obtaining the quality of VoIP based on the latency characteristics and packet loss percentage for all packets sent during the report period;
%GOOD_QUALITY_PERCENTAGE%	the percentage ratio of the time with good connection quality to the whole non-pending time during the report period;
%WARNING_QUALITY_PERCENTAGE%	the percentage ratio of the time with warning connection quality to the whole non-pending time during the report period;
%BAD_QUALITY_PERCENTAGE%	the percentage ratio of the time with bad connection quality to the whole non-pending time during the report period;
%CRITICAL_QUALITY_PERCENTAGE%	the percentage ratio of the time with critical connection quality to the whole non-pending time during the report period;
%GOOD_QUALITY_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection quality to the host was good during the report period;
%WARNING_QUALITY_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection quality to the host was warning during the report period;

%BAD_QUALITY_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection quality to the host was bad during the report period;
%CRITICAL_QUALITY_INTERVAL%	a time span the connection quality to the host was critical during the report period;
%UPTIME_COLOR%	the color used to draw the uptime box;
%PACKET_LOSS_COLOR%	the color used to draw the packet loss box;
%OUTAGES_COLOR%	the color used to draw the outages box;
%DEVIATION_COLOR%	the color used to draw the deviation box;
%CV_COLOR%	the color used to draw the CV box;
%AVERAGE_COLOR%	the color used to draw the average latency box;
%GOOD_QUALITY_COLOR%	the color used to draw the good quality box;
%WARNING_QUALITY_COLOR%	the color used to draw the warning quality box;
%BAD_QUALITY_COLOR%	the color used to draw the bad quality box;
%CRITICAL_QUALITY_COLOR%	the color used to draw the critical quality box;
%PERFORMANCE_INFO%	the information on performance calculated for the report period;
%STATE_INTERVALS_TABLE%	detailed information on host state intervals for the report period in a form of a table, where each row stands for the interval of the specific type;
%QUALITY_INTERVALS_TABLE%	detailed information on connection quality intervals for the report period in a form of a table, where each row stands for the interval of the specific type;
%EVENTS_TABLE%	detailed information on monitoring events taken place during the report period in a form of a table;
%MOS_RATING_IMAGE%	the content ID of the image for the 5-star rating representation of MOS (HTML message format only);
%STATISTICS_ANALYSIS_CHART%	the content ID of the image with latency and uptime chart (HTML message format only);
%INTERVALS_ANALYSIS_CHART%	the content ID of the image with state and quality chart (HTML message format only);
%LOCAL_HOST%	the machine name;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running program name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running program;
701 INL 70	the current version of the running program;
%DATE%	the current version of the running program; the current date;
%DATE% %DATETIME%	the current version of the running program; the current date; the current date and time;
%DATE% %DATETIME% %UTC_OFFSET%	the current version of the running program; the current date; the current date and time; the current UTC offset;

Custom Actions Definition Placeholders

This part of the guide describes the placeholders that can be used in custom actions definitions. You can use these placeholders for forming both the path to the action to be executed and the command line parameters of the action. Do not forget to quote the placeholder or the combination of placeholders used as a command line parameter. The following placeholders can be used for the custom actions definition:

%REMOTE_HOST%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined;
%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%	the address of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_LABEL%	the label of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_IP%	the resolved IP address of the remote host;
%REMOTE_HOST_GROUP%	the group the remote host belongs to;
%REMOTE_HOST_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the remote host being monitored;
%CHANGE_TIME%	the date and time the notification is triggered at;
%OCCURRENCE%	the number of action called for this event (useful for recurring notifications);
%LOCAL_HOST%	the name of the machine on which the product is running;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running product name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running product;
%TIME%	the current time in a long format;
%DATE%	the current date in a short format;
%DATETIME%	the current date with the current time;
%UTC_OFFSET%	the current UTC offset;
%YEAR%	the current year.

For the actions handling host state changes, you can also use the following placeholders:

%STATE%	the current host state, either Up or Down;
%CONNECTION_STATUS%	the current connection status. It can be either 'lost', or 'restored'. For the 'lost' status, the reason for ping failure is added. If you do not want to see the reason, use the '% SHORT_CONNECTION_STATUS%' placeholder;
%SHORT_CONNECTION_STATUS%	the current connection status. It can be either 'lost', or 'restored'. The reason for ping failure is never added.

In case of the **On Connection Restore** action, you can use the following additional placeholders:

%OUTAGE_DURATION%	the duration of the outage that has ended;
%OUTAGE_START_TIME%	the start time of the outage that has ended;
%OUTAGE_END_TIME%	the end time of the outage that has ended.

And for the actions handling connection quality changes, the following placeholder can be used:

%QUALITY%	the current connection quality, one of the following: Good, Warning,
	Bad or Critical.

Report Name Template Placeholders

Ping Monitor allows you to use placeholders when defining a name template for the file output of monitoring data reports. You can use the following placeholders when specifying the template:

%REPORT_NAME%	the name of the report being generated;
%REPORT_DATE%	the report generation date in the 'yyyy.MM.dd' format;
%REPORT_TIME%	the report generation time in the 'HH.mm.ss' format;
%FORMAT_EXTENTION%	the default file system extension of the report format.

Report Footer Placeholders

Ping Monitor allows you to use placeholders when defining a template for the report footer while configuring options on the **Reports Customization** preference page. You can use the following placeholders when specifying the footer template:

%LOCAL_HOST%	the name of the machine on which the product is running;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running product name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running product;
%TIME%	the report generation time in a long format;
%DATE%	the report generation date in a short format;
%DATETIME%	the report generation date with the report generation time;
%UTC_OFFSET%	the current UTC offset;
%REPORT_TIME_ZONE%	the time zone the report is generated for;
%YEAR%	the current year.

External Tools Placeholders

Ping Monitor allows you to use placeholders when defining a command to be launched as the external tool from the host's pop-up menu. You can use the following placeholders when specifying the command:

%REMOTE_HOST%	the remote host being monitored, including the host label, if defined;
%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%	the address of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_LABEL%	the label of the remote host being monitored;
%REMOTE_HOST_IP%	the resolved IP address of the remote host;
%REMOTE_HOST_GROUP%	the group the remote host belongs to;
%REMOTE_HOST_DESCRIPTION%	the description of the remote host being monitored;

%LOCAL_HOST%	the name of the machine on which the product is running;
%RUNNING_PRODUCT%	the running product name;
%PRODUCT_VERSION%	the current version of the running product;
%TIME%	the report generation time in a long format;
%DATE%	the report generation date in a short format;
%DATETIME%	the report generation date with the report generation time;
%YEAR%	the current year.

Chapter 9: Events Logging

Ping Monitor stores the events taken place during hosts monitoring and when executing generic operations. The monitoring events are stored per host and are available for reviewing in the Event table of the detailed host statistics. Those events, that are not directly connected to hosts monitoring, are displayed within the Log view.

Both the event viewers and the log are designed in a manner that helps you easily analyze the monitored host status changes and troubleshoot problems taking place while the program is in use. The events databases may grow continually, thus slowing down the program loading and response time. To prevent this, you can either clear the event logs manually, or allow the program to perform the clean-up automatically on a regular basis. The options for automatic events deletion are available on the **Monitoring Statistics** and **Log Configuration** preference pages.

In this chapter, we will explain how to analyze the events views and the log and describe the option of exporting events to a simple format.
Reviewing Monitoring Events

Ping Monitor allows you to review each and every event that has happened while monitoring connection to a remote host. The per-host events are available in the **Events** table displayed on the detailed host statistics **Pic 1**. Each entry has a severity icon, a title and a description. From the title, you can understand which event is logged; the description provides you with the detailed message; and the severity icon can be used to quickly understand if the event needs high level of attention.

0 5	6-	Publishing Teels EMCO Ping Me			itor Enterprise	⊡ - □ ×					
10 -	Но	me View Program	Publishing			0					
Start	Stop	Pause Resume	Delete Statistics Statistics	te Document Host Group Summary De Report Ri	tailed Web Interface Web	^					
122	🚮 Doc	ument 1 🖷 🗙									
Hests	¢	h-00000.emcos	oftware.com			↑ Statistics Alerts State Quality					
Roports		Africa/South Africa Country Code: ZA									
	1	📸 Report As 🔹 📑 Expe	ort 🔹 🕥			() Period: 24 Hours (10/1/2022 4:32 AM - 10/2/2022 4:32 AM) •					
	_0	Type St	tart	End v Duration		^					
	**	(+) Up 10 (+) Down 11 (+) Down 11 (+) Down 11 (+) Down 10 (+) Up 11 (+) Up 11	0/2/2022 3:41:59 AM 0/2/2022 3:41:50 AM 0/2/2022 3:40:70 AM 0/2/2022 3:14:50 AM 0/2/2022 3:13:50 AM 0/2/2022 3:13:50 AM 0/2/2022 1:42:07 AM 0/2/2022 1:17:25 AM 0/1/2022 7:30:20 AM 0/1/2022 7:30:31 AM 0/1/2022 12:59:04 AM *	10/2/2022 4:32:56 AM 00:50:57 10/2/2022 3:43:59 AM 00:00:99 10/2/2022 3:41:50 AM 00:00:09 10/2/2022 3:14:50 AM 00:00:09 10/2/2022 3:14:50 AM 00:00:09 10/2/2022 1:41:58 AM 01:31:51 10/1/2022 4:43:51 AM 02:41:33 10/1/2022 3:49:51 AM 02:14:11 10/1/2022 3:49:51 AM 01:36:45 10/1/2022 3:49:19 AM 04:50:15							
		Events	m m 😪								
		Title	Description		Time						
		Host State	The state of the 'h-00	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The	10/2/2022 3:41:59 AM	A					
		🛕 Host State	The state of the 'h-00 The connection was I time (IP status: 11010)	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. ost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted	10/2/2022 3:41:50 AM						
		Host State	The state of the 'h-00 connection was resto	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The red after being down for 00:00:09.	10/2/2022 3:14:07 AM						
		📥 Host State	The state of the 'h-00 The connection was I time (IP status: 11010)	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. ost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted	10/2/2022 3:13:58 AM						
		Host State	The state of the 'h-00 connection was resto	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The red after being down for 00:00:09.	10/2/2022 1:42:07 AM						
		A Host State	The state of the 'h-00 The connection was I time (IP status: 11010)	000.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. ost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted	10/2/2022 1:41:58 AM						
		Connection Quality	The connection quali	ty for the 'h-00000.emcosoftware.com' host was	10/2/2022 1:19:04 AM	× .					
🗾 Log	TACO	ess Control 🗵 Operations	5								
Hosts: 2	787 (278	16 active - 2684 up, 102 dow	m)			τ					

Pic 1. Host monitoring events

The events in **Statistics** cover all aspects of host monitoring. They state when the monitoring was started and stopped, displaying brief session statistics on stop; they show when the host state or connection quality has changed, and display if there any problems with sending notifications and performing custom actions for the host being reviewed.

Exporting Monitoring Events

With Ping Monitor, you can easily export the monitoring events to the CSV file format for future analysis or processing by an automated tool. You can export events displayed in the Events table of **Statistics**. To export the events, click the **Export** button from the toolbar. You are proposed to choose between exporting the selected events and all displayed events. Also can you press the **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page, when the view is focused. It is also possible to use the pop-up menu of the view to export events. The **Export Events Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 1**.

Export Events Wizard	×
	Welcome to the Export Events Wizard
	With Ping Monitor, exporting any pool of objects is fast and easy. The file created after such export can be processed manually or with any automated tool.
	You can use the exported file as a back-up, or you can share the data with colleagues. The data can be exported to a file having specified the format configuration options.
B	A detailed description of the export format can be found in the program documentation.
@ emco	Press Next to proceed with export. <u>How can I use events export?</u>
	< Back Next > Cancel

Pic 1. The Export Events Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Export Events Wizard** is the welcome page used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information, press **Next** to continue with export.

On the next page of the **Export Events Wizard**, you are offered to choose a file you are going to save the events to and the CSV format options. The file path should be provided to the **Export To** field **Pic 2**. You can choose the encoding to be used for saving the data as well as the field delimiter and the text qualifier. While performing export, you may also define if you would like the column header to be present in the resulting file, which would make it easier for you to identify each column – this feature can be enabled using the **Include column header** option.

Export	Events Wizard					×	
Confi St	Configure Export Options Specify the path to the file for the exported data and configure the CSV file format options.						
Export	To: C:\Users\Al	ex\Documents\HostEvents.csv				•••	
CSV The CSV data file comprises columns, each standing for a certain object property. The columns are separated with the specified field delimiter. See the program documentation for detailed informat about the CSV file format.				are ation			
	Encoding:	Unicode (UTF-8)				~	
	Field Delimiter:	, (Comma)	~	Text Qualifier:	" (Quote)	~	
		☑ Include column header					
				< Back	Finish C	ancel	

Pic 2. Configuring the export options

After you are ready with configuring the export options, press **Finish** to proceed with export. The file containing the events will be created in the path specified.

The CSV file with the connectivity events consists of four columns, which are the following:

Index	Header	Description
1	Туре	The type of the generated connectivity event.
2	Host	The host the event is generated for.
3	Description	The logged event description.
4	Time	The time when the event was logged.

Sample exported data in the CSV format

"Type", "Host", "Description", "Time"

"Up", "h-00632.emcosoftware.com", "The state of the 'h-00632.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:19.", "2019-08-05 02:12:19"

"Down","h-00632.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00632.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:12:00"

"Up","h-00261.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00261.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:09.","2019-08-05 02:11:55"

"Down","h-00261.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00261.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:11:46"

"Down","h-00434.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00434.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:11:45"

"Up","h-00986.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00986.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:18.","2019-08-05 02:11:38"

"Up", "h-00632.emcosoftware.com", "The state of the 'h-00632.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:39.", "2019-08-05 02:11:29"

"Down","h-00986.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00986.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:11:20"

"Up","h-00897.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00897.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:09.","2019-08-05 02:11:14"

"Down","h-00897.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00897.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:11:05"

"Down","h-00632.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00632.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 02:10:50"

"Up","h-00484.emcosoftware.com","The state of the 'h-00484.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:09.","2019-08-05 02:10:36"

The CSV file with the host monitoring events consists of five columns, which are the following:

Index	Header	Description
1	Title	The logged event title.
2	Severity	The logged event severity level.
3	Description	The logged event description.
4	Time	The time when the event was logged.
5	Error Code	The error code for the event, if any.

Sample exported data in the CSV format

"Title", "Severity", "Description", "Time", "Error Code"

"Connection Quality", "Information", "The connection quality for the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.", "2019-08-05 01:43:50",

"Host State", "Information", "The state of the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:09.", "2019-08-05 01:41:40",

"Host State","Warning","The state of the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).","2019-08-05 01:41:31", "Connection Quality", "Information", "The connection quality for the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Bad'.", "2019-08-05 01:41:21",

"Connection Quality", "Information", "The connection quality for the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.", "2019-08-05 01:38:40",

"Host State", "Information", "The state of the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:09.", "2019-08-05 01:37:00",

"Host State", "Warning", "The state of the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Down'. The connection was lost. Ping reply was not received within the allotted time (IP status: 11010).", "2019-08-05 01:36:51",

"Connection Quality", "Information", "The connection quality for the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Bad'.", "2019-08-05 01:36:46",

"Connection Quality", "Information", "The connection quality for the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Warning'.", "2019-08-05 01:31:04",

"Host State", "Information", "The state of the 'h-00020.emcosoftware.com' host was changed to 'Up'. The connection was restored after being down for 00:00:59.", "2019-08-05 01:28:29",

Analyzing Log

The main purpose of the **Log** view is to help you understand if the execution has succeeded and troubleshoot problems if any have occurred. Each entry in the log has a severity icon, a title, and a description, and possibly a hint on solving the problem, if any. From the title, you can understand which operation has been performed and which resource has been operated; the description provides you with the result message, a hint is used to provide you with an advice on solving the problem, if any; and the severity icon can be used to quickly understand if the operation has fully succeeded.

For example, let us take a closer look at the following result set in the log Pic 1.

Log (***********************************						
Title		Description	Time	Ŧ		
8	Send Report	The custom Summary Report e-mail message could not be sent. The SMTP	8/5/2019 6:15:41 AM			
0	Clear Log	The operation was completed successfully.	8/5/2019 6:14:39 AM			
Severi	ty: Error Title: Sen	nd Report Time: 8/5/2019 6:15:41 AM				
Descri	ption: /5/2019 6:15:41 AM,	The custom Summary Report e-mail message could not be sent. The SMTP host was	not found. The remote r	name co	ould not l	

Pic 1. Sample logged events

The picture above shows the set of result we received after performing an operation. As we can see, most of the logged events are informational, but some stand for problems. We need to find out what caused the problem and what should be done to avoid it in future. Also, it may be interesting to go through the warnings to see if anything wrong is going on.

After the events have been reviewed and all the problems have been solved, you can run the operation again and ensure that it completes successfully.

Exporting Log

With Ping Monitor, you can easily export the log to the CSV file format for future analysis or processing by an automated tool. To export the logged events, click the **Export** button from the **Log** view toolbar. You are proposed to choose between exporting the selected events and all events. You can also press the **Export** button from the **Organize** Ribbon group on the **Program** page when the Log view is in focus. It is also possible to use the pop-up menu of the Log view to export logged events. The **Export Log Wizard** will appear on the screen **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. The Export Log Wizard welcome page

The first page of the **Export Log Wizard** is the welcome page used to introduce you to the feature the wizard is supposed to help you with. After reading the welcome information press **Next** to continue with export.

On the next page of the **Export Log Wizard**, you are offered to choose a file you are going to save the logged events to and the CSV format options. The file path should be provided to the **Export To** field <u>Pic 2</u>. You can choose the encoding to be used for saving the data as well as, the field delimiter and the text qualifier. While performing exporting, you may also define if you would like the column header to be present in the resulting file, which would make it easier for you to identify each column – this feature option can be enabled using the **Include column header** option.

Export	t Log Wizard				×	
Confi Sp	igure Export O pecify the path to	ptions the file for the exported data and	d configure the CSV	file format options.		
Export	t To: C:\Users\Al	ex\Documents\ExecutionResults.c	SV .			
csv	The CSV data fil separated with about the CSV f	e comprises columns, each standi the specified field delimiter. See t ile format.	ng for a certain obj he program docume	ect property. The column entation for detailed info	s are rmation	
	Encoding:	Unicode (UTF-8)				
	Field Delimiter:	, (Comma)	 Text Qualifier: 	- (Quote)	~	
		🗹 include column header				
			< Back	Finish	Cancel	

Pic 2. Configuring the export options

After you are ready with configuring the export options, press **Finish** to proceed with export. The file containing the logged events will be created in the path specified.

The CSV file with the exported data consists of six columns, which are the following:

Index	Header	Description
1	Path	The path to the logged event in the log tree.
2	Title	The logged event title.
3	Severity	The logged event severity level.
4	Descriptio n	The logged event description.
5	Time	The time when the event occurred.
6	Error Code	The error code for the event, if any.

Sample exported logged events in the CSV format

"Path", "Title", "Severity", "Description", "Time", "Error Code"

"Clear Application Log", "Clear Application Log", "Information", "The operation was completed successfully.", "2015-09-14 13:47:40",

"Save Report", "Save Report", "Error", "The 'News Providers' report could not be saved to the 'F: \Reports\' folder with the 'News Providers (2015.09.14).pdf' name. The system cannot find the path specified. Error code: 3.", "2015-09-14 13:47:46",

Now you are introduced to the log export and export data file format and can use the export feature for the log analysis without any misunderstanding.

Chapter 10: Program Preferences

Ping Monitor comes with a wide range of settings that users can adjust to suit their needs. Every preference page has a detailed description of its content and of the feature it is used to configure. You can configure almost everything: the program behavior in respect to the System Tray, the database location, the proxy settings to be used to connect to the Internet, etc. To reach the program preferences, click the **Preferences** button available from the **Application Menu**. Also, the clickable **Ribbon** groups' glyphs open the preference pages that configure the functionality encapsulated by this group.

Monitoring Part

The **Monitoring** part of the program preferences should be used to configure the monitoring process settings. It is possible to configure the connection monitor behavior, gateway options, monitoring intervals and automation settings. To open the **Preferences** dialog, click the **Preferences** button available from the **Application Menu**. Configure the available settings to suit your needs best.

Monitor Settings

Ping Monitor monitors the remote host availability using the specified monitor settings. These settings can be specified on the **Monitor Settings** preference page **Pic 1**. You can activate this page by clicking the glyph of the **Activity** Ribbon group on the **Home** Ribbon page, or clicking the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the **Monitor Settings** link on the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Preferences Monitoring Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation	^	Monitor Settings Ping Monitor conducts monitoring of the connection status by sending pings to the monitored host. Tune the monitoring behavior by configuring the outages conditions, availability checks and ping options. Ping Options Specify a regular interval for sending ICMP echo requests to a host; this interval is used when the host is in a stable state. The state is considered stable as soon as it is confirmed by the specified number of lost/delivered packets in a row. Regular Ping Interval (sec): 10
Latency Measurement Alerts and Events General	~ ~	Configure the number of consecutively delivered packets for the host to become up, the number of lost packets in a row for the host to be treated as down and the interval between checks for stable state. Up Check Attempts: 1 0 Down Check Attempts: 3 0 State Check Interval (sec): 1 0
Miscellaneous	~	 The host will become Up as soon as any packet is delivered and will become Down in no less than 2 seconds after the first lost packet. Define the ping operation timeout, choose the size of the packet to be sent in an echo request and time to live for the packet. Ping Timeout (ms): 1500 ♀ Packet Size (bytes): 32 ♥ Time To Live (TTL): 128 ♀
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring the Monitor Settings

The following ping options can be configured:

- **Regular Pings Interval** is the time span in seconds between pings if the host is currently in a stable state. The state is considered stable as soon as it is confirmed by the specified number of lost/delivered packets in a row;
- **Up Check Attempts** is the number of delivered packets in a row that could be interpreted as an established connection to a remote host;
- **Down Check Attempts** is the number of lost packets in a row that could be interpreted as a lost connection to a remote host;
- **State Check Interval** is the time span in seconds between pings if host sate is currently unstable, i.e. not confirmed as up or down;

- **Ping Timeout** is the time span in milliseconds for the ping command to wait for a response from a remote host;
- Packet Size is the size in bytes of the packet sent with an ICMP echo request;
- **Time To Live (TTL)** is the time-to-live for the packet being sent. It is reduced by every host on the route to the destination. If the TTL field reaches zero before the packet arrives, such packet is discarded and an error is sent back. The purpose of the TTL field is to avoid a situation in which an undeliverable packet would keep circulating in the Internet.

With EMCO Ping Monitor, it is possible not only to set a common monitoring configuration, but also to provide a specific configuration for each host individually. See the Overriding Common Settings part of this document for details.

Connection Quality

Along with host state monitoring, Ping Monitor allows you to monitor the quality of connection to remote hosts, based on the set of the latest ping replies. The parameters used for connection quality calculation can be specified on the **Connection Quality** preference page **Pic 1**. To reach this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the **Connection Quality** link on the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	^	Connection Quality
Monitor Settings <u>Connection Quality</u> Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation Latency Measurement		Ping Monitor can calculate the connection quality for remote hosts based on the set of the latest ping replies. Here you can set up the connection quality parameters. Quality Monitor Specify the number of responses in a sample and the latency percentile to be used for checking the hosts connection quality. Sample Size (ping): 20 0 Estimate Quality Since (ping): 10 0 Latency Percentile (%): 50 v Define the conditions to be used for checking the real-time hosts connection quality that is based on a set of the latest responses.
Alerts and Events	~	The packet loss percentage in the sample is greater than the value 🚯 Warning (%): 5 🗘 Bad (%): 20 🗘
General	~	The connection quality is Critical when the packet loss percentage is 100%. The latence constitue of the size of form the same loss percentage of the size of form the same loss percentage.
Miscellaneous	~	Warning (ms): 100 Bad (ms): 200 Warning (ms): 200 Bad (ms): 200 Warning (ms): 200 Bad (ms): 30 Warning (ms): 20 Bad (ms): 30 Warning (ms): 20 Warning (ms): 30 Warning (ms): 20 Warning (ms): 30
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Specifying connection quality monitoring configuration

When calculating a connection quality, Ping Monitor can use such characteristics as the percentage of lost packets, the latency percentile and the latency jitter. The **Sample Size** field is used to specify the number of most latest pings to be used for quality calculation. Ping Monitor can estimate the connection quality when the sample is incomplete, i.e. the number of responses in the sample is below its size. The **Estimate Quality Since** field is used to specify the minimum number of responses sufficient to estimate the connection quality, while it will be considered **Pending** with a lower number of responses.

A connection quality is considered **Critical** in case all packets from the sample are lost. For the **Bad** and **Warning** quality, you can specify the conditional values to check for packet loss percentage, latency and jitter. In case no condition is reached, the connection quality is treated as **Good**.

The packet loss percentage is a ratio of the number of lost packets from the sample to the number of packets sent within the same sample. The latency percentile separates the greater and lesser parts of a round-trip times data set. The percentile specified in the **Latency Percentile** field is used. The sample for calculation is built from a specified number of the latest delivered packets. The jitter is calculated as a packet delay variation for a sample of delivered packets of a specified length with reference to the specifications defined in RFC-1889. If you prefer not to use latency percentile or jitter in quality calculation, you can uncheck the appropriate options.

With EMCO Ping Monitor, it is possible not only to set a common connection quality monitor configuration, but also to provide a specific one for each host individually. See the Overriding Common Settings part of this document for details.

Performance

Ping Monitor calculates remote hosts' performance based on their monitoring statistics for specific time periods. The conditions used for calculating the performance are defined on the **Performance** preferences page **Pic 1**. You can reach this page by clicking the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the **Performance** link on the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	^	Performance
Monitor Settings Connection Quality <u>Performance</u> Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals		Ping Monitor calculates the performance for remote hosts based on monitoring statistics for specific time periods. Here you can set up the performance parameters. Conditions Specify the conditions to be used for calculating hosts' performance for specific time periods. The performance is based on the monitoring statistics gathered during the specified period.
Automation		The uptime percentage is below the value 🚯
Latency Measurement		
		The performance is raulty when the downtime percentage is 100%.
Alerts and Events	~	Madium Bit
General	~	The average latency value is greater than the value
100 m		The latency deviation is greater than the value 1
Miscellaneous	~	Medium (ms): 20 🗘 Low (ms): 30 🗘
		\checkmark The latency coefficient of variation (CV) is greater than the value $f 0$
		Medium (%): 10 🗘 Low (%): 33 🗘
		✓ Ignore latency of less than (ms): 10 🗘
		The mean opinion score (MOS) is lower than the value 1
		Medium: 4 0 Low: 2 0
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Specifying performance calculation settings

You can choose from the following characteristics to be used for calculating the performance:

- Uptime a percentage ratio of the host uptime to the whole non-pending period of the host;
- **Packet Loss** a percentage ratio of the number of lost packets to the number of packets being sent during the specified time period;
- Average Latency an arithmetic mean of all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the specified time period;
- Latency Deviation a standard deviation from the average latency value for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the specified time period;

- Latency Coefficient of Variation a percentage ratio of the latency deviation to the average latency calculated for all round-trip times of packets successfully delivered during the specified time period;
- **Mean Opinion Score** a well-established metric for obtaining the quality of VoIP based on the latency characteristics and packet loss percentage for all packets sent during the specified time period.

In case any of the **Low** conditions is met, the performance is considered **Low**. Next the **Medium** conditions are checked, and if any is met, the performance is **Medium**. If no conditions are met, the performance is treated as **High**. It is possible to disable the performance calculation by unchecking all characteristics.

As for the coefficient of variation (CV), it becomes too sensitive when the average latency is small. It is possible to define the minimum average latency for CV calculation within the **Ignore latency of less than** field.

Monitoring Statistics

Ping Monitor gathered and stores per host performance and availability data, which is called monitoring statistics, while monitoring remote hosts connectivity. This data consists of the live data, historical data and overall data. The intervals for storing and displaying live data as well as the historical data storing options are available on the **Monitoring Statistics** preference page **Pic 1**. To reach this page, you should open the program preferences using the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu**, and click the **Monitoring Statistics** link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the **Events and Statistics** group.



Pic 1. Configuring live and historical monitoring data options

Within the **Live Data** group, you can choose the time intervals to be used for storing and displaying the statistics. It is possible to create and delete intervals, as well as enable or disable existing ones. It is possible to define an interval from 5 minutes to 3 days. Specifying large focus intervals will lead to a higher consumption of the system memory and the processor resources while preparing statistics for each host.

The **Historical Data** group contains the options for historical data storing and automatic deletion. If you do not want to store the historical data at all, you can disable the **Store the historical data** option. Please take into account that as long as this option is disabled it is not possible to review historical data and generate statistical reports for future monitoring sessions. In case you are not interested in raw ping replies data, you can disable its storing by unchecking the **Include raw ping**

reply data box. When this option is disabled, it won't be possible to export raw data, view pings timeline and restore live statistics when restarting the server.

The options for historical data auto remove, allow you to prevent the monitoring data database from continuous growing. You can enable the automatic removal of the historical data that is older than a specific age within the **Auto delete** drop-down list.

Gateway Options

Ping Monitor can check that either a packet sent to remote host has been lost or the PC hosting the monitoring software has lost connection to the network the host is located in by pinging a specific gateway. This feature is provided to protect the user from a false-positive detection of outages and connection quality problems. In case the gateway is unreachable, the host state and quality is not changed until it is confirmed by a successful ping to the gateway.

The gateway configuration is set up on the **Gateway Options** preference page **Pic 1**. To access the **Gateway Options** preference page, press the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the **Gateway Options** link in the navigation bar on the left in the dialog that opens.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	^	Gateway Options
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics <u>Gateway Options</u> Intervals Automation Latency Measurement		Ping Monitor can check either a remote host has gone offline or the PC hosting the monitoring software has lost connection to the network by pinging a specific gateway. Here you can configure these settings. Gateway Specify if you would like to confirm failed pings to hosts by checking gateway and provide the settings to be used for checking. Check gateway connectivity to confirm ping failures Gateway IP(s):
Alerts and Events	~	Define the ping operation timeout, choose the size of the packet to be sent in an echo request and time to live for the packet. Packet Size (bytes): 32 V Ping Timeout (ms): 1500 🔷
General	~	Time To Live (TTL): 128 🔆
Miscellaneous	~	
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Setting up the gateway options

If you want to enable the failed pings confirmation by checking a specific gateway for accessibility, you should check the **Check gateway connectivity to confirm ping failures** option and provide

the address of the gateway to ping to the **Gateway IP** field. The size of the packet to send to the gateway, the ping operation timeout and the time-to-live for the ping packet can be specified in the appropriate fields, if required. As soon as this check is enabled, a ping to a remote host will be treated as failed only if the gateway is reachable.

With EMCO Ping Monitor, it is possible not only to set a common gateway options, but also to provide a specific one for each host individually. See the Overriding Common Settings part of this document for details.

Intervals

Ping Monitor allows you to restrict the monitoring time to specific time intervals on certain week days, thus you can configure the monitoring to pause automatically when it is not required. This configuration is available on the **Intervals** preference page **Pic 1**. You can activate this page by clicking the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the Intervals link on the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Monitoring Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics	^	Ping Monitor allows you to restrict the monitoring time to specific time intervals on certain week days, thus you can configure the monitoring to pause automatically when it is not required. Monitoring Intervals Choose if the monitoring should run only within specific time intervals and define the
Gateway Options Intervals Automation Latency Measurement		intervals to be monitored. Run monitoring only on the following days Sun V Mon V Tue V Wed V Thu V Fri V Sat Run monitoring only within the following hours From: 9:00 AM V Till: 6:00 PM V
Alerts and Events	~	Learn more about Monitoring Intervals
General	Ý	
Miscellaneous	Ŷ	Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring monitoring intervals

You can choose if you would like the hosts to be monitored only on specific week days and/or within specific hours. After you start the monitoring process, it is managed by the program automatically: if the current time is not within the monitoring intervals, monitoring is automatically paused until the monitoring interval is reached again.

Automation

Ping Monitor comes with a range of automation features that allow you to start, stop and pause monitoring automatically. The configuration of such features is available on the **Automation** preferences page **Pic 1**. You can activate this page by clicking the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the **Automation** link in the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	^	Automation
Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals		enable an automated start and stop of the hosts monitoring process. Auto-start Monitoring Choose the action you would like to perform on each server start up: either start monitoring for the hosts included into the auto-start list, or restore the latest activity suspended during the previous server shut-down, or just leave the monitoring inactive until started manually.
Automation		On Startup: Restore the latest monitoring activity for all Hosts
caterity measurement		Auto-stop Monitoring
Alerts and Events	~	The automation features enable you to stop or pause the host monitoring on meeting the defined condition. You can choose any conditions from those available below and assign required actions to each of them.
General	~	On Down State Timeout (min): 30 🐥 Action: Stop 🗸
Miscellaneous	~	On Outages Limit Count 20 0 Interval (min): 30 0 Action: Stop V
		Learn more about Automation Settings
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring the automation features

Within the **Auto-Start Monitoring** group, you can choose the action you would like to perform on each server start up: either start monitoring for the hosts included into the auto-start list, or restore the latest monitoring activity suspended during the previous server shut-down, or just leave the monitoring inactive until started manually.

The **Auto-stop Monitoring** group is designed for you to define the conditions to be used to stop or pause monitoring of a single host. There are two conditions available, namely: **On Down State** and **On Outages Limit**. For each condition, you can choose the action to perform in case of this condition between **Stop** and **Pause**. For the **Pause** action, you should define the pause timeout. Let us take a closer look on each condition.

The **On Down State** condition should be enabled if you would like the host monitoring process to stop/pause automatically if the connection to the host is lost and not reestablished during the interval specified in the **Timeout** field next to the **On Down State** option.

The **On Outages Limit** condition provides you with an option to stop/pause the host monitoring process automatically if a defined number of outages have been registered during the specified time interval. The number of outages is defined in the **Count** field, and the time interval to be applied should be provided in the **Interval** field.

With EMCO Ping Monitor, it is possible not only to set a common **Auto-stop Monitoring** configuration, but also to provide a specific configuration for each host individually. See the Overriding Common Settings part of this document for details.

Latency Measurement

Ping Monitor can monitor hosts in low-latency networks if the high-precision latency measurement is enabled. In this case, the program uses a special ICMP network filter driver to measure the ping latency with 0.01ms precision. On the **Latency Measurement** page, you can switch the program to use the Windows standard measurement with 1ms precision or high-precision measurement **Pic 1**.

Preferences			×
Monitoring	^	Latency Measurement	
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals Automation		EMCO Ping Monitor provides a precise (up to 0,01ms) measurement of the network allowing you to estimate the connection quality in low-latency networks. Here you to use the high-precision latency measurement or the standard system measurement weasurement Type The high-precision latency measurement requires a special ICMP network fit to be installed. To use the high-precision latency measurement, run the prosetup, modify the program installation, and select the option to install the statement.	latency can choose nt. Iter driver gram driver.
Latency Measurement		Active: High-Precision Latency Measurement	Y
Alerts and Events	~		
General	~		
Miscellaneous	~		
		Restore Defaults	Apply
Restore Defaults		ОК	Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring latency measurement precision

To use the high-precision latency, you need to install a special ICMP network filter driver on the machine where the Ping Monitor server is installed. Run the program setup to modify the server installation and select the option to install the driver. The server should be rebooted after the driver is installed.

Alerts and Events Part

The Alerts and Events part of the program preferences should be used to configure the alerts, notifications and custom actions to be performed upon discovery of certain events during monitoring, statistics and events storing, etc. To open the **Preferences** dialog, click the **Preferences** button available in the **Application Menu**. Configure the available settings to suit your needs best.

Alerts and Notifications

The **Alerts and Notifications** preference page allows you to configure alerts in the program. You can learn more about alerts in the **Using Alerts** chapter of this manual. On the **Alerts and Notifications** preference page you can create alerts, configure alerts conditions and configure email notifications and custom messages that should be executed on alerts and events.

In the **Notifications Configuration** section of the dialog you can create, review and edit alerts and events configured in the program. You can also review and edit e-mail messages and custom actions assigned to alerts and events. To manage alerts, events and their notifications you can use actions available on the toolbar **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. Configuring alerts, events and notifications

You can use checkboxes to enable or disable alerts, events and notifications. When configuring email notifications or custom actions it is possible to specify the number of iterations and interval between iterations for notifications. So you can choose to loop the notification for a specific number of times or until the host state or connection quality changes again.

To create alerts and events use the corresponding items displayed in the **New** menu item. When creating an alert you need to specify an alert condition. Once this condition is reached the alert is activated. You can use logical operators to combine conditions as you need. As condition parameters you can use any real-time value, including host state, quality, packet loss, latency, jitter and other values **Pic 2**.

Set up a alert yo	Alert a specific condition to monitor certain characteristics of the host and u when their value indicates a problem.	
General	Advanced	
The name understan	and condition you provide should be specific enough to allow you to d the reason of the problem. The comment could be useful in complex	easily cases.
Name:	Unstable connection	
Comment:		
Condition		
And Qua Pac	ality ⊭ Good ket Loss > 10	

Pic 2. Configuring alert condition

For each alert you can specify its severity, so when multiple alerts are reported you can sort and filter them by severity. It is also possible create already acknowledged alert for a specified period of time and assign a notification for the alert **Pic 3**.

J
nces.
~
÷,
may

Pic 3. Configuring alert options

You can assign one or multiple e-mail notifications for an alert. To assign you need to select the alert in the list and choose **New** and **E-Mail Message** in the context menu. In the appeared dialog you can specify custom e-mail recipients, if required, otherwise the program will use a list of recipients specified on the **Recipients** page of preferences. On the **Advanced** tab of the dialog you can override the global notification configuration that is specified on the **Notification Time** page of the program preferences.

With EMCO Ping Monitor, it is possible not only to set a common **Notifications** configuration, but also to provide a specific configuration for each host individually. See the **Overriding Common Settings** part of this document for details.

Balloons and Sounds

The program allows you to play sound notifications and show Windows Tray balloons on alerts and events. On the **Balloons and Sounds** page of preferences you can configure notification settings. Note that sounds and balloons notifications are client-specific, so each client may have its own settings and the settings of one client aren't applied to other clients.

You can enable balloons and sounds notifications for alerts and events configured on the Alerts and **Notifications** page in preferences. Alerts and events configured there are displayed in the list, so you can use checkboxes to enable balloons and sounds assigned to them **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. Balloons and Sounds notifications

Sound notifications can be edited to configure sounds that should be played on occurred and on resolved cases. On the **Advanced** tab of the displayed dialog you can specify custom notification settings, including timeout, number of iterations and interval between the iterations as well as date and time range when notifications can be activated **Pic 2**.

Edit Sound X
Configure Sound Set up the sound notification to be played when the 'On Alert' event occurs for a monitored host.
General Advanced
Override the acceptable hours, initial delay, maximum number and interval of the notifications sent by the program.
Override configuration Reset to common
Define if this sound notification should be triggered after a specific timeout and indicate the number of recurring notifications, if required, and the interval between occurrences[ignored by the alert-resolved notification].
Timeout (min): 0 🗘 Iterations: 1 🗸 Interval (sec): 10 🗸
Choose if you would not like to be disturbed with this during certain time intervals. Then the notification start will be delayed till an acceptable time.
Trigger this notification only during the following hours
🖉 Sun 🖉 Mon 🖉 Tue 📝 Wed 🗭 Thu 🖉 Fri 🖉 Sat
From: 9:00 AM 🗸 Till: 6:00 PM 🗸
Apply Cancel

Pic 2. Sound notification settings

You can specify custom notification settings by overriding global settings configured on the **Notification Time** page of preferences.

Notification Mail Templates

Mail Templates are used to form e-mail messages sent by Ping Monitor. They can be configured on the **Mail Templates** preference page **Pic 1**. To access this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the appropriate link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the Alerts and Events group.

Preferences			×
Monitoring	~	Notification Mail Templates	
Alerts and Events	^	Here you can review and edit the templates used by Ping Monitor to form the e-mail message subject and body. Template Content For each template you can customize e-mail message subject and body. The Template description shows the use case for the Template chosen	ge te
Notification Mail Templates		Choose Template to edit: Notification On Alert	
Notification Time		A message based on this template is sent to notify the user of alert activation for a host.	
General	~	Subject: %RUNNING_PRODUCT%: %REMOTE_HOST%' - %ALERT_SEVERITY% alert	
	-	Message header:	
Miscellaneous	\sim	<h1 style="color:#00589C;font-family:Arial; font-size:12pt; font-weight:bold;
margin-top:0px; margin-bottom: 4px;">%REMOTE_HOST% - %ALERT_SEVERITY%</h1>	\$
		Message body:	
		<pre><pre><pre><pre><pre><pre><pre><pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre></pre>	< >
		Message footer:	
		<pre><hr style="margin-bottom:0px"/> This message was</pre>	~ >
		Show placeholders that can be used in this template Learn more about Mail Templates	
		Restore Defaults Apply	
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel	

Pic 1. Configuring Mail Templates

On this page, you are offered to choose a template that you want to review and edit. The template description shows you the use case of the chosen template, and if there are placeholders available for this template, a link to a detailed placeholders description is shown under the template description. For a selected template you can see a text that should be used in e-mail subject, body, header and footer. You can edit it if required.

Notification Time

In the Notification Time page of preferences you can configure notification options and acceptable times and hours for notifications Pic 1. These settings are applied by default for custom actions, e-mail notifications, sound notifications and balloons. You can override these default settings and set custom settings in each notification, if required.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	~	Notification Time
Alerts and Events Alerts and Notifications Balloons and Sounds Notification Mail Templates Notification Time	^	Ping Monitor allows you to configure the acceptable hours and timings for your notifications. Those could be overridden later according to the exact usage specifics. Notifications Time Configuration Define if notifications should be triggered after a specific timeout and indicate the number of recurring notifications, if required, and the interval between occurrences(ignored by the alert-resolved notification). Timeout (min): 0 0 Iterations: 1 V Interval (sec):
General	~	Choose if you would not like to be disturbed with this during certain time intervals. Then the notification start will be delayed till an acceptable time.
Miscellaneous	~	V Sun V Mon V Tue V Wed V Thu V Fri V Sat From: 9:00 AM V Till: 6:00 PM V
		Restore Defaults Apply
Partora Dafaultr		
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Notification time settings

Notification time configuration allows you to specify a timeout for a notification, so the program will send the notification with a time shift. For example, you can set a 5 minutes timeout, so the program will send you an e-mail notification after 5 minutes, since the alert is detected. If the alert is shorter than 5 minutes the program doesn't send a notification. In the configuration you can also specify a number of iterations and interval between iterations. If a number of iterations is greater than one, the program will send you repetitive notifications until an alert is ended.

If you want to be notified at specific days of the week and at a specific time, you can configure date and time range. Notifications will be not sent at the time out of the configured range.

General Part

The General part of the program preferences should be used to configure reports, custom fields and external tools. To open the **Preferences** dialog, click the **Preferences** button available in the **Application Menu**. Configure the available settings to suit your needs best.

Recipients

On the **Recipients** page of preferences you can specify recipients of e-mail notifications sent by the program. You can specify To, Cc and Bcc fields **Pic 1**. If you need to specify multiple recipients in the same field, you can separate e-mail addresses by a semicolon.

Preferences			×
Monitoring	~	Recipients	_
Alerts and Events	~	Ping Monitor allows you to configure the default set of recipients for all the e-mail notifications and reports it sends. Those could be overridden later according to the exact usage specifics.	
General Recipients Custom Fields Reports Storage Report Mail Templates External Tools Miscellaneous	~	Recipients Configuration Specify the default mail recipients for e-mail messages sent by the program. Bcc is a useful way to let others see an e-mail you sent without the main recipient's knowing. To: Cc Bcc:	
		Apply	
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel	

Pic 1. Recipients configuration

Recipients specified in preferences are used by default for all e-mail notifications in the program. You can override them and specify custom recipients for e-mail configuration of alerts and events. You can also configure custom recipients for a specific host or a group.

Custom Fields

The custom fields are additional host properties that are defined by end users. You can use the values defined for those properties in the notifications by specifying the custom field name in the pair of '%' signs, e.g. %CUSTOMER_NAME%. The set of available custom fields is specified on the **Custom Fields** preferences page **Pic 1**. To access this preference page, press the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the **Custom Fields** link in the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences							×
Monitoring	^	^	Custom Fields				
Monitor Settings Connection Quality Performance Monitoring Statistics Gateway Options Intervals			Ping Monitor allows you to spe monitored Hosts, which can the Fields Provide a set of custom Host can be specified du actions and e-mail mess	cify a set o in be inclu ields for H iring Host ages, the f	of custom fields to define ad uded into notifications by me Hosts. As soon as provided, t t configuration. When used a field names are replaced with	ditional properties f ans of placeholder he field value for ea ss placeholders for h provided values.	or s.
Automation			Name:		Value:		
Latency Measurement						Add	
			Name	*	Value	Delet	e
Alerts and Notifications Balloons and Sounds Notification Mail Templates Notification Time			COSTONECTIONE				
General							
Recipients <u>Custom Fields</u> Reports Storage Reports Customization Report Mail Templates External Tools							
CATCHINE LOOIS			Learn more about custo	m fields			
Miscellaneous	^	~				Appl	y
Restore Defaults						DK Cance	el

Pic 1. Providing custom fields

To add a new field, just type its name to the **Name** edit box and press the **Add** button. You can configure also a value for a field by specifying it in the **Value** edit box. As the result all hosts in the program will have the specified value. You can override the value and specify a custom one for a host or for a group of hosts. If you want to delete any field, select it in the list and press the **Delete** button. The field will be deleted and the **Field Name** input will filled with its name.

Reports Storage

Ping Monitor allows you to save performance and availability reports to the reports storage. This storage can be located either locally or on an FTP server. The report storage is configured on the **Reports Storage** preference page **Pic 1**. To reach this page, you should open the program preferences using the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu**, and click the **Reports Storage** link in the navigation bar on the left of the Preferences dialog within the **Events and Statistics** group.

Preferences		>
Monitoring	~	Reports Storage
Alerts and Events	~	Ping Monitor can save monitoring statistics reports to either a local or remote storage. Here you can configure the common settings used for storing reports. Reports
General	^	Choose whether the monitoring statistics reports should be stored locally or uploaded to the specified FTP server.
Recipients Custom Fields		Save reports to the local storage Specify a path to the folder to be used as a storage for saving the monitoring statistics reports to.
Reports Storage		Storage Location: C:\Users\Public\Documents\EMCO\Ping Monitor ···
Reports Customization Report Mail Templates		O Upload reports to the specified storage on the FTP server
External Tools		Specify the FTP server host settings, the root directory of the reports storage on th server and the credentials to be used for connection.
<i>"</i>		FTP Server: Encryption: None V Port:
Miscellaneous	~	Remote Dir:
		User Name: Password:
		Test connection settings
		Learn more about Reports Storage
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring reports storage

Firstly, you should decide if you would like the reports to be stored in a local storage or uploaded to an FTP server. The **Save reports to the local storage** radio button should be checked for using the local storage, and the **Upload reports to the specified storage on the FTP server** – for uploading reports to the server. For the local storage, you can specify a path to the folder to be used for saving reports to in the **Storage Location** field. It is possible to provide the path manually or pick it from the file system browser, using the button on the right of the editor. The FTP configuration is slightly more complex. The server address should be provided to the **FTP Server** field. You can use both the host name and the IP address for specification. The next step is to choose if the connection should be encrypted in the **Encryption** field. In case the server is using a custom port for files transfer, you should provide the port number to the **Port** field. The **Remote Dir** field is used to specify the location on the FTP server to upload files to. The credentials for accessing the server are provider to the Username and the **Password** fields respectively. After the settings are provided, you can check if the program is able to access the server using the **Test connection settings** hyperlink.

The report storage settings defined in a program preferences are used by default for all generic and preconfigured reports when generating a file report output. For the preconfigured reports, the settings can be overridden for a specific report during the outputs configuration.

Reports Customization

Ping Monitor enables you to customize the header and the footer of the PDF, HTML and MHT reports generated by the program. The configuration options are available on the **Reports Customization** preference page. To reach the **Reports Customization** page, you should open the program preferences using the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and click the **Reports Customization** link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the **Events** and **Statistics** group.



Pic 1. Reports customization

For the report header, you can choose if you would like a custom image to be displayed in the right top corner instead of the EMCO Software logo, and for the footer, you can define a text template. At the bottom of the page, you can see the preview for the header and the footer of a report generated using the defined settings.

To use a custom image, you should use the button of the picture edit. To reach the best rendering results when printing reports, it is recommended that a 125x55 px. 100 DPI image be provided. Smaller images will be centered in the logo area and lager ones will be scaled down to fit

the logo area. If you would like to revert to the default header image, you can use the \bowtie button of the edit.

The report footer template is provided to the **Report Footer** field. When providing a template, you can use placeholders that are replaced with actual values during the report generation. Refer to the Report Footer Placeholders section of the document.

Report Mail Templates

Report Mail Templates are used to form e-mail reports sent by Ping Monitor. They can be configured on the **Report Mail Templates** preference page **Pic 1**. To access this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the appropriate link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the Alerts and Events group.



Pic 1. Configuring Report Mail Templates

On this page, you are offered to choose a template that you want to review and edit. The template description shows you the use case of the chosen template, and if there are placeholders available for this template, a link to a detailed placeholders description is shown under the template description. For a selected template you can see a text that should be used in e-mail subject, body, header and footer. You can edit it if required.

External Tools

EMCO Ping Monitor comes with a built-in feature of launching external tools for hosts selected in the **Hosts** view. A set of available tools is provided on the **External Tools** preference page **Pic 1**. You can reach this page by choosing the **Configure External Tools** menu item from the **External Tools** menu on the host or clicking the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and selecting the **External Tools** link on the navigation bar on the left in the opened dialog.

Preferences		×
Monitoring V	External Tools	
Alerts and Events	Ping Monitor comes with a built-in feature of launching external tools for hosts selected in the 'Hosts' view. Here you can configure a set of available commands. Tools	
General A	Provide a set of commands for operating hosts that should be added as items to the 'External Tools' menu in the 'Hosts' view.	
Recipients	Add Tool 🔺 💙 🥒 🗙 🗟 😁	1
Custom Fields	# 🔺 Name Command	
Reports Storage	1 Show in Web Browser http://%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%/	
Reports Customization	2 Open Remote Desktop mstsc /v:%REMOTE HOST ADDRESS%	
Report Mail Templates	3 Console Ping cmd.exe /K ping %REMOTE HOST ADDRE	
External Tools	4 Console Trace Route cmd.exe /K tracert %REMOTE HOST ADD	
Miscellaneous 🗸		
	Learn more about using external tools	
	Apply	
Restore Defaults	OK Cancel	

Pic 1. Providing external tools

Ping Monitor is shipped with several predefined tools. You cannot change the command for those tools, but can rename them, if required. Also you can disable any or all of those tools if not found useful. It is possible to create your own commands. Just press the **Add Tool** button and proceed with the required configuration **Pic 2**.

'Open Shar	e' - Add Tool X
Configure External Tool Specify the name of the external tool to be displayed in the menu and provide a command to launch it.	
Name:	Open Share
Command:	\\%REMOTE_HOST_ADDRESS%
	Enable this tool thus displaying it in the 'External Tools' menu
	Add Cancel

Pic 2. Creating a user-defined external tool

When configuring a tool, you can provide a name to be displayed in the pop-up menu and the command to be launched when the menu is clicked. You can use custom fields and other common placeholders when specifying the command.

The commands order in the menu is controlled via the **Move Up** and **Move Down** buttons. To edit the command, use the **Edit** button, and the **Delete** button should be used to delete the selected external tools.

Miscellaneous Part

The **Miscellaneous** part of the program preferences should be used to configure the common Ping Monitor options, such as the program behavior in respect to the System Tray, the proxy settings to be used to connect to the Internet, etc. To open the **Preferences** dialog, click the **Preferences** button available from the **Application Menu**. Configure the available settings to best suit your needs.
General Settings

Ping Monitor can automatically check for updates for you to always have the latest version of the program and can be added to the Windows startup. You can configure this features from the **General Settings** preference page. To open this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the **General Settings** link in the navigation bar on the left in the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group **Pic 1**.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	General Settings	
Alerts and Events	Here you can configure the most common Ping Monitor settings pertinent to the genera functionality that does not relate to the business aspect of the program. Update	il
General	Choose if you want the program to automatically check for updates. Enabling the options allows you to always have an up-to-date version of the program.	is
<i></i>	Automatically check for updates: Daily	~
Miscellaneous General Settings E-mail Options Program Database Server Configuration Proxy Settings Log Configuration System Tray	The major update is an update to a brand-new version of the program, which in a number of significant changes. It is installed alongside your currently used very which allows you to evaluate the new version while working with the existing of a standard constraint of the program may display warnings and hints whereas you can choose if you would be ach one to be shown again. You can reset all the remembered decisions to defaults so that all the warnings and hints are shown. Reset All Remembered Decisions Restore Defaults	Iudes ion, ie. ald that
Restore Defaults	OK Can	cel

Pic 1. Configuring general settings

Ping Monitor can check for updates automatically every day or once a week. To enable an automatic checking for updates, check the **Automatically check for updates** option and choose the checking frequency between **Daily** and **Weekly**. You can also define if the program should check for major updates by changing the **Automatically check for major updates** option value.

0

If you use a proxy server to connect to the Internet and the required proxy settings are not provided, an automatic check for updates will not take place.

If you want Ping Monitor to be automatically started right after you are logged on to the underlying operating system, enable the **Launch at Windows startup** option.

E-mail Options

Ping Monitor can send notification e-mails only after your mailbox settings have been configured properly. To perform the mailbox configuration click the Preferences button from the **Application Menu** and select the **E-mail Options** link in the navigation bar on the left in the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group. The opened dialog displays the configured mail server and its options **Pic 1**.

Preferences		>	×
Monitoring	~	E-mail Options	
Alerts and Events	~	Ping Monitor sends e-mail messages using the mailbox and its configuration specified here. Contact your system administrator to get proper mailbox options.	
General	~	Mailbox Configuration Choose a mail server provider and configure the necessary settings. You can specify a custom SMTP server or link an external mail service to send e-mails.	
		Mail Server Provider: None	
Miscellaneous General Settings <u>E-mail Options</u> Program Database Server Configuration Proxy Settings Log Configuration System Tray	^	Learn more about E-n Google Outlook	
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel	



EMCO Ping Monitor 9

If the **Mail Server Provider** is set to None, it indicates that emails are disabled. To enable email notifications, select either Custom SMTP or one of the available mail providers. If your mail server is listed in the **Mail Server Provider** selection, you can choose it. These servers provide OAuth authentication, so you don't need to configure any low-level mail settings. Simply click the **Sign in** link under the **Account** edit box and follow the instructions in the browser to authorize the program to use your email account. Once authorized, the program will use your account to send emails **Pic 2**. If you wish to stop using your account, click the **Sign out** link.

Preferences						×
Monitoring	~	E-mail Opt	tions			
Alerts and Events	~	Ping Monitor sends of Contact your system Mailbox Configuratio	e-mail messages using the mailb administrator to get proper mail on	ox and its box optior	configuration specified	J here.
General	~	Choose a mai custom SMTP	I server provider and configure t server or link an external mail se	he necessa rvice to se	ary settings. You can sp nd e-mails.	ecify a
AD.		Mail Server Pr	ovider: Google			~
Miscellaneous	^	Sign in to the your behalf.	chosen mail service, and author	rize this ap	plication to send e-ma	ils on
General Settings		Account:	[alexdelorianemco@gmail.com]			
E-mail Options			Sign in with Google Sign out			
Program Database Server Configuration		Specify the e-	mail addresses, sender name, an	d choose	the e-mail message for	mat.
Proxy Settings		From E-mail:	o alexdelorianemco@gmail.	Name:	Alex Delorian	
Log Configuration		Reply E-mail:	admin@dreamlight.org	Format:	HTML	~
System ridy		Send the e-m	ail to test the provided settings			
		Learn more al	bout E-mail Options			
					A	pply
Restore Defaults					ОК Са	ancel

Pic 2. Mail provider selection

If your mail server is not listed in the **Mail Server Provider** selection, you can choose the Custom SMTP option and manually configure all settings **Pic 3**. This method may require you to authenticate using a username and password. Please note that some mail servers often need additional steps to enable password authentication, and you might also need to create a unique password for each external program.

Ping Monitor supports mail servers that run using SMTP. A mail server configuration may be quite complex. Contact your system administrator to get proper configuration details to be used for accessing your mailbox.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	~	E-mail Options
Alerts and Events	~	Ping Monitor sends e-mail messages using the mailbox and its configuration specified here. Contact your system administrator to get proper mailbox options. Mailbox Configuration
General	~	Choose a mail server provider and configure the necessary settings. You can specify a custom SMTP server or link an external mail service to send e-mails.
Miscellaneous	^	Specify the SMTP server settings, including the server address (hostname or IP), port, encryption type, and login credentials.
General Settings		SMTP Server: mail.dreamlight.org Encryption: SSL/TLS V Port: 587
E-mail Options		Mail server requires authentication
Server Configuration		User Name: Alex Delorian Password: •••••
Proxy Settings		Specify the e-mail addresses, sender name, and choose the e-mail message format.
Log Configuration		From E-mail: alexdelorianemco@gmail.cc Name: Alex Delorian
System Huy		Reply E-mail: admin@dreamlight.org Format: HTML 🗸
		Send the e-mail to test the provided settings
		Learn more about E-mail Options
		heat
		Арріу
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 3. Specifying Custom SMTP settings

You should specify the mail server host, the encryption type the port to be used for connection to the mail server, the e-mail address to send e-mail messages from, the e-mail message format and the credentials to be used to access the mail server.

Although Ping Monitor supports both explicit and implicit SSL/TLS encryption, it is strongly recommended that explicit SSL/TLS be preferred due to its optimized performance and security. Thus, implicit SSL/TLS should only be used for compatibility with servers that do not support explicit SSL/TLS.

The **SMTP Server** value can be provided both as an IP address and as a host name.

You can send a test e-mail to check the settings provided using an appropriate hyperlink. In the next section, it is described how the settings test works and how you can tell if the e-mail options are configured properly.

How does the test work?

After you have configured the e-mail options you can send a test e-mail to check the mail server settings. A test message is generated and sent to the e-mail address specified in the **From E-mail** field. Note that if you configure e-mail settings in the Initial Initialization Wizard during the first start of the program, test e-mails will also be sent to all recipient e-mail addresses you have specified. If

you receive the test message, it is assumed that the mail options are configured properly, and there will be no problems with sending notification e-mail messages.

Program Database

The program database is a storage used by Ping Monitor to keep all business data and logged events. The program database configuration can be changed on the **Program Database** preference page. To access this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the corresponding link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group.

By default, Ping Monitor uses the SQLite database management system to store the data within the common application data folder. Using this concept as default, allows you to start using the program without performing additional data storage configuration. The program also supports the Microsoft SQL Server database management system. You can choose the database engine to be used within the **Database Management System** drop-down list.

Destaurances		×	,
Preferences		^	•
Monitoring	~	Program Database	
Alerts and Events	~	The program database is a storage used to keep all the business data created and gathered by the program. The database also contains the logger catalog that stores the program events.	
General	~	Database Configuration Choose and configure the database management system you would like to use for storing the program data.	
Miscellaneous		Database Management System: SQLite]
war iniscentificous		Choose the location of the Ping Monitor database files.	
General Settings		Common Application Data Folder	
E-mail Options		O Custom Folder:	
Program Database Server Configuration		Location Preview: C:\ProgramData\EMCO\Ping Monitor\v9\Database]
Proxy Settings Log Configuration		While choosing the program database location, be aware of the fact that the concurrent access to the database is not supported by Ping Monitor.	1
System Tray		How to choose the database location?	1
		Apply	
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel	

Pic 1. Configuring the SQLite database

For the SQLite database, you can choose a new database location Pic 1. You can either choose the predefined database location or provide a path to the database files manually. While choosing the program database location, be aware of the fact that the concurrent access to the database is

not supported by Ping Monitor. Please also take into account that full access to the database location folder should be granted to the program for it to operate correctly.

Although the SQLite database is preconfigured and set by default, it is recommended to use the Microsoft SQL Server database if you are going to operate in an enterprise environment, because it provides you with a much higher performance and reliability **Pic 2**.

Preferences							×
Monitoring	~	Pro	gram Da	atabase			
Alerts and Events	~	The pr by the events	ogram database program. The d	e is a storage used latabase also cont	d to keep all the busin tains the logger catalo	ess data created ar g that stores the p	nd gathered rogram
		Datab	ase Configuratio	on			
General	~		Choose and co storing the pro	onfigure the datat gram data.	base management syst	em you would like	to use for
		-	Database Man	agement System:	Microsoft SQL Server		¥
Miscellaneous	^		Specify the inst choose wheth	tance name or ne er the SQL Server (twork address of the S or the Windows authe	QL Server to conne ntication should b	e used.
General Settings			Server Name:	dbms\EMCO			
Program Database			Windows A	uthentication			
Server Configuration			O SQL Server	Authentication			
Proxy Settings			User Name:		Passwo	ord:	
Log Configuration			Test connectio	n settings			
System Tray			Specify the dat	abase to be used or select the data	as the program datab base from those availa	ase. You can either	use default d server.
			Use a defai	ult name for the p	orogram database		
			Name:	Ping Monitor 9			111
			While cho access to	oosing the progra the database is n	im databases, be awar ot supported by Ping N	e of the fact that th Monitor.	e concurrent
						[Apply
Restore Defaults						ОК	Cancel

Pic 2. Configuring the Microsoft SQL Server database

While choosing the Microsoft SQL Server database to be used by Ping Monitor, you should provide the database server name to the **Server Name** field and configure the authentication options. You can choose between **Windows Authentication** and **SQL Server Authentication**. It is strongly recommended by Microsoft that integrated security via **Windows Authentication** be preferred. As soon as you have completed this configuration step, you can press the **Test Connection Settings** hyperlink to check if the database server is accessible.

The next step is choosing the database to store data in. You can either use the default configuration or define the required database manually. When choosing a database from those available on the server, it is also possible to create a new one with default settings having provided its name.

When you apply changes to the program database configuration, the program checks the provided settings for validity. If the specified database is empty, you are proposed to fill it with the data available in the database currently used by the program. This feature allows you to switch to the Microsoft SQL Server database from the SQLite database you are using easily and at any time. Besides, if the server restart is required for the applied changes to take effect, you are immediately prompted to restart the server.

Server Configuration

EMCO Ping Monitor server allows connection from both local and remote clients, including those from other Windows domains and those reachable through the Internet only. When connecting to the EMCO Ping Monitor server using the windows credentials of the session run by the client, the integrated security is used for authentication and communication processes. In a cross-domain case, the client is authenticated to the server using the specified windows credentials, and the server is authenticated with the help of a domain identification certificate enabling communication over a secure socket layer of a TCP channel. This process can be configured on the **Connection Options** preference page **Pic 1**. This page is also used to enable the e-mail notifications on issues with the server, if required. To open the **Server Configuration** page, click the Preferences button in the Application Menu and press the corresponding link in the navigation bar on the left of the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	~	Server Configuration
Alerts and Events	~	EMCO Ping Monitor is a client-server application, thus allowing to operate with no logged-on user session required. Here you can configure the server-specific settings.
General	~	If enabled, EMCO Ping Monitor can send an e-mail notification message to the administrator in case of any issues with the server part of the application.
Miscellaneous	^	Administrator E-mail:
General Settings E-mail Options Program Database		Connection Security When connecting to EMCO Ping Monitor server over the Internet, the integrated windows security cannot be used, thus the SSL is used to secure the connection process. Here you can choose the SSL certificate from those available on the server host to be used for server authentication.
Proxy Settings Log Configuration		Certificate: [Default Authentication Certificate]
System I ray		
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Specifying Server Configuration

If enabled, the server part of Ping Monitor can send e-mail notification messages to the administrator in case of any issues with the server. If you are interested in such notifications, just check the corresponding checkbox and provide the administrator e-mail address to the **Administrator E-mail** field.

By default, the server uses a self-signed custom certificate issued to PingMonitorServer.exe, thus there is actually no identification of the server host. It is possible to accept this certificate when

connecting to the server; however, it is strongly recommended to use a certificate that actually identifies the server. Such a certificate should be issued to the specific server host by a certification authority trusted in your organization.

For a digital certificate to be used by Ping Monitor for authenticating the server, the following set of requirements must be met:

- 1. The certificate must include the **Server Authentication (1.3.6.1.5.5.7.3.1)** within its Intended Purpose.
- 2. The certificate's **Valid From** date must be earlier and the **Valid To** date must be later than the connection date.
- 3. The digital certificate must be placed in the **Local Computer** certificates storage.
- 4. The private key must be available together with the signing certificate in the certificates storage. In case you have a private key in a separate file, please use the tool provided by Microsoft for preparing a private & public key pair to be imported into the certificates storage as described here: Pvk2Pfx, Combine PVK + SPC to PFX.

To choose a certificate, you should use the **Select Certificate** button in the **Certificate** field. A dialog will be displayed showing you the server authentication certificates available on the PC hosting the service. You can review detailed information on each of the available certificates using the **View Certificate** button. The same button is also available in the **Certificate** field when a server authentication certificate is already selected. The **Reset Certificate** button in the **Certificate** field should be used to discard the selected certificate and use the default one.

To start using the selected certificate for securing communication, it is required to restart the server. The program will notify you of it and prompt for an immediate server restart.

Proxy Settings

Ping Monitor requires an Internet connection to support the **Live Update** and **Feedback** features, as well as be able to upload reports to an FPT server. Therefore, if a proxy server has to be used to connect to the Internet, it should be configured on the **Proxy Settings** preference page **Pic 1**. To access this page, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and select the appropriate link in the navigation bar on the left in the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group.

Preferences		X
Monitoring	~ P	Proxy Settings
Alerts and Events	→ Ar ar fo	n Internet connection is required by the Ping Monitor client requires to check for updates nd by the server to upload reports to FTP. Here you can specify the proxy settings to be used or Internet access.
General	~ [onfigure Proxy For the client settings, you can choose between automatic detection and manual specification of the proxy configuration. The automatic detection means that the settings predefined in the Internet Explorer are used.
Miscellaneous	^	Client Server
General Settings E-mail Options Program Database Server Configuration <u>Proxy Settings</u> Log Configuration System Tray		Specify the proxy configuration to be used by the client to access the Internet: Auto-detect proxy settings Direct connection to the Internet Manual proxy configuration Address: Port 8080 The network can be configured so that the proxy server would require authentication to connect to the Internet. Here you can specify the username, password and authentication type. Proxy server requires authentication User Name: Password: Test connection to the Internet
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Proxy Settings

On this page, you can configure client and server proxy settings. The client settings are used when checking for updates and providing feedback, the server settings are applied when uploading reports to an FTP server. For the client settings, you may choose among three variants of the proxy configuration. If **Auto-detect proxy settings** is chosen, the program uses the settings predefined in the **Internet Explorer**. If Ping Monitor does not have to use a proxy server to connect to the Internet, the **Direct connection to the Internet** option should be chosen. The **Manual proxy configuration** option allows you to provide the proxy server address and port manually.

Both for the automatic detection and manual configuration, it is possible to specify if the proxy server requires authentication and what credentials should be used to connect to the proxy server. For the manual configuration, an NTLM authentication can be used (i.e. connection to the proxy

server takes place using the credentials of the user currently logged on) by enabling the **Use NTLM authentication** option.

As for the server settings Pic 2, the configuration process is the same. The difference is only that it is not possible for the server side to detect proxy settings automatically and use NTLM authentication.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	~	Proxy Settings
Alerts and Events	~	An Internet connection is required by the Ping Monitor client requires to check for updates and by the server to upload reports to FTP. Here you can specify the proxy settings to be used for Internet access.
General	~	Configure Proxy For the client settings, you can choose between automatic detection and manual specification of the proxy configuration. The automatic detection means that the settings predefined in the Internet Explorer are used.
Miscellaneous	^	Client Server
General Settings E-mail Options Program Database Server Configuration <u>Proxy Settings</u> Log Configuration System Tray		Specify the proxy configuration to be used by the server to access the Internet: Direct connection to the Internet Manual proxy configuration Address: Port 8080 The network can be configured so that the proxy server would require authentication to connect to the Internet. Here you can specify the username, password and authentication type. Proxy server requires authentication User Name: Password: Test connection to the Internet
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 2. Server proxy settings

After the proxy settings have been configured, it is possible to test if the Internet connection is available by using the corresponding hyperlink on the bottom of the settings page.

Log Configuration

To configure the **Log** behavior, click the Preferences button from the **Application Menu** and switch to the Log Configuration preference page using the appropriate link in the navigation bar on the left in the Preferences dialog within the Miscellaneous group. Here, you can specify the logged events auto-removal options **Pic 1**.

Preferences			×
Monitorin	ng 🗸	Log Configuration	
Alerts and	d Events 🗸 🗸	The log is designed to store information on the events taking place while the program is running. Auto Remove Options	
General	~	Specify if the events should be automatically removed from the log and choose the condition to be used for removing events.	
100 m		Auto remove events: Older than a week	~
General Settin E-mail Option Program Data Server Config Proxy Settings Log Configura System Tray	ngs s base uration s ation	Restore Defaults	
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel	
	-		

Pic 1. The log configuration

Ping Monitor gives you an option of an automatical removal of logged events from its database. The maximum event age can be specified by the **Auto remove events** option. Choose **Do not remove events** if you do not want any events to be removed automatically. Anyway, it is always possible to remove logged events by clearing log manually.

System Tray

The Tray icon provides a quick access to some of the program functionality and serves to notify you of any significant changes taking place while the program is running when the main program window is minimized or hidden behind other windows. To configure the program behavior regarding the **System Tray**, click the **Preferences** button from the **Application Menu** and switch to the **System Tray** preference page using the corresponding link on the navigation bar to the left in the **Preferences** dialog within the **Miscellaneous** group **Pic 1**.

Preferences		×
Monitoring	~	System Tray
Alerts and Events	~	The Tray icon provides a quick access to some program functionality and serves to notify you about any significant changes taking place while the program is running when the main program window is minimized or hidden behind other windows.
General	~	Program Specify if the program main window should be minimized immediately after the program is started.
Miscellaneous	^	Tray Icon
General Settings E-mail Options Program Database Server Configuration Proxy Settings Log Configuration <u>System Tray</u>		Specify if the program icon should be shown in the tray and configure the program System Tray behavior. ✓ Show program icon in System Tray Hide when minimized Restore program from System Tray with a single click
		Restore Defaults Apply
Restore Defaults		OK Cancel

Pic 1. Configuring the System Tray behavior

If you prefer the program main window to be minimized during the program start, you should check the **Minimize on startup** option.

The **Show program icon in System Tray** option allows you to choose if the program icon should be shown in the tray. If it is enabled, you may also specify if the program should be hidden from the Windows taskbar when it is minimized to System Tray, and if the main window should be restored from the tray with a single or double click.

Chapter 11: Evaluation of the Program

Ping Monitor is a shareware product, so you can try it before ordering a license. The download includes a free 30-days trial of the Enterprise edition of the program. It provides access to all the available features. After the trial expires, the program reverts to the Free edition, and you can keep using it as long as you like. You can order a license for a commercial edition of the program to register it and use the program's commercial features.

This chapter will cover the particularities of the evaluation mode, tell you how and where you can get the license code and how you can request the extended evaluation. Read this chapter carefully to face no difficulties during the EMCO Ping Monitor evaluation.

Evaluation Wizard

As long as the EMCO Ping Monitor is not activated on each program startup the **Evaluation Wizard Pic 1** is displayed on the screen, showing you the information about the evaluation process and providing with quick links for the program activation, purchase and extended evaluation request.

EMCO Ping Mor	nitor Enterprise - 30 Days Evaluation	×
Welcon	ne to EMCO Ping Monitor Enterprise	
This is an continue	evaluation copy of the program that can be legally used for 30 days. Choose from the available options to or press Exit to close the program.	
	Evaluate (30 days left) Continue the program evaluation. You can use this program as long as the evaluation period does not expire to get a closer introduction to its main features.	
R	Enter License Code Activate this copy of the program. The License Code is sent to you via e-mail after you have purchased the product license, or your evaluation extension request has been approved.	
ď	Request Extended Evaluation Send a request for the Extended License to EMCO Software. The evaluation period will be increased to continue getting familiarized with the program.	
	Buy Now Visit the EMCO Software online shop to purchase the License for the product online. The online ordering process is fast, easy and fully secure.	
Help me o View Licer	thoose nse Agreement	
	Close	

Pic 1. The EMCO Ping Monitor Evaluation Wizard welcome page

The welcome page of the **Evaluation Wizard** allows you to choose between four options to continue. Those are **Evaluate**, **Enter License Code**, **Request extended evaluation** and **Buy now**. Optionally you can press **Exit** button to close the program. In this section we will help you to choose the option that will best fit your needs.

The **Evaluate** option shows you the time left until the evaluation period expires. You should choose this option to continue the evaluation process – the wizard will be closed and you can start working with Ping Monitor. You can use the program as long as the evaluation period does not expire to get a closer introduction to its main features.

It you have already purchased the license for using the EMCO Ping Monitor you should choose the **Enter License Code** option to activate the program. This options also should be chosen if the extended evaluation request has been approved by EMCO Software and you have been provided with the Extended License. If you are having problems with finding the License Code refer to the Where can I get my License Code? section of this document. After choosing the **Enter License Code** option the program activation page is displayed on the screen **Pic 2**.

Enter Licens	e Code						
Copy and paste	the License Code	to the field below	to activate the	program:			
							^
							\sim
Where can I get	my License Code?						
					< Back	Activate	Close

Pic 2. Activating EMCO Ping Monitor

To activate EMCO Ping Monitor copy and paste the License Code to the input field on this page and press **Activate**.

If the evaluation period has expired and you are not sure you have fully introduced yourself to EMCO Ping Monitor main features you can once request the extended evaluation. As soon as the request is processed by EMCO Software you are provided with the Extended License to prolong the evaluation period. To request the Extended License you should choose the **Request extended evaluation** option. After choosing this option the request form will appear on the screen **Pic 3**.

Name:	Company:
Alex Delorian	Dreamlight LLC
E-mail:	
alex@dreamlight.org	
Comment	

Pic 3. Requesting an extended evaluation

To request the Extended License fill the fields on the request form regarding the recommendations and press the **Send Request** button.

The **Evaluation Wizard** also provides you with the short cut action that allows you to visit EMCO Software web store. To use this feature choose the **Buy Now** option. The on-line ordering process is fast, easy, and fully secure.

Where can I get my License Code?

After you have purchased the license for using EMCO Ping Monitor our experts will generate the License Code and send it to you via e-mail to the address you have specified during the purchasing process. You are supposed to receive two e-mail messages – one with the License Code written in the message body and one with the attached text file (license.txt), containing the license. It is your choice to use any message because both License Codes are identical.

To activate the program the License Code received via e-mail should be copied and pasted to the program activation form **Pic 1**. This form can be reached using the **Enter License Code** button from the **Information** group on the Ribbon bar or by choosing the appropriate option in the **Evaluation Wizard**.

Enter Licence Code				
Enter License Code				
Copy and paste the License Code to	the field below to	activate the prog	ram:	
				^
				~
When one loop willing of data				
Where can I get my License Code?				

Pic 1. Activating EMCO Ping Monitor

To activate Ping Monitor, copy and paste the License Code to the input field and press Activate.

How should I formulate the Extended License request?

The Extended License is used to prolong the evaluation period to get a closer look at EMCO Ping Monitor. This feature can be reached by choosing the appropriate option in the **Evaluation Wizard**. Here we'll give you the recommendations on filling the **Request extended evaluation** form **Pic 1**.

Request extended evaluation	n		
nequest extended Evaluatio			
Fill in the fields below to request the additional requirements for the evalu	Extended License - the com	nment field is optional and can be us	ed to provide
Name:		ompany:	equested only one
Alex Delorian		Dreamlight LLC	
E-mail:			
alex@dreamlight.org			
Comment			
How should I formulate the Estande	d licence request?		

Pic 1. The Request Extended Evaluation form

In the **Request extended evaluation** form you should obligatory specify your name in the **Name** field, company name in the **Company** field and your e-mail address in the **E-mail** field.

Though the **Comment** field is optional it is strongly recommended to use this field for providing EMCO Software with the reason of requesting the Extended License. Please notice that EMCO Software reserves the right to decline the request without providing a requester with any explanations.

If the extended license request is approved by EMCO Software experts you'll receive the License Code to the e-mail address specified.

Chapter 12: Program Updates

EMCO Software cares for versatile needs of the users of EMCO programs and fully understands their wish to have the most up-to-date software installed on there PCs. That is why we provide you with an easy update feature. You do not need to browse the Internet again and again to find out if any updates are available – Ping Monitor will do this work for you. Checking for updates can be performed both manually and automatically. This chapter describes the Live Update process for the current major version of the program and the Major Update feature which allows you to get a brand new version of Ping Monitor quickly and easily.

Live Update

Ping Monitor can be easily updated with just a few clicks. The update process is performed via an Internet connection using preconfigured proxy settings.



Check for Updates

The **Check for Updates** button from the **Update** Ribbon group should be used to check for new versions of Ping Monitor.

Ping Monitor can check for updates automatically. You can configure the program behavior regarding the automatic check for updates on the **General Settings** preference page.

To check for updates, click the **Check for Updates** button from the **Application Menu** or from the **Update** group of the **Program** Ribbon page. Ping Monitor will check if any updates are available and if so, the **Live Update Wizard Pic 1** will appear on the screen.



Pic 1. The Live Update Wizard welcome page

The **Live Update Wizard** will introduce you to the changes made in the newer version and guide you through the whole updating process while showing the detailed download progress. When the download is finished, the program will be restarted to perform the actual update.

Major Update

Along with the **Live Update** feature, Ping Monitor comes with a built-in function of automatic checking for Major Updates. The Major Update is an update to a brand-new version of Ping Monitor that includes a number of significant changes.

You can install this version alongside the version you are using now. It will import the settings and data from your current version, so that you won't need to configure the new version in the same way you configured the one you are using at the moment. Such parallel installation allows you to inspect the new version and compare it with the previous one in your environment with your data and settings.

The Major Update is installed alongside the version you currently use. The existing version is not automatically uninstalled from your PC, and you can continue using the program version you are accustomed to while having a look at the brand new one.

If the program detects availability of a Major Update, the **Major Update Wizard Pic 1** will appear on the screen.

Major Update Wizard			×
	Welcom	ne to t	he Major Update Wizard
	The major upd which includes	ate is an ins s a number c	tallation of a brand-new version of the program, of significant changes.
	The new versio current version same way you parallel installa with the previo	n of the pro so that you configured t ation allows ous one in yo	ogram will import the settings and data from your u won't need to configure the new version in the the one you are using at the moment. Such you to inspect the new version and compare it our environment with your data and settings.
	() Yo at in	u are eligibl the upgrad the evaluati	le to purchase the new version or the program e price. Till purchased, the program will be run ion mode.
	R	tview the up	ograde prices
	Th ve Wi	e new versio rsion of the ill neither be orking with	on will be installed alongside the current program. The current version of the program modified nor uninstalled, so you may continue it while trying out the brand-new one.
@ emco	To proceed, pre	iss Next.	How to benefit from Major Update?
			< Back Next > Cancel

Pic 1. The Major Update Wizard welcome page

The **Major Update Wizard** will introduce you to the features available in the brand new version of Ping Monitor and guide you through the update process. The message displayed at the bottom of the welcome page will let you know if the current License allows you to install and use the Major Update for free. When the download is finished, the new version installation will be run automatically.

Chapter 13: Ping Monitor Client-Server Concept

Ping Monitor is shipped as a client-server application, thus allowing to perform hosts monitoring and generate regular reports with no logged-on user session required. The server part is represented with the **Ping Monitor Server 9** Windows service, and the client part is the program that is running in a user session.

The program allows multiple clients to connect to the server and work simultaneously with the same data. The number of connections depends on the used license. The Free edition of the program allows one connection only, the Professional edition allows two simultaneous connections, and the Enterprise edition doesn't limit the number of simultaneous connections.

The Enterprise edition of the program allows connecting to servers running on the local or remote computers. The Professional and Free editions can connect to a server running on the same computer only.

By default, the service is configured to start together with the underlying operating system, thus allowing you to start monitoring as soon as the hosting PC is up and running provided that the corresponding automation option is enabled (it is enabled initially). When you launch the client program, it prompts you to choose if the server to connect to is located on the local or remote PC **Pic 1**.

EMCO Ping Monitor Enterpri	se	×		
Connect to Server				
Specify if you would like to connect to the Ping Monitor Enterprise server located on the local PC or on a remote one.				
O The server is running on	the local host			
The server is running on	a remote host			
Host Name / IP Address:	MERCURIUS	~		
User Name:	MERCURIUS\Alex			
Password:	••••			
Use Windows session	n credentials			
Learn more about connecting to local and remote servers				
Use this as default and do	o not ask again Connect	Close		

Pic 1. Choosing the server to connect to

For the server to accept remote connections, the following ports should be opened in the firewall for inbound TCP connections:

- 48019 this port is used to connect to the remote server using the Windows session credentials;
- 48020 this port is used to connect to the remote server via a SSL channel using the specified credentials.

If you would like to use custom ports, you can define the required ports in the following key of the Windows Registry on the PC hosting the Ping Monitor server: HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\EMCO\Ping Monitor\v9 To override the port used for connection by using the Windows session credentials, you should specify it in the **Port** DWORD value. The **SSLPort** DWORD value should be defined to override the port used for connection via a SSL channel using the specified credentials. For the client to be able to connect to the server via a custom port, you should define this port in the server name, e.g. emco-server.local:3112.

After the connection is established, the client allows you to manage the monitoring process, the hosts and the reports if you account is authorized accordingly by the server access control configuration. You can disconnect from the current server and connect to another one at any time using the **Switch Server** button from the **Application Menu** or from the **Server** Ribbon group on the **Program** page.

When connecting to a remote server, you can choose if you would like to use the credentials of the Windows session the client program is executed in or to provide other credentials. When the current session credentials are used, all aspects of the Windows integrated security are applied to the client-server communication. Otherwise, when the credentials are provided manually, the transport layer of communication is secured with a SSL certificate provided by the server. By default, the self-signed certificate issued to **<%SHORT_NAME%>Server.exe** is used. It is not fully trusted, because the DNS match and the trusted root conditions are not met. Although it is possible to accept this certificate for communication, it is strongly recommended that you use the certificate issued to your server. It can be either your self-signed certificate issued by a certification authority trusted in your organization or the certificate to be used by the server for authentication is selected on the **Server Configuration** page of the program preferences.

In the **Server** group, you can also find the **Server Info** button. When this button is pressed, a dialog is displayed containing information on the server and all the clients currently connected to it. Upon exiting the program, the client is disconnected from the server application that keeps running on the server PC.

In case the currently installed client is not compatible with the server you are connecting to, the program will prompt you that a compatible client needs to be installed, if it is not installed yet, otherwise the compatible client is automatically launched and connected to the specified server.

Chapter 14: Access Control

Ping Monitor server supports concurrent access by multiple users. Each user is authenticated by its Windows credentials, but for an enterprise solution it is not enough to authorize access since each action should also be authorized for specific users only so that a simple user cannot perform administrative tasks. In Ping Monitor the server access is controlled by means of roles.

The roles management is available only when running the Enterprise edition of Ping Monitor. With the Free and Professional editions, all users that are allowed to access the machine the Ping Monitor service is running on are granted administrative access to the program.

Each role defines a set of enabled privileges. There are three predefined user roles, which are **Administrator**, **Read-Only** and **No Access**. The **Administrator** role is used to grant users an unlimited access to the server. The **Read-Only** role allows the users in that role to access the server but does not allow performing any modifications to the server data and configuration. The **No Access** role should be used to disallow access for specific users that belong to the groups for which access is granted. In addition to these predefined roles, you can create custom roles enabling required privileges for those roles.

The roles may be assigned to users and groups thus granting or disabling access to Ping Monitor features for specific users. By default, users that are members of the built-in administrator groups on the PC hosting the server are assigned the **Administrator** role. Other users are not allowed to connect to the server.

It is possible to grant users administrative access without applying the **Administrator** role to them by adding those users to the **Ping Monitor Administrators** Windows group. This option can be used by the server administrator to get protected from losing the administrative role due to mistakes in roles configuration or manipulations performed by other administrators. Note that you need to re-authenticate your credentials (which typically means that you need to re-login) when adding a new group or changing group members. The roles are managed and assigned within the **Access Control** view. To assign roles to users and/or groups, use the **Assign Permissions** button in the **Permissions** part of the **Access Control** view. A dialog will be opened where you can add a set of principals and choose a role for each one **Pic 1**.

Assign Permissions	×
Permissions Assignment To assign permission to an individual or a group of use more of the names and choose the roles for the selected	rs, add them to the list below. Then select one or d users and groups in the box to the right of the list.
Choose users and groups to specify the role to be used for interaction with the server.	Selected users and groups can interact with the server according to the chosen role and its privileges.
🚳 Add 🗙 🖂 🗃 🏹 bbA 🍪	Role: Administrator
Principal Role Alex (MERCURIUS\Alex) Administrator	 All Privileges Monitoring Manage Alerts Manage Hosts, Groups and Activity Manage Statistics Reporting Generate Reports Manage Reports Server Management Configure Server Manage Access Control Manage Operations
	Assign Cancel

Pic 1. Permissions assignment

The assignment process is fast and easy. All you need is adding a list of principals for which you would like to assign roles in the table then selecting a role for each one on the right of the table. You may select multiple principals and assign them the same role. For each role, you can review the set of enabled privileges. To proceed with assignment, press the **Assign** button.

To assign another role to any principal, select it in the **Access Control** view and click the **Edit** button. Alternatively, you can use the corresponding item in the pop-up menu. A dialog will be opened where you can choose a new role for the selected user or group. To delete role assignments, use the **Delete** buttons and menu item.

To create a custom role, use the **Add** button in the **Roles** part of the **Access Control** view. A dialog will be opened where you can specify a name for the role to be created and a set of privileges to be granted to users in this role **Pic 2**.

onfigure Role Specify the name for the role and ch	se the privileges to be assigned to the user this role applies to.	1
ame: Reporting		
nable the following privileges for this re	8	
SF 8F 🔚 🗮		8
Name	Description	
All Privileges		
Monitoring		
Manage Alerts	Enables users to redefine the severity of the active alerts and acknowledge	the
Manage Hosts, Groups and A	vity Allows users to add, edit and delete hosts and groups; to start, stop, pause	ar
Manage Statistics	Enables users to provide comments on outages, reset monitoring statistics	or
A Reporting		
Generate Reports	Allows generating custom reports and initiating generation for preconfigu	ec
Manage Reports	Enables adding, editing and deleting preconfigured summary and detailed	re
Server Management		
Configure Server	Enables users to change the server settings and clear logs.	
Manage Access Control	Allows to assign, reassign and delete privileges as well as add, edit and del	ete
Manage Operations	Provides an ability to cancel operations running on the server.	
c		>

Pic 2. Creating a user-defined role

You can use the **Edit** button and menu item to change the role in the future. As during creation, it is possible to specify the role name and a set of privileges. To delete specific user-defined roles - if they are no longer required - use the **Delete** button and menu item. If the role is assigned to principals, you are prompted to decide during the deletion process whether you would like to delete the assignment altogether or reassign another role to those principals.

Chapter 15: Optimizing System Performance

Ping Monitor is designed to monitor a large number of hosts simultaneously, but the monitoring performance depends on multiple factors. The main factors are the number of monitored hosts, the monitoring settings and the hardware of the machine where the Ping Monitor server runs. When starting the program for the first time, you may indicate the estimated number of hosts to be monitored, so that the program can automatically configure the appropriate monitoring settings.

By installing the Ping Monitor server on a modern computer that satisfies hardware requirements listed below, it is possible to monitor 8,000+ hosts. The program has a technical limit of 32,000 hosts that can be monitored by one server. The practical limit depends on the used hardware configuration. You can use the following recommendations to configure hardware on the Ping Monitor server.

Hardware Requirements

Processor

- A single-core processor on the server allows monitoring up to 1000 hosts.
- Using a multi-core processor each core allows monitoring 4000 hosts. For example, using a 2-core processor, you can monitor 8000 hosts.

Memory

Depending on the amount of RAM installed, you will be able to monitor up to:

- 400 hosts per 1 GB if you have no more than 4 GB of RAM
- 800 hosts per 1 GB if you have more than 4 GB, but no more than 8 GB of RAM
- 1600 hosts per 1 GB if you have more than 8 GB of RAM

For example, to monitor 1600 hosts the server requires at least 4 GB of memory. To monitor 8000 hosts the server needs at least 8 GB of memory installed.

This estimation helps in planning server memory allocation. If you intend to run a GUI client on the same server, additional memory will be required.

Disk Usage Estimation

The program uses a database to store the collected data. Using the default settings, the program stores data in the file-based SQLite database. If you plan to monitor more than 1000 hosts during a long time, it's recommended to use a SQL Server database to improve the data storage performance. You can switch the database type on the **Program Database** page of the program preferences.

The program stores hosts statistics, raw ping reply data and all registered events for each host. With the default monitoring settings, it takes about **3 MB per host per month** (0.5 MB for storing statistics and 2.5 MB for storing raw ping reply data), so make sure you have enough free space to store this data. The SQLite database is stored on the file system of the server, so make sure the hard drive space is sufficient to store the collected data.

To optimize the disk usage over time, the program may delete old data for each host automatically. You can configure the program to automatically clean up old data on the **Monitoring Statistics** page of the program preferences.

To save the disk space, the program skips storing the raw ping reply data by default if you monitor over 5000 hosts. You can configure the program to store raw ping reply data on the **Monitoring Statistics** page of the program preferences. Make sure you have sufficient free space available to store the data.

Tuning the Monitoring Settings

The program pings every monitored host regularly at a configured time interval, as explained in the **How the Program Works** chapter. If you monitor thousands of hosts at short intervals, it can cause a large CPU and network workload on the server. To prevent that, the program sets appropriate monitoring intervals at the first start of the program depending on the estimated number of hosts. You can change those settings later on the **Monitoring Settings** page of the program preferences.

If you plan to monitor a very big number of hosts, you need to avoid using short intervals to prevent a high system workload. The server tunes the intervals automatically depending on the current system workload and increases them, if required, to guarantee the monitoring system responsiveness. The server changes the intervals to the nominal values automatically when the system workload goes down. It's recommended to use 10-sec. monitoring intervals if you plan to monitor over 500 hosts and 30-sec. intervals if you plan to monitor over 1000 hosts, otherwise the server may change them automatically to prevent a high system workload.

Other Performance Optimization Recommendations

When you monitor a large number of hosts (i.e. over 1000 hosts), the program GUI client can use the system CPU and memory quite intensively. In this case, it's recommended to run the Ping Monitor server and GUI client on different machines to reduce the system workload. Parallel GUI client connections also influence the server performance, so you have to reduce the number of parallel connections to the server if it runs out of resources.

Chapter 16: Notification Center

The **Notification Center** is used to notify users about possible configuration problems, available program updates, etc. As soon as notifications arrive, you are able to see a balloon icon in the status bar together with the number of available notifications. When you click on this element, the notifications are displayed in a flyout window on the right of the main program window **Pic 1**.



Pic 1. Displayed notifications

When you click on the notification, you are proposed to perform the action requested by the notification. For example, in case of the configuration issue, the preferences dialog is displayed on the appropriate page, allowing you to fix the issue, and in case of the available update, the update wizard is displayed.

If the notification is about any kind of a critical issue, it is highlighted red and it is not possible to ignore it. For other notifications, you can close each and every one using the cross button in the right top corner of the notification row. As the notification is closed, it won't be displayed again until the condition for displaying it is reached once again.

Chapter 17: Requirements

Please carefully read and follow all requirements, listed here, or you may not be able to successfully use the product. You can contact our support if you experience a problem during the product use.

System Requirements

Computer running Ping Monitor must meet the following requirements:

Minimum Hardware Requirements

- Intel Core iX Processor or equivalent
- 4 GB of RAM
- 2 GB of free disk space

Recommended Hardware Requirements

- 6th Gen Intel Core iX Processor or equivalent
- 8 GB of RAM
- 10 GB of free disk space

Supported Platforms (x86/x64)

- Windows 11, 10, 8.1, 8, 7 (with SP1 or later)
- Windows Server 2022, 2019, 2016, 2012 R2, 2012, 2008 R2 (with SP1 or later)

Requirements

- Administrative rights on the local computer
- Microsoft .NET Framework 4.5.2 or above
- TCP ports opened: 48019, 48020

Chapter 18: Edition Upgrade

The program has multiple editions with different features, so you can select the one that suits your needs.



Edition Upgrade

The **Edition Upgrade** provides you with an ability of benefiting from update to a more comprehensive edition of Ping Monitor with a help of the **Edition Upgrade Wizard** that will help you choose an appropriate edition and purchase a license for using it.

The **Edition Upgrade Wizard Pic 1** was designed to make the upgrade process easier. This wizard can be reached by clicking an appropriate hyper link in the **About** dialog or by using the **Edition Upgrade** button from the **Program** Ribbon page.

EMCO Ping Mor	nitor - Edition Upgrade	×
Upgrade	e to a more comprehensive edition	
Edition up edition of I	grade process is fast and easy. You can purchase an upgrade to a more comprehensive EMCO Ping Monitor any time you want and feel all the advantages of that edition.	
	Get more features with an advanced edition of the program	
	Visit the EMCO Software online shop to purchase an upgrade right now and get ready to benefit from using a more comprehensive edition.	
	Choose the program edition that is best for you	
-10	Review the comparison matrix of different program editions to get introduced to the features available in the other editions.	
How to be	nefit from an upgrade to another edition?	
	ОК	

Pic 1. The Edition Upgrade Wizard

With a help of the **Edition Upgrade Wizard**, you can purchase an upgrade to more comprehensive edition of Ping Monitor with a single click on the **Get more features with an advanced edition of the program** option or introduce yourself to the features available in the other edition of the program using the **Choose the program edition that is best for you** option. This option will open a feature list web page that shows you the detailed comparison matrix of the features available in different Ping Monitor editions so that you can review all the features of each edition before choosing the one that best fits your needs.

Chapter 19: How can I leave my Feedback?

EMCO Software always takes care of its customers, and your opinion means a lot to us. For this reason, our programs have built-in features for your feedback. You can suggest a feature you want to see in new program versions or report a technical problem you have faced using the program. Specifying your contact information on the feedback forms ensures that you will be informed of any changes with regard to the reported issue, our plans for implementing the suggested feature or fixing the reported bug. Those actions can be found in the **Feedback** Ribbon group of the Program page.



Suggest a Feature

The **Suggest a Feature** button from the **Feedback** Ribbon group should be used to suggest a functionality you would like to see in the next versions of Ping Monitor.

Ping Monitor comes with a wide range of features, but if you feel some functionality is missing, you can always suggest a new feature to us that you want to see in the program. To suggest a new feature, you should press the **Suggest a Feature** button from the **Feedback** Ribbon group. After pressing this button, you will see the **Feature Suggestion** dialog **Pic 1** on the screen where you are offered to enter your contact information and describe your suggestion.

Ping Monitor Enterpr	ise 9.0	
No information is gathered f copy of this report by e-mail	rom your computer - the data we receive o to the specified address.	ontains only this information. You will receive
Name:	Company	E-mail:
Alex Delorian	Dreamlight LLC	alex@dreamlight.org
Summary:		
Would like to start and s	stop Monitoring for each Host individually	
click it and stop monitor	Ild right click the Host and then choose to ing without changing the monitoring stat	start monitoring for this host and the right e of other Hosts.
It would be great if I cou click it and stop monitor	Ild right click the Host and then choose to ing without changing the monitoring stat	start monitoring for this host and the right e of other Hosts.

Pic 1. The feature suggestion form

Press **Send** when you are done with filling out the form to send your suggestion.



Report a Problem

The **Report a Problem** button should be used to report a problem you have faced while working with Ping Monitor.

Ping Monitor is easy to use and very stable. Nevertheless, if you have faced any difficulty or problem while working with it, you can send us a problem report. To send such a report, you should press the **Report a Problem** button from the **Feedback** Ribbon group. When this button is pressed, the **Problem Report** dialog **Pic 2** will appear on the screen where you are offered to enter your contact information and describe your problem.

No information except the only this information. You	e data you see in this dialog is gathered from will receive a copy of this report by e-mail if a	your computer - the data we receive contains an e-mail address is provided.
Name:	Company:	E-mail:
Alex Delorian	Dreamlight LLC	alex@dreamlight.org
Environment:		
Microsoft Windows 1	0.0.14393. Runtime: 4.0.30319.42000	
Summany		
Juliniary.		
I'm facing problems v	vith configuring Custom Actions	

Pic 2. The problem report form

In the **Environment** field, you can provide us with a description of the specific environment used while working with the program. Press **Send** when you are done with filling out the form to send your report.

Do not hesitate to contact EMCO Software - we are always glad to receive your feedback and are doing our best to satisfy our customers' preferences.

Chapter 20: About EMCO Software

EMCO creates mission-critical software to manage network computers remotely and automate network administration.

Our company was founded in 2001 in Reykjavik, Iceland. Managing Windows networks as network administrators, we could not find tools that would help us automate our routine network administration tasks, so we decided to create such tools for fellow administrators and ourselves.

Today we offer innovative software that help IT specialists and network administrators to automate their Windows network management tasks. Our software tools are focused on remote management of Windows computers across networks and allow administrators to perform routine tasks on all managed computers with a few mouse clicks. We automate software audit and deployment, power management, hosts monitoring and other computer administration tasks.

Learn more: https://emcosoftware.com.

Our Customers

Being suitable for managing networks of any size, our products cater to the needs of 25,000+ customers in 85 countries around the globe. They are Fortune 100 corporations and small businesses, as well as governments, military institutions, universities, public schools, libraries and charities.

Our customers rely on EMCO products for managing their mission-critical network infrastructure. Using our products, network administrators monitor, audit, deploy and manage 3,000,000+ network devices every day.

Chapter 21: Contact Information

We would be glad to help you with any questions and problems you might have. Use the contact information below.

Contact Sales	Contact Support
Our sales team is standing by to answer your questions about purchasing or licensing EMCO	Our support team is here to help you with any technical product-related issues you may have
products. Submit a request, send us an e-mail or	We provide free technical support for all our
call us: Contact Sales.	products, including freeware. Submit a request or send us an e-mail: Contact Support.